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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to
which a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange.
Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk
that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever
for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited
(the “Company’”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM
Listing Rules’”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report
is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no any other
matters the omission of which would make any staterent herein or this report misleading.
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GROUP STRUCTURE
5 18 22 7

21.82% 27.73%
Tianjin TEDA Investment Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Chia Tai Land Company Public Shareholders
Holding Co., Ltd. Investment (Beijing) Limited (H Share)
(“TEDA Holding”) Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Land’)
(“Chia Tai
Pharmaceutical”)
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Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited*
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100%

Tianjin TEDA Tedahang Cold Tianjin Dalian Teda

Tianjin Teda

TEDA General Tianjin Yuan Tianjin Teda Tianjin Port Tianjin Tianxin
Bonded Da Xian Dai Supply Chain Chain Logistics Fengtian International Alps Logistics Alps Logistics Gangwan Automobile
Warehouse Logistics Co., Technology Co., Ltd. Logistics Freight Co,, Ltd. Co., Ltd. International Inspection
Co., Ltd. Ltd. Co., Ltd. (“Tedahang”) Co., Ltd. Forwarding (“Tianjin TEDA (“Dalian TEDA Automobile Services Co.,
(“Bonded (“Yuan Da (“TEDA Supply (“Fengtian Co., Ltd. Alps”) Alps”) Logistics Ltd.
Warehouse”) Logistics”) Chain”) Logistics”) (“International Co., Ltd. (“Tianxin
Freight (“Gangwan Inspection”)
Forwarding”) Automobile”)
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RESULTS

A summary of the consolidated results of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the five financial years ended 31
December 2021 has been prepared in accordance with International

Financial Reporting Standards as follows:

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEME

£

AARREMBAR(IAEREHZE
2021 F 12 AT H It A A ST FE 248
BEERENIEBR U ERSEL RN
—F:

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEFE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
2021 F 2020 20194 20184 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%KTt ARBTT ARETRT ARBTET
(Restated)
(& E5))
Turnover EETE 3,069,814 2,880,818 2,716,799 2,613,004 2,397,084
Profit before income tax & Fr {5 &4 AT i 7 112,660 (54,671) 69,559 47,738 82,502
Income tax expense FRS iR (33,352) (27,444) (26,785) (20,130) (19,751)
Profit for the year AN i A 79,308 (82,115) 42,774 27,608 62,751
Profit attributable to THIA LG =T
Non-controlling interests FF# A% fE 25 45,626 47,271 33,320 25,039 21,219
Owners of the Company &R R#EA A 13,300 (132,577) 9,070 4,759 41,532
Basic earnings/(loss) BREAAF,(EE)
per share (RMB) (ARE#TT) 0.10 (0.37) 0.03 0.01 0.12
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEkBE
A summary of the Group’s assets and liabilities as at the end of A& BE# £2021F12 4318 1IF AEF
the five-year period ended 31 December 2021 has been prepared EE@XZ&FEEM%BEK%%%%%
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as  28IE& T
follows:
As at 31 December
MW12H831H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 2018 4F 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTIT AREFTT ARBTT AR®ETT
(Restated)
(#&=7)
Non-current assets EMEEE 1,066,195 860,953 790,171 744,410 757,431
Current assets mENEE 1,009,988 1,373,243 2,170,017 1,858,051 2,040,152
Total Assets BEPE 2,076,183 2,234,196 2,960,188 2,602,461 2,797,583
Non-current liabilities EmBAE 113,890 143,756 130,146 70,404 114,766
Current liabilities mENAE 978,253 1,122,750 1,745,365 1,466,121 1,620,717
Non-controlling interests  JE#2E i 4 25 137,196 134,146 118,556 108,859 103,280
Liabilities and BEBEK
non-controlling FEEAR
interests FERR 1,229,339 1,400,652 1,994,067 1,645,384 1,838,763
Total equity TS R EE 984,040 967,690 1,084,677 1,065,936 1,062,100

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”), |
am pleased to present the audited consolidated financial results of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 to all shareholders.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Year”), the
Group’s turnover was approximately RMB3,069,814,000 (2020:
RMB2,880,818,000), representing an increase of approximately 6.56%
as compared with the corresponding period of the previous year.
Total comprehensive income attributable to shareholders amounted
to approximately RMB13,300,000 (2020: loss of RMB132,577,000).
Earnings per share were approximately RMBO0.1 (2020: loss of
RMBO0.37).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total assets and current assets
were approximately RMB2,076,183,000 (2020: RMB2,234,196,000)
and approximately RMB1,009,988,000 (2020: RMB1,373,243,000)
respectively, representing a decrease of RMB158,013,000 and
RMB363,255,000 respectively as compared with 31 December 2020.
Net assets attributable to the parent company and net assets per
share at the end of the period were approximately RMB846,844,000
(2020: RMB833,544,000) and approximately RMB2.39 (2020:
RMB2.35) respectively, representing an increase of 1.6% and 1.7% as
compared with 31 December 2020.

ESRHEE

AAZBREARFERTS((EES K
RIBEAEEEHZ=2021F12A31H 1t
FEREZ2EMYBESE  BHESUR

REEFHEE

HE2021FE12 A1 HILFEE(AFE]) -
REE 2 EFFEAHARS,069,814,0007T
(20204 : AR#2,880,818,0007T) @ ¥ |
FRIHIER46.56% L REE AL
A AR ¥ 13,300,000 70 (2020 4F = ESHEA
R #132,577,0007T) - BRAF L AR
0.170(20204F : 1B ARKE0.377T) °

HE2021 512318 » "NEBMWBREE
KRB ED R A AR 2,076,183,000
T0(20204F : AR #2,234,196,0007T ) &
# A R #1,009,988,0007T(20204F : A
R #1,373,243,0007T ) * & & £20204F
12 A31 BA R4 T AR # 158,013,000
7T F A R #363,255,0007C : SRB A
AN FEERERBARFEES AL
A R #846,844,000 7T(20204F : AR ¥
833,544,000 7T ) & #9 A ¥ 2.39 7t.(2020
F: AR¥2357T)  ®REE 2020612 A
S1THEDABERT 1.6% M 1.7% °
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES

REVIEW FOR THE YEAR

In 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic continued to affect the world
economy. Thanks to scientific epidemic prevention and control
measures, China’s annual GDP increased by 8.1% over the previous
year, and the economy as a whole has rebounded steadily. Against
this background, the Group actively responded to the impact of the
pandemic on domestic and international economy. With the support
of all shareholders and the Board, the Group continued to adhere to
the general working principle of “bringing the Company back on track
with positive and steady growth”, and actively promoted business
adjustment, focused on its principal business, strictly controlled
business risks, and maintained stable performance. The Group
continued to strengthen the coordinated development of resources
within itself, improved asset utilization, and promoted the improvement
of operating efficiency. The Group continued to strengthen basic
management and improved system construction and internal control
systems to enhance management level. During this reporting period,
the operating results of the electronic components logistics and
related service and the cold chain logistics business increased
significantly compared with the corresponding period of last year, the
warehousing and other business segments grew, and the automobile
logistics segment business remained stable, thus the Group’s day-to-
day business achieved good results. At the same time, the amount
of impairment loss of the Group’s trade receivables, bills receivable
and other receivables decreased significantly compared with the
corresponding period of last year, and the Group’s overall results for
the year increased significantly compared with the corresponding
period of the previous year.

REE DR
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[EGDPLL L FHRS8.1%  I&EEBEIES
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Focusing on principal business to improve business
effectiveness

The Group has always adhered to a comprehensive logistics
development path, aiming at the positioning of a comprehensive
logistics provider, and focusing on the fields of automobile logistics,
electronic components logistics and cold chain logistics. It firmly
promoted the strategy of bringing the Company back on track by
enhancing the advantages of principal business, to achieve high-
quality development. During the Year, in the automobile logistics
sector, Fengtian Logistics overcame the unfavorable factors such
as the global epidemic and the interruption of chip supply in the
automobile industry, overachieved its annual target and maintained
stable performance. In the electronic components logistics sector,
Tianjin TEDA Alps overcame unfavorable factors brought by the sharp
rise in sea and air transportation costs, actively developed multimodal
transportation of domestic shipping and international railway, and
stabilized business income and profits. In terms of cold chain
logistics, the Group continued to make use of its own advantages
and consolidated one-stop cold chain logistics services by integrating
resources. Benefiting from epidemic prevention and control policy for
import cold chain food, the Group continued to record profit.

Resource synergy to improve asset utilization

During the Year, the Group carried out careful and practical asset
management, and strived to improve the operating efficiency of
wholly-owned companies. By optimizing the customer structure,
upgrading the development plan of the park, increasing the utilization
rate of storage yard and special railway lines, the situation of long-term
inefficient operation of the assets in Bonded Warehouse has been
improved. Yuan Da Logistics has achieved substantial progress in the
“integration of land certificates and real estate certificates”, thus laying
a foundation for attracting investors, and promoting the transformation
and upgrading of inefficient assets. It took advantage of resource
synergies to complete project operations with Bonded Warehouse.
TEDA Supply Chain actively expanded customers and achieved a
substantial increase in the business volume.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES

Strengthening management and improving internal control
system

The Group continued to improve the level of governance and internal
control and the construction of the internal system of the Group,
standardized internal management and control, and consolidated the
management foundation. In terms of system management, a number
of management systems have been revised and improved, and the
concept of “implementation is the key to management systems” is
strengthened to ensure that the management systems are put in place.
With the goal of “systematized management, process-oriented system
and informationalized workflow”, the Group built a smart operation
management platform, improved data compatibility, and preliminarily
completed the construction of an integrated system for its business
and finance, which not only improved decision-making efficiency,
but also ensured capital security, providing support to the Group’s
business development. The Group strengthened the supervision of
internal audit, actively rectified the problems found in the audit, and
promoted the reform through proposals, which has improved the
level of internal management and control of the Group. The Group
also improved the construction of the risk system, and extended the
construction of the “risk management and control and quality project”
system to the subsidiaries, to ensure that risks are monitored, the
implementation is standardized, and the process is supervised, and to
comprehensively prevent potential risks in the Group’s business.

Carrying out safe production and fulfilling the primary
responsibility of epidemic prevention

The Group has always implemented the principle of “safety first,
prevention focused”, continued to strengthen the long-term
mechanism of safety management enhancement, firmly established
the concept of safe development and took the principal responsibility
of safe production. The management personnel at all levels signed
the “Work Safety Responsibility Letter” and broke down targets and
tasks. The Group improved the construction of the safety emergency
management system, strengthened the prevention and control of
safety risks and the investigation and rectification of hidden dangers,
implemented safety precautions, and strengthened safety education
to ensure the stable development of the Group. The Group formulated
a number of action plans for comprehensive management of safety
production, promoted regular epidemic prevention and control, fulfilled
the primary responsibility of epidemic prevention and control, and
conducted emergency drills.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X% & /&2 Z Y&
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Paying attention to talent cultivation and shouldering social
responsibilities

The Group continued to push forward the reform of the “three
systems”, established and improved the “three capabilities”
mechanism, actively carried out the market-based recruitment of
managerial staff of the Group, and replenished operational talents.
During the Year, the Group further clarified job responsibilities, tenure
and assessment indicators, strengthened performance assessment
management, advocated low-carbon green development, and
emphasized green and safe operation. The management personnel
signed the “commitment letter”, promising to work with integrity. The
Group advocated saving water and electricity among its employees,
assessed environmental risks and formulated countermeasures to
reduce resource consumption and environmental impact.

PROSPECT AND VISION

In 2022, the world situation will be complex and changeable. The
impact of the COVID-19 pandemic and geopolitical and military conflicts
will be a major factor of uncertainty, and the domestic economy will
be under great pressure. The Group will strengthen its confidence
and prepare for a more severe and complex situation, adhere to the
general working principle of “bringing the Company back on track with
positive and steady growth” and the operation-centered philosophy,
and rely on regional advantages to give full play to the importance of
the logistics industry. It will have a clear strategic positioning, make
full use of the technological advantages in automobile logistics and
electronic components logistics, and integrate and upgrade existing
resources in yards, railways, cold storage and warehouses. The Group
will strengthen business innovation, accelerate business transformation
and upgrading, and enhance its overall performance to create value
for shareholders.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES

Consolidating business advantages and improving asset quality

With a focus on its core businesses, the Group will further integrate
its resources, consolidate the advantages of automobile logistics
business and ensure stable operation.

The Group will support Fengtian Logistics to develop new business
and make intelligent transformation and upgrading, keep abreast with
the development trend of the electronic product industry, increase
business development efforts, use the experience of electronic
components supply chain and logistics to expand vehicle logistics
categories, and seize market opportunities to promote the steady
development of its business.

The Group will facilitate smooth operation of import cold chain logistics
business, make full use of Tedahang’s cold chain logistics trade
platform and excellent cold storage facilities, expand cold chain self-
operated business, build self-operated trade network and one-stop
cold chain service, and improve customer experience and the quality
and efficiency of cold chain logistics.

The Group will continue to develop physical logistics and strategic
emerging projects, make overall use of special railway freight lines,
storage yards and storage resources, promote in-depth development
of multimodal transport business, and vigorously develop railway
container business. According to the business development plan of the
park, the Group will timely repair and upgrade the old assets, improve
the hardware level of the park, lay a solid foundation for improving the
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quality of customers, and empower high-quality development. The 7§ FEREBEETFRERT - KitA%
Group will continue to support the promotion of internet-based freight BE&ERERF - BREKIES

transport business, reserve transporters of internet-based freight

transport platform, and rely on the Group’s resources and customers

to achieve business growth.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A



Strengthening internal management and improving the level of
governance

The Group will strengthen internal management, take forward the
reform of the “three systems”, and select and recruit candidates based
on market, occupation and profession. The Group will continue to
optimise the overall allocation of human resources, activate existing
talent resources, and strengthen the management of labour contracts.

The Group will strengthen the performance assessment system,
continue to improve and adjust the salary system based on
performance assessment, establish a positive link between salary
income and performance assessment, and give full play to the positive
incentive effect of assessment. The Group will increase investment
in talent training to provide human resources guarantee for the
development of the Group.

The Group will continue to promote the construction of “risk
management and control and quality project”, and constantly
improve the risk management and control system. The Group will
constantly review various rules and regulations, standardize enterprise
management, improve management efficiency, and further enhance
the level of governance of the Group. The Group will work closely
with external audit institutions to improve the Group’s internal audit
management capabilities, strengthen the supervision over the
operation and management of the subsidiaries, pay close attention
to audit rectification, establish rules and regulations for rectification
results, and strengthen the application of audit results.

The Group will continue to strengthen informatization construction,
continuously improve the intelligent operation and management
platform, and standardize the management efficiency, business
operation and informatization management level of each subsidiary
based on existing achievements. The Group will continuously explore
new scenarios and new demands for various business practices,
promote the redevelopment and upgrade of the smart operation and
management platform, and gradually center on the Group’s fund
management to realize the centralized management of personnel and
funds.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERES

Implementing epidemic prevention and ensuring safe
production

The Group will implement the government’s epidemic prevention
and control requirements seriously, firmly abide by the discipline of
epidemic prevention and control, and assume the primary responsibility
for epidemic prevention and control. The Group will continue to
implement the principle of “safety first, prevention focused”, establish
and improve the safety emergency management mechanism, and
enhance the ability to deal with emergencies, difficulties, dangers and
heavy tasks. The Group will adhere to source control and thorough
investigation in potential hazards and rectification and strengthen the
construction of a double prevention mechanism to ensure the safety
of employees and the security of the Group’s property. The Group will
continue to strengthen publicity and education on safe production and
preventive drills to foster a culture of safety.

In 2022, a new journey has begun, the Group will continue to steadily
advance its work, integrate its assets and resource advantages,
actively seize market opportunities to make the Group stronger and
bigger, cultivate the core competitiveness of the Group, and achieve
high-quality development.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere
gratitude to friends from all walks of life who have long cared about

and supported the development of the Group, and all staff for their
excellent performance.

Yang Weihong

Tianjin, the PRC, 22 March 2022

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X% & /&2 Z Y&
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS HIGHLIGHTS

The principal businesses of the Group are logistics and supply chain
services for finished automobiles and components, logistics and supply
chain services for electronic components, materials procurement
and related logistics services, cold chain logistics services and other
services such as bonded warehouse, container yard, supervision,
agency and transportation services. The major customers of the Group
include: Tong Fang Global (Tianjin) Logistics Co., Ltd. ([B77 3REK(KE)
¥ A MR 2 &), Tangshan Donghua Steel Group Co., Ltd. (1L 5
B EEB AR A A), Xi'an Chaoyuan Hong Trading Co., Ltd. (FAZ &3
& 7=E S B AF), Wuan Yuhua Iron and Steel Co., Ltd. (K& EE
B R A 7)) and Hebei Huaxin Special Steel Co., Ltd. (AL FEE4
AR A F) etc..

During the current reporting period, the operating income of the
logistics and supply chain services for transportation of finished
automobiles and components increased slightly as compared with the
corresponding period of last year. The segment results was stable,
mainly due to the increase in operating income driven by the increase
in the business volume of Fengtian Logistics, a subsidiary of the
Company. During the reporting period, the operating income from the
materials procurement and related logistics services business of the
Group increased slightly compared to the corresponding period of
last year, and the segment results was better than the corresponding
period of last year, but it still recorded losses. The operating income
and the segment results of the bonded warehouse, transportation
and supervision businesses grew significantly as compared with the
corresponding period of last year, mainly due to the addition of a new
leased asset and the increase in the occupancy rate of the original
warehouse. The operating income and operating profit of Tianjin TEDA
Alps and Dalian TEDA Alps both recorded a significant increase as
compared to the corresponding period of last year, mainly because
the growth of high value-added business volume drove the growth
of operating income and operating results. The occupancy rate of
warehouse from Tedahang remained high and there was a substantial
increase in the income of disinfection service due to the pandemic,
while the supply chain finance business drove an increase in related
logistics income such as freight forwarding, deposit on boxes and
claim of bill of lading and warehousing. Tedahang’s performance
continued to improve.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEESWED T

Logistics and Supply Chain Services for Transportation of
Finished Automobiles and Components

During the current reporting period, the principal businesses
income of logistics and supply chain services for transportation of
finished automobiles and components amounted to approximately
RMB1,381,905,000, representing an increase of RMB35,430,000 or
2.63% as compared with the corresponding period of last year. The
results of this segment was stable.

Materials Procurement and Related Logistics Services

During the current reporting period, the principal business income from
the materials procurement and related logistics services amounted
to approximately RMB1,637,218,000, representing an increase of
RMB143,414,000 or 9.60% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year.

Warehouse, Supervision, Agency and Other Incomes

During the current reporting period, other services such as bonded
warehouse, container yard, supervision, agency and transportation
services recorded an operating income of approximately
RMB50,691,000, representing an increase of RMB10,152,000 or
25.04% as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

Logistics and Supply Chain Services for Electronic
Components (Conducted Through Investments in Joint
Ventures)

During the current reporting period, the operating income from logistics
and supply chain services for electronic components business of the
Group’s joint ventures amounted to approximately RMB917,764,000,
representing an increase of RMB278,065,000 or 43.70% as compared
with the corresponding period of last year. The business recorded
an operating profit of RMB45,243,000, representing an increase of
RMB18,775,000 or 70.93% as compared with the corresponding
period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Turnover

For the year ended 31 December 2021, turnover of the Group was
RMB3,070 million, representing an increase of RMB189 million or
6.56% as compared to RMB2,881 million for the corresponding
period of last year. The increase in turnover is mainly attributable to an
increase in operating income of logistics and supply chain services for
transportation of finished automobiles and components and materials
procurement and related logistics services as compared to the
corresponding period of last year.

Cost of sales and gross profit

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the cost of sales of the Group
was RMB2,896 million, representing an increase of RMB183 million or
6.75% as compared to RMB2,713 million in the corresponding period
of last year. For the year ended 31 December 2021, gross profit
margin of the Group was 5.65%, 0.17 percentage points lower than
the corresponding period of last year.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for 2021 amounted to
RMB59,195,000, representing an increase of RMB5,638,000 or
10.583% as compared to RMB53,557,000 during the corresponding
period of last year. The Group will continue to strengthen its control
over its administrative expenses.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs during 2021 amounted to RMB23,545,000,
representing a decrease of RMB9,934,000 or 29.67% as compared to
RMB33,479,000 in the corresponding period of last year. The Group
will continue to improve the efficiency of capital utilisation and strive
for the most favorable conditions for bank credits, so as to reduce the
overall finance charges.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEESWED T

Taxation expenses

The taxation expenses of the Group for 2021 were RMB33,352,000,
representing an increase of RMB5,908,000 or 21.53% as compared
to RMB27,444,000 in the corresponding period of last year. The
increase in taxation expenses was mainly attributable to the increase
in the income tax expenses of Fengtian Logistics, as compared to the
corresponding period last year.

Net change in fair value of equity investments through
comprehensive income

The net change in fair value of equity investment of the Group for 2021
was RMB-20,382,000, representing a decrease of RMB17,191,000
as compared to RMB-3,191,000 in the corresponding period of last
year, which was mainly attributable to the decrease in fair value of
Tianjin Bogang No. 9 Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) (KEZH LR EERE BT EBERE ) and Tianjin
Ferroalloy Exchange Co., Ltd. (KE#EAE X HFIAMRAF]) of the
financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income.

Share of results of joint ventures and associates

The share of results of joint ventures and associates of the Group
for 2021 was RMB33,755,000, representing an increase of
RMB13,470,000 or 66.40% as compared to RMB20,285,000 in
the corresponding period of last year, which was mainly due to the
significant growth in the operating results of Tianjin TEDA Alps and
Tedahang, as compared to corresponding period of last year.

Profit for the year and total comprehensive income attributable
to the equity holders of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2021, total profit for the period
amounted to RMB58,926,000, representing an increase of
RMB144,232,000 or 169.08% as compared to the corresponding
period of last year. Total comprehensive income attributable to the
equity holders of the Company were RMB13,300,000, increased by
RMB145,877,000 or 110.03% as compared to RMB-132,577,000
in the corresponding period of last year. The increase in total
comprehensive income attributable to the equity holders of the
Company was mainly due to an increase in the investment income as
compared to the corresponding period of last year, and a significant
decrease in the amount of impairment loss of trade, bills and other
receivables of the Group during the reporting period as compared to
the corresponding period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (corresponding period of 2020:
nil). The Board will consider dividend distribution according to dividend
policy as and when appropriate.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Capital structure

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no change in the
capital structure of the Group. The share capital of the Company
comprised only ordinary shares.

Loans and borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of bank loans of the Group was
RMB251,490,000 (31 December 2020: RMB349,500,000).

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2021, the ratio of total liabilities to total assets of
the Group was 53% (31 December 2020: 57%). The gearing ratio (ratio
of loans (including borrowings and lease liabilities) to total equity) of the
Group was 33% (31 December 2020: 51%).

Charge on assets

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s investment properties of
RMB184,000,000 and bank deposits of RMB123,289,000 were
pledged to the banks to secured general banking and loan facilities
granted to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEESWED T

Exchange loss or gain

All operating revenues and expenses of the Group are denominated in
Renminbi.

The Group has no significant investments outside Mainland China. The
Group, however, may be exposed to certain extent of foreign currency
exchange loss or gain mainly because Fengtian Logistics of the Group,
has business denominated in United States Dollar, Japanese Yen and
Hong Kong Dollar. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
had an exchange gain of RMB279,000 after offsetting the exchange
gains with exchange losses.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD AND FUTURE PLANS
FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

During the Year, the Group had no significant investments and did not
devise future plans for material investments or capital assets.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

During the Year, there was no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures by the Group.

EMPLOYEES

To reflect the staff situation of the Group more precisely, the Group
has adjusted the statistical method for determining the number of
employees as at the end of this reporting period. The statistical
method for determining the number of employees has been adjusted
from the statistics based on the Group and its associates and joint
ventures (excluding dispatched labors and employees) to the statistics
based on the Group (including dispatched labors and employees) (the
“Adjustment”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 1,214 employees
(including dispatched labors and employees) (31 December 2020:
1,064 employees (after the Adjustment) or 2,183 employees (before
the Adjustment)).
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As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December

2021 2020 2020

(after the (before the

Adjustment) Adjustment)

2021 F 72020 F R 2020 F

12H31H 12H31H 12 H31H

(FAEE) (FHEAT)

Administration 1TER 222 224 292
Finance B 7% 35 34 70
Consulting Technology L5 5 5 18
Sale and Operation HEREE 952 801 1,803
Total A5 1,214 1,064 2,183

REMUNERATION POLICY BB R

The remunerations of the employees of the Company shall be ZARFEEZFHELBMEREHEES
determined with reference to the market rate, and the performance, *3R - EEMERMET @ TEIRFEAE

qualification and experience of the relevant employees. Also, a
discretionary bonus based on individual performance during the year
would be distributed as a reward for the contributions made by the
employees to the Company. Other employee benefits include pension
insurance, unemployment insurance, labour injury insurance, medical
insurance and housing fund.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the
remuneration committee of the Company, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, market competitiveness, individual
performance and experience, to the Board for determination.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The global logistics industry and supply chains have been playing
a critical role in the movement, storage and flow of goods during
the production cycle and the final delivery of products. Yet since
the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) pneumonia pandemic (the
“Pandemic”) that hit the world hard two years ago, the logistic
firms have been directly impacted, with disruptions of the supply
chain that might hampered the competitiveness, economic
growth and job opportunities of logistics companies.

Benefited from the quick recovery of China, productions,
business and all kinds of livelihoods resumed in 2021 and these
stimulated the bounce back of business opportunities, which in
turn saving the logistic industry from the seismic shift of business
reform experienced in other parts of the world.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the
“Company” or “TBTL”) strives to provide integrated logistics
service and supply chain management service. The principal
businesses of the Group are logistics and supply chain services
for finished automobiles and components, logistics and supply
chain services for electronic components, materials procurement
and related logistics services, cold chain logistics services
and other services such as bonded warehouse, container
yard, supervision, agency and transportation services. As an
enterprise that strives to operate its business with the purpose to
create long-term value for all, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) remain committed to adopting
environmental, social, and economic perspectives in strategy
planning and policy execution, in constant pursuit of harnessing
technology evolution, eco-friendly measures and responsible
practices to respond to the challenges that abound in business
landscapes.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A
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2021 was another remarkable year that multiple nations pledged
for a series of environmental protection commitments especially
the carbon neutrality targets. Under the leadership of the central
government of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group swiftly responded and implemented effective policies to
integrate the concepts of environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) into day-to-day operations.

In strict compliance with the requirements under Appendix 20
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”), the Group is pleased to present its sixth ESG report
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021”), which
demonstrates the Group’s approach and performance in terms
of ESG management and corporate sustainable development for
FY2021.

Reporting Boundary

Adopting the Operational Control Approach and adhering to
the Materiality Principle, the Group includes its major business
operations contributing to the majority of its annual revenue in
this ESG Report. Believing that these major operations caused
material social and environmental impacts that concern its
stakeholders, the Group decided to disclose in the Report:

1) the logistics and supply chain services for finished
automobiles and components (provision of logistics services
and supply chain management, i.e. planning, storage and
transportation management for finished automobiles and
components);

2) the materials procurement and related logistics services
(sale of raw materials to customers comprising principally
trading companies and provision of related services
of transportation, management, storage, warehouse
supervision and management); and

3) electronic components logistics and related service and the
cold chain logistics business in Tianjin, PRC.
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For the corporate governance section, please refer to the Group’s
Annual Report 2021 page 72 to 92. The reporting period of this
ESG report is for FY2021 unless specifically stated otherwise.

Reporting Principles
Materiality:

By gathering the feedback from various stakeholder groups
about their concerns, interests and expectations in terms of the
Company’s sustainable development, material ESG issues of the
Group are identified and endorsed by its senior management for
future strategy development.

Quantitative:

The reporting principle of Quantitative was applied and
demonstrated through the disclosure of measurable key
performance indicators (“KPIs”) under both Environment and
Social sections. To ensure that readers can grasp a better
understanding of the Group’s sustainability performance,
detailed disclosure in measurable format can be found in several
performance tables.

Balance:

Upholding the good practice of transparent disclosure, the
Group conforms to the principle of Balance when preparing the
ESG Report so as to portray and deliver to the readers both the
outstanding achievements and room for improvement of the
Group’s sustainability performance in FY2021.

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X&/&/8RE Y REBERMHBRA A

ERCEETRDS  F2HEAEE
2021 ER(FT72FENH) - B B
HBASN c ANIRE - HEREARS
Rk HR B 2021 BA 4 -

&R A
BREREERNERBHAQ
HEZRROBIT  FE &Hﬂtﬁﬁ’]}i
B REEEASRARBRER
BRI HEE AKBERNBERERE - 4
g RERRE °

=y

MBREBEREEDEHIB TMIRED

AFrECARETEE([HBREAER
BiE]) ERIZFEELHER
Al AiEREE E T IERAEE
WA REER A EARIE - A5
EEANZ2INFABEEREIRNETE
MK R o

i -
AEERFEALCLBEENRTE
Bl RBRRIRIE - HERERWMSE
REREERA - UmEEERI
RPARE @M 2021 B FIE AT BT
[ 2% IR 77 THD B 3% HE A B DA R B 22
M °



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Consistency:

To facilitate meaningful self and lateral comparison, the Group
has adopted consistent methodologies for data collation and
reporting framework over years. The calculation of greenhouse
gas (“GHG”) emissions, for example, was in alignment with local
reporting rules and internationally recognised standards including
the “2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas
Inventories”.

BOARD INCLUSIVENESS
Governance Structure

The Group has set up an independent robust governance
structure.

Bearing ultimate responsibility for all the ESG related issues,
policies and the reporting of the Group, the Board take the
lead and oversee the execution of the Group’s sustainability
strategy in a top-to-bottom manner. They are also responsible
for the approval of the Group’s overall ESG goals and
reports. Meanwhile, the Management is responsible for the
implementation of specific ESG policies and the preparation
of ESG reports. Having a clear division of labour, the seven
subordinate Departments are responsible for the execution,
monitoring and control of ESG work down to each of the
business unit.
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Management Approach and Strategy

Risk management is an essential part in ESG issues, especially
for those risks related to climate change and environmental
regulations established by the government. Committed to
integrating its ESG management approach into enterprise risk
management system, the Group has carefully studied and
implemented the measures and emergency plans built by local
governments, aiming to better identify and address any potential,
unknown or actual risks.

To identify and better understand the Group’s ESG-related risks,
as well as the latest update on ESG laws and regulations that
may have significant impact on the Group’s business, the Board
maintains stable communication with the upper units, engages
external experts and holds regular communication with internal
advisory groups to ensure that important information is shared
and passed around the organisation.

Meanwhile, when setting up and deciding the long-term
development strategy for its business, the Group is particularly
concerned and prioritised considerations including the
government support, requirements and restrictions on the logistic
industry, market environment for its main business segment, and
most importantly, the environmental impacts caused during the
logistics operations. In addition, the Group also integrates the
result of the Materiality Assessment, which reflected the concerns
and interests of its stakeholders, when creating, reviewing
and modifying its strategy to ensure a comprehensive and
balanced business plan that is inclusive of opinions from different
perspectives.
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Goals and Targets

To steadily advance various tasks and stay in line with the overall
planning of the regional and national units, the Group formulates
long-term plans attentively in undertaking its corporate social
responsibilities.

Recognising that energy consumption, including the fossil fuels
consumed for vehicle transportation and electricity consumed for
warehouse storage, is one of the most significant environmental
impacts of the logistic industry, the Group is dedicated to control
its energy consumption per unit of revenue, while promoting the
decoupling of business growth with resources consumption.

The Group sets internal ESG KPIs to reduce its negative
environmental impacts to the greatest extent. In particular, KPIs
include the electricity consumption per unit revenue and the fuel
consumption for vehicles transportation per unit revenue etc.
These KPIs are reviewed and monitored by the Board through
the supervision and the regular report of the Management, while
they are also disclosed in the annual ESG Report of the Group to
let its stakeholders scrutinise the performance and progress of
the Group.

Message from the Board
Dear valued stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the sixth ESG
Report of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December
2021. | hope this Report provides all of the readers with a
snapshot of TBTL’s sustainability efforts and performance to
date.

Building smart industries

Since the beginning of the Pandemic, the global supply chain has
been interrupted by the quarantine and lock-down measures in
different countries and regions. Facing operational challenges, we
are inspired to double our efforts to cater and maintain our service
reliability. In addition to the exploration of alternative logistics
solutions including the sea-rail combined transportation, we are
increasing our support to our subsidiaries in developing new
businesses and upgrading to intelligent transformation.
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Offering green business

Taking a further step-up on decarbonisation, we have linked our
development targets in seeking sustainability with the ambitious
national carbon neutrality goal, as we are doing our best in
getting a low-carbon fleet as fast as possible and capitalising
on the opportunities of the transition to a low-carbon economy.
By actively exploring the opportunities to adopt renewable fuels,
we hope to continuously improve our energy consumption rate
and reduce our carbon emissions so as to minimise subsequent
environmental impacts.

Creating sustainable future

Whilst 2021 revealed a new normal in the post-Pandemic period
to us all, the ripple effect of the Pandemic is still impacting every
corner of the world. As we see opportunities and challenges
coexist in the rapid recovery of the PRC and the world, we
are steadfast in facing the challenges and we will seize the
opportunities to exploring greener solutions to logistics chains
and furthering its collaboration with its customers and suppliers
in enabling an open, inclusive and sustainable business together.

Last but not least, | would like to take this opportunity to express
the sincere gratitude to all stakeholders, staff members and
business partners for their dedication and unlimited support to
the Group on the route to sustainability transformation.

Yang Weihong
Chairman & Executive Director

22 March 2022
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group believes that engaging stakeholders and being
responsive to their concerns is important for its long-term
success. As such, regular, open and constructive dialogue with
its key stakeholders through communication channels listed
below is part of the Group’s management process.

Stakeholders Expectations and Communication Channels
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Communication Channels

BERE

Government and
regulatory authorities

BRREEER

Shareholders

KR

- Compliance with laws and
regulations
—  Fulfilment of tax obligations

- ETERER
- BITRmES

- Return on investments
- Business ethics
- Information disclosure

S 12 & Bl 2R
- EREE
- EREE

—  Supervision on the compliance
with local laws and regulations

= Fulfilment of statutory
reporting requirements

- EBETHHARERNE

- BITATHImMAT

- Regular reports and
announcements

—  General meetings

—  Corporate website
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Stakeholders Expectations and concerns Communication Channels
B0 E HE KRBT BERE
Employees —  Compensation and benefits - Performance appraisals
- Health and safety in the - Regular meetings and training
workplace —  Emalils, notice boards, team
—  Training and development building activities with the
opportunities management
4= - FBRER - FEREHE
- IESMRREZS - TEHg=ENEI

- BIIRBERES

Customers —  Production and service quality
assurance
—  Protection of customers’
privacy and rights
®F - HERBBEERI
- REEPMENERN
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R HERERES

Stakeholders
B

Expectations and concerns
HERETE

Communication Channels

Suppliers

HER

General public

5
38

Fair and open procurement
Mutual beneficial cooperation
Long-term business
relationship

N R RFRRE
ERAEE
RHRBGRIE

Involvement in communities
Business ethics
Environmental protection
awareness

St [RIEE)

EEBE

RIBRER B

Open tender for key suppliers
Contracts and agreements
Suppliers’ satisfaction
assessment

Telephone discussions
Face-to-face meetings and
onsite visits

DRRBIE
BH Rt
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HHEEENREMER

Public welfare activities
Corporate website
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Materiality Assessment

The Group conduct regular materiality assessment, most
recently in 2019, to identify its stakeholders’ main concerns and
material interests for response and reporting. Since the Group
believes that the goal and direction of sustainable development
should be long-term and continuous, while the implementation
of relevant policies should be sustained over time to ensure
their effectiveness. As such, the Board decided to continue
its efforts on addressing the risks and opportunities under the
material topics that were reflected in its Materiality Assessment
in 2019, so as to lead the Group to move towards sustainable
development in a consistently effective manner.

To ensure the accuracy and objectivity of evaluation, the
Group engaged a third-party agency in conducting an online
materiality assessment survey. Taking a stepwise approach, a
list of ESG issues were first identified through taking reference of
domestic and foreign reporting guidelines as well as the market
concerns of sustainable development. Inputs from selected key
stakeholders were invited for evaluation and formulation of the
materiality assessment table as below, which was then submitted
to the Board for review.
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Relatively more important to
external stakeholders only

Marketing and promotion

Observing and protecting intellectual property
rights

Product quality assurance and recall
percentage

Labelling relating to products/services
Customer satisfaction (Welfare)

Mitigation measures to protect the environment
and natural resources

Anti-corruption policies and whistle-blowing
procedure

Number of legal cases filed against the
company about bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering

Energy use

Cultivation of local employment

Diversity of employees

Participation in charitable activities and support
public welfare

Selection of local suppliers

Product design & lifecycle management
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Vital

Smooth communication and sound relationship
with suppliers

Protection of consumer information and
privacy

Procurement practices

Environmentally preferable products and
services

Health and safety relating to products/services
Social risks (e.g. monopoly) of the suppliers
Occupational health and safety
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BRI - HERERESE

Relatively insignificant

®  Sewage treatment

e Land use, pollution and restoration

*  Air and greenhouse gas emissions

e  Solid waste treatment

e  (Climate-related risks

e Use of other raw/packaging materials
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Relatively more important to the Group

Water use

Employee remuneration and benefits
Employee development and training
Preventing child and forced labour
Environmental risks (e.g. pollution) of the
suppliers

Anti-corruption training provided to directors
and staff

Community engagement

Business model adaptation and resilience to
environmental, social, political and economic
risks and opportunities

Management of the legal & regulatory
environment (regulation compliance
management)

Systemic risk management

Critical incident risk responsiveness
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According to the outcome, the Group identified seven ESG
issues that were of great significance to both the Group and
its stakeholders. The review outcomes continue to inform the
evolution of the Group’s ESG commitments, strategies and
goals, as well as the prioritisation of its assets allocation so as to

align with stakeholders’ expectations.

Sustainable Development Goals (“SDGs”)

Supporting the United Nations SDGs, the
Group believes that businesses play an
important role in contributing to this global
agenda for sustainable development. To
this end, the Group conducts an evaluation
on its stakeholders’ opinions on corporate
sustainability stewardship and aligns its
business and sustainability priorities with the
SDGs, so as to identify SDGs which are of
greatest relevance to the Group where it can
best contribute to.

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

K‘? GOALS

m%
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According to the results, the Group identifies SDGs 3,9 and 11 HRER  AEEHmTHEEEER
as relevant to its overall sustainability agenda and areas where it RETRIER BN A
can positively contribute to. BREZ3 - 9k11  LAREAERE

B R S B4R -

A AL BENG Target 3: Good Health and Well-Being for People
\ /\ B3 RIFEEERL

To promote the well-being for all especially for its people in this post-Pandemic era, the
Group attaches great importance in the daily safeguarding of occupational health and safety
(“OHS”) during operations. Special anti-epidemic measures are well in place as referring to
the local and national guidelines, while OHS policies are also enacted and monitored strictly
as the Group strives for zero work-related accident.

REBREEFREEZBARBL  F5EREERNARERESBIRPREREERE
2% AEBEREM G RERT S BIEMEEHEE B EIGL - [ I E I BRARE FB R R
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Ay Target 9: Industry, Innovation, and Infrastructure

BR9: EX  AIHMME#RRKE

o

In order to create new value, the Group has upgraded its old assets in FY2021 to enhance
the hardware level of the industrial park and promote high quality development. Following
the development trend of the electronics industry, the Group has leveraged its experience
in supply chain logistics of electronic components to expand its in-vehicle logistics category
and seize market opportunities, in order to enhance the stability of its existing business and
supply chain model.

REVEEE AEECR 2021 HFHZEEELENR  BAEREGKT  HBSES
ZR - -ZREFEMTFEERSBY  MREFEXHHERYACBRAREE Y RmE B
MmisHs - HERREEBNHERRANBEN -

| o Target 11: Sustainable Cities and Communities
Eé BE11: AHERTNEE
A —
nEsE In creation of sustainable communities and human settlements, the Group is devoted to

create sustainable futures in the local communities where it operates. The Group plays a
socially responsible role as a state-owned enterprise.In 2021, the Group organized and
implemented the “I do practical things for the public” campaign, donating clean and tidy
winter clothes and bedding to families and children in difficulty to provide them with winter
warmth. We also organized our staff to participate in the Tencent Public Welfare’s “Work
for Charity to help clear the snow in the north” donation campaign to support the people
affected by the snowstorm in Inner Mongolia and to prevent them from living in difficulties
caused by the snowstorm.
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Stakeholders Feedback

As the Group strives for excellence, we welcome stakeholders’
feedback, especially on topics listed as the highest importance
in the materiality assessment and its ESG approach and
performance. Readers are also welcomed to share their views
with the Group at investor@tbtl.cn.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY

Believing that green operation is essential for the longevity
of business and crucial for creating long-term value for the
community in which it operates, the Group spares no effort in the
pursue of environmental sustainability through stringently controls
its emissions and consumption of resources, and complies with
all relevant environmental laws and regulations in the PRC in daily
operations, including but not limited to:

e  “Environmental Protection Law of the People’s Republic of
China” (P A R A FBIIRIBIREE),;

e “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Atmospheric Pollution” (FF 5 A R £ B AR,
TERBIRE);

e “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and
Control of Water Pollution” (fF 2 A R BS540 80%);

e “Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes” (FF
T AR ATE B8 REY))5 R IRIRNEE); and

e ‘“Law of the People’s Republic of China on Conserving
Energy” (F# A R FEI ST A9 88TRE).

This section primarily discloses the Group’s policies, practices,
and quantitative data on emissions, use of resources, the
environment and natural resources as well as climate change in
FY2021.
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A.1 Emissions

In FY2021, the Group was in compliance with all applicable
legal and regulatory requirements regarding environmental
protection and found no disregard to influential laws relevant
to GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

In FY2021, air pollutants from the Group including sulphur
oxides (“SO,"), nitrogen oxides (“NO,") and particulate
matter (“PM”) were mainly generated from vehicles and the
machinery for transportation and warehouse operations.
Meanwhile, the GHG emissions from the Group were
primarily due to the combustion of fossil fuels and the
consumption of electricity in its business operations. In
FY2021, the Group’s total GHG emissions amounted to
10,025.9 tonnes CO,e. In addition, the Group generated
a total of 84,921.6 m® of non-hazardous wastewater
in FY2021, while no significant amount of hazardous
wastewater was recorded during the year under review. The
Group’s total emissions in FY2021 are summarised in Table

1 below.
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R HERERES

Table 1 The Group’s Total Emissions by Category in *1 2021 MEAREBIERERE H Y

of air, GHG and other emissions respectively by the total
operating area in FY2021, which was 606,792.3 m?;

FY2021 ° BHEE®
FY2021 FY2020
2021815 2020815

Amount Intensity'  Amount  Intensity?
gE BE #$E g
Emissions HH Unit Bl (Unit/"000 m?) (Unit"000m)
(Bfi/FEHK) (BRL/FERR)
Air emissions *  BERHH® 80, k&) kg Tr 26 0.03 282 0.03
NO, k6] kg TR 14,1599 23 138014 15.6
PM BINT kg TR 1,047.3 1.7 1324 15

GHGemissions BEREHH  Scope a8 1 (BRI tomnes COg ~ H—&Li
(Direct Emission) * B2 34644 57  47%8 5i5)

Scope 2 (Energy R (LREEAN)®  tomesCOe  MEILK
Indlrect Emission) ® g 64718 107 81532 9.2

Scope 3 (Other SEI(EBAEHNC  tomesCOe  M-E(tH
Indirect Emissions) ® EE 89.6 0.1 1224 0.1

Total (Scope 1,243)  #3t(881-2%3)  tomesCOe  M—EfKE
2E 10,0258 165 13,0704 14.8

Non-hazardous EEBEY Municipal Solid Waste  #5m B2 ) tonnes I
waste (MSW) 3853 06 303 04
MSW Recycled EY T EREEY fonnes i 48 0.01 146.0 02
Paper Waste Recycled  EIUES tonnes i 3.0 - 55 -
Plastic Waste Recycled EWEBEEN fonnes i 22 - 30 -
Total (Waste Recycled) 7 #zt(EEZY) fonnes i 10.0 0.02 1545 02

Non-hazardous EERK Wastewater ® ke M ThHK
waster 84,921.6 1400  50,305.0 57.0
Hazardous waste BEBEY) Solid Waste EREED fonnes i 08 14x10° - -

Intensity of FY2021 was calculated by dividing the amount 1. 2021 EMEREDNRER  BE

REXEMBEHRNEED BRI
2021 B FF ) 42 VE 3£ H1 75 606,792.3
ERHKETESY

Intensity of FY2020 was extracted from the data in the ESG 2. 20208 FFEVEE ThHEER B 2020 1
Report of FY2020; FRIE LG RERRENEE
The calculation of air emissions included only the 3. BRINMTEERERNEES
consumption of fossil fuels for stationary combustion at FiT & fE MR G2 T 7 b A AR 80 B A
operating sites and mobile consumption for transportation RARER B AN AR EE)E
purposes; =

The Group’s Scope 1 (Direct Emissions) included only the 4, FAEESGB (BB ELER

consumption of liquid fuels in motor vehicles and gaseous
fuels on-site during operations;

BB R EIREHASE L HE
SHEREBREDERE |
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5.  The Group’s Scope 2 (Energy Indirect Emissions) included
only electricity consumption;

6. The Group’s Scope 3 (Other Indirect Emissions) included
only paper wastes disposed of at landfills and the electricity
used for processing fresh water and sewage by government
departments, as well as the business air travel;

7.  The dramatic drop of the amount of recycled waste was
mainly due to the change in recycling behaviour of one of the
Group’s subsidiaries owing to the health concerns amid the
Pandemic;

8. As most of the Group’s wastewater generated was
discharged into the municipal sewage system without a clear
record, the amount of wastewater generated by the Group
was estimated on the assumption that 100% of freshwater
used was discharged as wastewater; and

9.  The methodology adopted for reporting on GHG emissions
set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG
Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental
KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange, “GHG Protocol
Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard and the 2006
IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse Gas Inventories”,
as well as the “Fuel Consumption Limits for Heavy-Duty
Commercial Vehicles”.

Air and GHG Emissions

In FY2021, the total air emissions of the Group, which
were primarily from the vehicle use and warehouse
operations, decrease notably especially for SO, and PM,
which decreased by 26.96% and 20.80% respectively as
compared with FY2020. These changes were mainly related
to the decline in consumption of fossil fuels such as diesel
and gasoline during operations.
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In FY2021, the pattern of GHG emissions barely changed as
compared to that of FY2020, with Scope 2 emissions that
stemmed from the use of electricity dominating (>60%). Yet
the total GHG emissions declined by around 23.29% when
compared to FY2020, with Scope 1, Scope 2 and Scope
3 emissions dwindling by 27.75%, 20.62% and 26.80%
respectively. The improvements were mainly due to the
decrease in consumption of fossil fuels during operations,
as well as the optimisation of the procedures of logistics
operations.

In alignment with the national goal of achieving carbon
neutrality by 2060, the Group endeavours to decrease the
carbon emissions from its business operations gradually.
Paying special attention to the monitoring and control of
its emissions, the Group sets the targets so as to track
its performance on the journey of transitioning to the low-
carbon future:

R HERERES

2021 B - B E RS HERIE R
2020 A FFABLL A TR B (L - &R
2HIBERUR R E N E A (>60%)
SR » EL2020 A FAELL - R EREE
BEERE R #23.29% @ HEE1 -
B2 R EIEINBEME D B D
27.75% ~ 20.62% [ 26.80% ° 155
WEFTERRAEZLHHERD 7L
BB EEUA R R EBRRIZN
Bk -

B2 2060 FRXREIRIKF A
B AEERNBELTROEER
EEELERER - AEERFRI@E
H P ESRI A2 HI - 3% B Z A
BHEERERAREERRETH
=W -

Using FY2021 as baseline year, in FY2022, the Group aims to:
PA2021 BAF R EESF - 202281 F - AEEETE

Air pollutants

Reduce the air pollutants emission per thousand m?to below 0.03 kg/’000m?

for SO, 23.3 kg/’'000m? for NO_and 1.7 kg/’000m? for PM.

ZERISARY BETEFRERSEMERE S FIFREZEN0.03FR,/ FTEHKRFEAL
W) - 233 F %/ FEPHKAEN) BT TR/ FETKREIRT) -

GHG Reduce the total GHG emission per thousand m? to below 16.5 tonnes
CO,e/’'000m?.

w7 R B BETEFREERBATREREEER165B_EtMEE TEHXK -

To effectively pursue its emission targets, the Group is
dedicated to monitoring and controlling its direct emissions
from vehicle use for transportation through key approaches
as follows:

e Optimising: Avoid unnecessary transportation by
utilising appropriate logistical planning, arranging
transportation time, maximising load factors and
transportation efficiency.

* Modal shifts: Adopt more environmentally smart
transportation modes and develop new transportation
combinations in support of the reformation of emission
reduction standards and fuel efficiency standards.

SBMEHHEBRER  AEREH
NEBA T ERTAE R R IEHE
BRI EMMTELNERN

f

e Eit:AEMREYMR - LB
WREYRERSREAENE
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% o
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* Improving: Improve and develop innovative
technologies for transportation such as more efficient
alternative energy sources and upgraded modern fleet.

Further, drivers are encouraged and required to maintain
good driving habits, including turning off idling engines
when stopping and not rushing to brake and accelerate,
S0 as to reduce fuel loss, thereby lowering air emissions.
Drivers are also required to ensure all vehicles are in good
conditions in order to improve energy efficiency and reduce
fuel consumption.

Understanding that refrigerants used in cold storage such
as CFCs and HCFCs impose threat to ozone depletion
and global warming, the Group adopts liquid ammonia
as an alternative refrigerant and makes certain the proper
preservation of refrigerant in storage tanks, compressors,
evaporative condensers and other refrigeration equipment,
and purposely separates the refrigerating station from other
zZones, so as to prevent its leakage.

Wastewater and Solid Waste

During the year under review, the wastewater and solid
waste generated by the Group were mainly non-hazardous
domestic wastewater and municipal solid waste, as well
as small amount of hazardous solid waste from daily
operations. In FY2021, the amount of wastewater and
solid waste rose principally due to the sudden increase
in water usage for cleaning and disposal of anti-epidemic
materials such as masks and sanitiser wipes to combat the
widespread of the Pandemic.
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Sorted non-hazardous solid waste is handled by
professional third parties for recycling, while non-recyclables
are transported to waste disposal plants for further
treatment. In FY2021, a total of 10.1 tonnes of solid waste
were recycled, in which 48% were municipal solid waste,
with a portable amount of paper and plastic waste being
recycled as well. Meanwhile, 0.8 tonnes of hazardous
waste arose from operation in this reporting year, which
was properly handled according to the Group’s internal
procedure and assigned qualified third parties for collection
and disposal.

In FY2021, the wastewater discharged by the Group was
mainly comprised of domestic and commercial sewage
generated from warehouse operations, while a slight
amount of oily wastewater was generated from the Group’s
canteens. To better manage its wastewater and prevent the
contamination of natural water bodies from potential leakage,
the Group installs professional containers for grease
separation and storage. Meanwhile, a professional agency
that is approved by the local environmental protection
bureau is appointed for examining and supporting sewage
treatment on an annual basis, thus minimising the Group’s
environmental impact.

To better manage its impacts of land and water discharge to
the environment, the Group strives to reduce its discharges
according to its targets.
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Using FY2021 as baseline year, in FY2022, the Group aims to:
PA2021 BAF REESF - M202281F - NEEETE

Solid waste Reduce the non-hazardous solid waste discharge per thousand m? to below
0.6 tonnes/’000mM?.

& REREZE Y BETFAREEEBEZDIHEEZEN0.6H, FFHK -

Wastewater Reduce the non-hazardous wastewater discharge per thousand m? to below
140.0 m®/’000m?.

REX e T ¥ REZEKBEMFEEEEN140.02 75K/ FFFK -
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A.2

In realising its targets, the Group embraces the concept of
“3R principle — Reduce, Reuse and Recycle” and actively
instils the recycling principle into its daily operations.
Meanwhile, as the wastewater generated by the Group
during the year under review was mainly municipal
wastewater from daily operations, the Group has adopted
effective measures to reduce its water consumption in
daily operations, which are further described in the next
subsection headed under A.2. Use of Resources.

Noise

In FY2021, the noise of the business activities of the
Group were mainly from the operations of machinery (e.g.
compressors in the warehouse operating zone), vehicle
transportation and loading/unloading practices (e.g.
trucks, cranes and forklifts), as well as other engineering
construction sources.

Geared toward lowering its noise impacts, the Group
establishes internal policies and assigns dedicated
personnel to carry out daily inspections of the equipment, in
order to spot and repair any irregularities timely. Meanwhile,
the Group also installs noise barriers and explosion-proof
doors as well as windows between the refrigerating station
and the control room in accordance with the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control of
Pollution from Environmental Noise” ( { F 2 A R LM IRIE
IRF55F5787%) ) and other relevant national regulations.

Use of Resources

In FY2021, the primary resources consumed by the Group
were electricity, water, gasoline, diesel, natural gas, heat,
paper and packaging materials. To effectively manage its
resources consumption, the Group keeps improving its
performance in resource use efficiency by setting up and
monitoring appropriate KPIs in regulating the procurement
practices and consumption of resources. Table 2 illustrates
the amount of different resources used by the Group.
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Table 2 The Group’s Total Use of Resources by Category in
FY2021 and FY2020

R HERERES

2 2021 8 F & 2020 Bf F <
SEZENESNERAFRE

FY2021 FY2020
2021 B 202081F
Amount Intensity! Amount Intensity
L BE! e TR’
Use of
Resources BREA Unit By (Unit/'000 m?) (Unit/*000 m?)
(Bfy/FEHR) (Bh/FTEHK)
Electricity B kWh TRE 10,607,795.0 17,4818  9,219,921.0 10,449.4
Diesel K L AF 1,008,323.1 1,810.0  1,498,872.5 1,698.7
Gasoline hab: L NS 178,157.3 2036 2787134 315.9
Natural gas RER M VAR 30,805.0 50.8 31,150.0 35.3
Heat #e KWh'000 FHRE’'000 12,830,699.6 21,145.1 - -
TOTAL ENERGY BREREREY kWh'000 FHE’ 000
CONSUMPTION 3¢ 12,855,131.9 21,185.4 28,309.9 3241
Water X M UAK 87,743.0 144.6 50,306.0 57.0
Packaging By plastic @ 28 Tonnes i 10.5 1.7x102 912 pieces -
materials ® By paper it Tonnes i - - 1,800 pieces -
By wood vl Tonnes 04 120 0.2 6,000 pieces -
Paper i kg N 5,158.0 85 20,767 235
1. Intensity for FY2021 was calculated by dividing the amount 2021 Bt 5F 89 % JE T A 2021

of resources the Group consumed in FY2021 by the

operating area in FY2021, which was 606,792.3 m?;

Intensity for FY2020 was extracted from the data in the ESG

Report 2020 of the Group;

The total energy consumption was calculated by adding up
the consumption of electricity, diesel, gasoline, natural gas
and heat of the Group in FY2021 according to the “How to
Prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange;

HEAEBERENERER
LA2021 Bf FF1E R WM TR
606,792.3 F KT EBH ¢

2020 F F R E Ty EL B A
EE2020FIRE - ttERE
SRS REUE

BRETR S FE 2 T ARIBE AT
B wERS g
MERRE Mtk = : IRIE
RARRE BUBIZIERIES]) - 15
NEBP 2021 ENTE S
S5 - R RARR R ERE
SHFEEARIETESD
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4.  The dramatic surge of energy consumption of the Group
was mainly due to the new inclusion of the heat consumed,
which was not included in the previous years; and

5. The consumption of packaging materials in FY2020 was
presented in the format of pieces, in order to ensure
the accuracy of information disclosed. With the Group’s
management approach of packaging materials improved in
FY2021, the corresponding packaging materials data was
disclosed in the form of total weight.

Electricity

The Group’s consumption of electricity mainly comes
from the daily operation of warehouses. In FY2021, the
total electricity consumption of the Group amounted to
10,607,795 kWh. During the year under review, a slight
increase of around 15.05% in total electricity usage was
recorded mainly due to the increase of business operation.

As electricity consumption directly links to its Scope
2 GHG emissions, the Group is dedicated to lower its
electricity consumption and thus better its performance
in decarbonisation. In FY2022, the Group aims to lowers
its electricity consumption per thousand m? to below 17.5
KWh’000/'000m?, with FY2021 as the bassline year.

To realise its target, the Group requires all of its subsidiaries
to stringently comply with the Group’s energy saving policy.
In addition, myriads of eco-friendly measures are taken by
the Group to manage its electricity consumption, including
but not limited to:

e Fully utilise the natural light whenever applicable;
e  Switch off all idling electrical appliances including lights
and air conditioners;

* Replace power-intensive lightings by energy efficient
LED lights;

BB ARAT

4. AREHGEREFEEBRET
FEHRIEAMBED
Hee - MR E—FEWL R
A K

5. BTHERITEELRNER
M 2020 B F B E AR
HEUGEHEAEY - &
2021 B AN R B B AR
EBIEENE  HER
EMBBBENEEELAZ2
Bl o

£

AEBEMNAEEEXERER
E# BT EE- R202158
F-AEENBEREESR
10,607,795 F E B o 7 [E B8
FERN BRAEEERHENN
15.05% * DEEHRREBHL
I INFTEL

HREEEHHERB2EESR
BEmERER $%lﬁm
waﬁfl\ﬁﬁ E HmKERE
KX RIB o R202281 F » &
EEEEN20021H FAEE
F BESTEAREEER
BEEM75TETRE T

REREBR  AEEEXRHE
FREH B AR BN ETAEE
RUBTBEBUER o Loh - AR EER
MEZHERREREEERE
BREETRR

s HEABATESMAAB

s HHMAREEZEHRRE
(BRERENER)

e FREREMLEDERRS
DI BRET



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

® Encourage employees to adopt natural ventilation or
ventilation fans for areas instead of air-conditioning
when applicable; and

e  Explore the feasibility on the use of renewable energy
in operations.

In the meantime, as the refrigerating facilities contribute
to most of the power consumption of the Group’s
warehouse, the Storage Department sets strict guidelines
for controlling and adjusting the operation time of facilities,
aiming to achieve better monitoring and control of its power
consumption within the Group.

Other energy resources

Gasoline and diesel were mainly used by the Group for
its transportation purposes while natural gas was used
for other daily operations during the year under review.
In FY2021, the Group also included its consumption of
purchased heat into its data collection scope so as to
demonstrate a more complete picture of environmental
performance.
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The amount of diesel, gasoline and natural gas consumed
by the Group declined by 26.72%, 36.08% and 1.11%
respectively as compared to those of FY2020. To better
monitor and control its energy consumption performance,
the Group sets the following targets:

AEEOZEH - UARAAR
H 7 B #2020 81 & 55 Bl R
26.72%  36.08% K 1.11% °
AL BRI R PR R H BE R R
B AEEREATER

Using FY2021 as baseline year, in FY2022, the Group aims to:
PA2021 B F REEF - R2022F - AEBE T :

Diesel Reduce the diesel consumption per thousand m2to below 19.4
kWh'’000/’000m?.

5 BESTIEREREREREZEMN 194 TEATRE FTEHK -

Gasoline Reduce the gasoline consumption per thousand m? to below 2.8
KWh'’000/’000m?.

i BESTERRVHEREREEER 28 TETREE FTEHK-

Natural Gas Reduce the natural gas consumption per thousand m? to below 0.6
KWh’000/°000m?.

RAR BEBTIRRRAREREREZER 06 TETER FTEFK-

Heat Reduce the heat consumption per thousand m? to below 21,145.1

kWh'’000/°000m2,

e BEET KRG BEREREREN 21,1451 TETRE FTFHK -

To reach the above targets, the Group will put more focus
on the sustainable solutions by upgrading its vehicle fleet in
terms of energy efficiency improvement and grasping any
opportunities for the use of renewable energy sources and
the wide application of electric vehicles.

Water

Water was mainly consumed by the management, epidemic
prevention and daily use in the Group. In FY2021, the
Group did not face any problems in sourcing water. The
water consumption of the Group in FY2021 amounted to
87,743.0 mé,

In view of the increase in water consumption as compared
to that in FY2020 due to the resumption of normal business,
the Group is dedicated to set a more specific target so as
to push forward a stronger water conservation effort. As
a Group-wise target, the Group aims to reduce its water
consumption intensity of FY2022 to below 144.6 m® per
'000m?with FY2021’s data being the baseline.
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To achieve its target, the Group emphasises on the
improvement of water conservation and utilisation efficiency.
Following its internal policies, the Group provides water
awareness training to its staff and assesses the conservation
performance among employees regularly. Meanwhile,
employees are required to adhere to the water saving
principles, which signs are posted in prominent places to
disseminate this concept throughout the organisation.

Paper

Paper was mostly used in the Group for its administrative
work. In FY2021, the amount of paper consumed by the
Group dropped significantly by 75.16% as compared to
that of FY2020. To keep up its effort in driving down the
consumption of paper and other paper-made products, the
Group continues to implement a series of effective internal
measures to regulate its employees’ practices and business
operations, including but not limited to:

e  Set double-side printing as the default mode of the
printers;

e  (Collect single-sided paper for reuse and recycling; and

e Embrace the concept of “Paperless Office” and
encourage the use of digital means for exchanging
information.

Packaging materials

In FY2021, the principal packaging materials used by the
Group were plastic bags and films, cartons and wooden
pallets. While the consumption of packaging materials is
inevitable to its logistic business activities, the Group takes
the responsibility for being conscious about the use of
packaging materials. As such, the Group will continue to
research and apply alternative packaging materials made
of recyclable content, striving to minimise its environmental
footprint to the largest extent possible.
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A4

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X% & /&2 Z Y&

The Environment and Natural Resources

As a leading logistics group that moves goods across
countries and provides a wide range of logistics solutions
and services, the Group deeply understands its impact on
the environment and remains steadfast in its commitment to
minimise the impacts.

According to the analysis of its business practices, the
relatively significant environmental impacts of the Group
in FY2021 were mainly the air and GHG emissions arose
from the consumption of fossil fuels and electricity during
operations. In light of these, the Group is determined to
control its procurement process of vehicles and refrigerators
to ensure that the priority can be given to the products with
better environmental performance. Meanwhile, the Group
has also been active in exploring the possibility of tapping
into the application of renewable energy and acquiring
vehicles fuelled by cleaner new alternatives instead of fossil
fuels.

Throughout the organisation, staff members are encouraged
to follow the Group’s sustainability strategies and reminded
to achieve its environmental targets. The Group believes
that behavioural change starts with knowledge, and
thus it equips its employees who play a key role in daily
business actions with internal programmes to advance their
environmental awareness and encourage them to make
continuous changes.

Climate Change

Several years ago, setting a net zero ambition was seen
as a moon-shot goal. Yet in 2021 the world witnessed the
historical moment of 140 countries pledging their carbon
neutrality goals in the COP26, including the “30.60 carbon
targets” of the PRC.
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In support of the national carbon goal and in response to
the gradually increasing demand from investors and the
wider society, in FY2021, the Group made a holistic view
of different climate scenarios and transition pathways and
identified several climate risks related to its business that
may cause significant impact.

The increase in frequency of extreme weather events such
as storms, flooding, heat/cold wave etc. may significantly
affect the transport conditions no matter on ground, air
or water, and subsequently the Group’s supply chain
and operation safety. Acknowledging this, the Group is
devoted to alleviating the risks by giving its drivers more
comprehensive training packages on how to cope with
emergencies and maintain close communications with
customers, while ensuring flexible and resilient transport
solutions.

Meanwhile, political action is gradually but beginning to
reflect the reality of climate change. Public consultation on
enhancing the carbon reporting obligations of companies
suggests that the Group may be subject to the mandatory
disclosure of its full scope of carbon emissions. In addition,
the enactment of carbon pricing or carbon tax may also
lead to the raise in price of raw materials or the replacement
of more expensive alternatives. As these transition risks
are potentially going to cause increasing operating cost
and lower revenue, the Group is aware of the significance
and urgency to pay particular attention decarbonising its
operations and to grasp the opportunity to master some
new low-carbon technologies which can greatly enhance its
competitive advantage and industry leading position.
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V. SOCIAL SUSTAINABILITY V. #ESBoli5EN
Employment and Labour Practices EREREIER
As a responsible business enterprise, the Group is committed to ER—XBEANEE  AEEK
the empowerment and care for all especially its staff. The Group R BEALEREI) BN
believes that it has the responsibility to support and enhance the MESRHEE AEERR A
well-being of its staff and bring about positive shared value to FEEXHRIEEETIRIL XA
them. To this end, the Group has been endeavouring to create BETREGRHEFREE - Bt
a sound working environment, in which the occupational health AEF-BERNEERTNIER
and safety of staff, diversity and inclusion in workplace, as well as RoBEREEES THBEEERE
the overall well-being all its workers are respected and promoted. 22 TEGAME T m A R P

BRI EREBRAL -
B.1 Employment B.1 EF

Staff Distribution of the Group in FY2021
R2021 B F A EENEE S M

800 766
700
600
500
400
300 237 240
200
86
100 46 25
: - H.
Male Female
B Lo
m General staff m Management Director and senior management
—RET EEAR EELENEEAS
The Group views talents as its most valuable assets and the RAEBBAARAZAEBERD
key driving factor in ensuring the success and sustainable BEEREGKNMIFBEEE
development of the Group. In FY2021, there were a total WEEERSHEX - 1K20218
1,400 staff working for the Group, in which 1,049 were male F o AEBE1,400BERE
workers and 351 were female workers. More detail can be 8 +1,049% 5 8 T k351
found in Table S3 in APPENDIX — PERFORMANCE TABLE. BTHEBT - BEFIFEHNHK

—BERPHRSS -
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Law compliance

In FY2021, the Group abided by the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC that were material to the Group’s
business, including but not limited to:

s

e “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China” (£
AR FEFEH & 8)%);

e “Labour Contract Law of the People’s Republic of
China” (FZE AR KB LB [F)E);

e “Employment Promotion Law of the People’s Republic
of China” (1 # A R Bl 5t (2 1 X); and

*  “Insurance Law of the People’s Republic of China” (1
A R AR & RE).

During the year under review, the Group provided its
employees with mandatory social insurance and medical
insurance schemes. The Human Resources Department
of the Group is responsible for reviewing and updating the
relevant company policies on a regular basis in accordance
with the latest laws and regulations.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group establishes the “Labour and Personnel
System” ( (& AZEH|E) ), which specifies the detailed
recruitment procedures and promotion requirements of
the Group. To attract talents who are in sync with the core
culture of the Group, the Group selects applicants through
a rigorous selection process, including written examination
of professional skills, comprehensive ability tests and
supervisor interviews.
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Besides, the Group has periodic plans and budgets
to conduct performance appraisals. Recognising the
employees who have demonstrated consistently strong
performance and became the role models in the Group,
especially in areas of growth and operational excellence, the
Group takes proactive initiatives to offer them management
positions. Concerning the career growth of junior staff, the
Group provides a clear career development path, offering
promotion and pay raise for the outstanding employees who
have served the Group for over three years.

Compensation and dismissal

According to the Group’s “Salary Management System”
( (HENEIRHIE ) ), the salary composition is divided into
a monthly basic salary, a monthly bonus and a year-end
performance bonus. An “Annual Salary System” ( [ F%f
#l ] ) is implemented for the senior management, in which
salary standards are approved by the Board. Meanwhile, a
“Performance-based Salary System” ( {E{LIEKXTEH) )
is implemented for middle-management and general staff,
of which salaries are based on employees’ performances
and determined by the General Manager. To motivate,
reward, and recognise the existing employees who have
made significant contributions to the Group, compensation
reviews and salary adjustments are regularly conducted
with reference to the overall market levels, inflation rate,
profitability of the Group and employee’s past performance.

Meanwhile, any termination of employment contract is
strictly based on reasonable and lawful grounds according
to the “Labour and Personnel System” ( (N AZHIE) ),
and relevant laws and regulations. The Group prohibits any
kinds of unlawful or unreasonable dismissals.

Working hours and rest periods

Reasonable working hours and rest periods are arranged for
the employees of the Group in accordance with the “Provisions
of the State Council on Employees’ Working Hours” ( ]
TP B B T TEREAIARE ) ). Overtime working is not
encouraged by the Group, yet if employees need to work
overtime to finish their tasks, corresponding compensation
such as overtime pay or extra leave will be made in
accordance to its “Attendance System” ( (EZE5HIE) ).
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In addition to basic paid annual leave and statutory holidays
stipulated by the local governments, employees are also
entitled to additional leave benefits such as marriage leave,
paternity leave and compassionate leave.

Equal-opportunity, diversity and anti-discrimination

As an equal opportunity employer, the Group is dedicated
to developing a diverse and inclusive workforce of engaged
employees. The “Guidance on Professional Conducts” ( B
¥125F355]) ) is established by the Group to promote anti-
discrimination, diversity and equal opportunity in all human
resources and employment decisions.

Having zero tolerance for any form of discrimination which
can hinder the Group’s development by damaging its
diverse teams and inclusive cultures, training and promotion
opportunities, dismissals and retirement policies are
determined irrespective of employees’ gender, race, age,
disability, family status, marital status, sexual orientation,
religion beliefs, nationality or any other non-job-related
factors in all business units.

Equal opportunity policies are formulated in accordance
with the relevant legislation, ordinances and regulations. The
Human Resources Department is responsible for managing
the relevant internal policies and monitoring the compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, as well as addressing
any incidences that arise. Employees are encouraged to
voice out and report any discrimination or harassment
during work.

Benefits and welfare

The Group provides its team members with healthcare,
retirement and other insurances to support their quality
of life in accordance with the relevant national laws and
regulations. To enable its people to thrive in the workplace,
the Group also strive to strengthen the sense of belonging
of its employees by providing them with housing subsidies,
annual physical examination and special holidays subsidies.
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B2

In FY2021, the Group organize employees to hold a series
of activities in celebration of the 100th anniversary of
the founding of the Communist Party of China, including
watching movies, visiting patriotic education exhibitions
and other forms; to distribute festive gifts to employees on
important festivals such as the Spring Festival and the Mid-
autumn Festival, to organize activities such as writing Fu
characters and sending Spring couplets.

In FY2021, the Group was in full compliance with relevant
laws and regulations in relation to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
welfare and other benefits that have a significant impact on
the Group.

Health and Safety

Keeping its employees safe is the highest priority and an
ethical responsibility for the Group. To provide and maintain
a secure and hygienic working condition for employees, the
Group establishes strict internal safety and health policies,
which are in line with the relevant laws and regulations the
PRC, including but not limited to:

e “Production Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China” ( (REARKMBEZ2EEZE) );

e “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases” ( { FZE AR
BB ZEmPa7%) ); and

e “Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance” ( { T15

RERAERGL) ).

As a logistics company, employees’ safety and well-being
always remains the priority of the Group’s considerations.
The Group formulates a comprehensive mechanism and
stringent safety and labour practice standards, namely
“Occupational Health Management System” ( (B2 5
EIRH|E) ), to minimise the risk of accidents at workplace
and enhance employees’ health and safety awareness. A
24-hour emergency hotline and the “Emergency Response
Plan” ( (ZRE={FMESTEZ) ), which covers a wide range
of incidents and calamities, are also set up to ensure the
coordination among all functional departments in case of
any emergencies.
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Focusing on embedding a Zero Harm culture through
proactive leadership, the Group establishes its internal
health and safety management committee to protect the
occupational safety of employees. The Safety Management
Committee formed by the managers of various departments
is responsible for the prevention and control of occupational
diseases, managing work-related health issues, organising
safety training courses and reporting to the directors of the
Group. Meanwhile, the Group has obtained three system
certifications including ISO 45001 Occupational Health and
Safety Management System, ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System and ISO 9001 Quality Management
System.

To ensure the safety of workers during daily operations, a
series of measures are set up by the Group in the logistics
and warehouse service businesses as the guidance for
safe operation. For instance, water tanks, storage batteries,
engine oil, fuel oil and tires of the vehicles are checked in
advance every day to ensure that all vehicles are absolutely
safe. Regular inspections and maintenance of vehicles for
transportation are carried out on a weekly, monthly and
quarterly basis. Through daily morning assemblies, the
Group assesses its employees’ physiological and mental
state. In the meantime, to ensure the safe use of working
trolleys and improve operation efficiency, clean paths are
kept at both ends of the goods racks to maintain smooth
passage between the working area and the storage area.

To achieve an accident-free workplace, the Group is
committed to continuing to upskill the managers and
supervisors to integrate critical control measures in business
operations. Regular occupational training programmes will
also be strengthened by the Group to enhance the safety
awareness of employees.

In the past three years including the reporting year, the
Group recorded zero work-related fatalities. Meanwhile, in
FY2021, the Group recorded 5 work-related injury cases
with 5 staff injured causing 287 workdays lost.
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In FY2021, the Group was not in violation of any of the
relevant laws and regulations in relation to providing a safe
working environment and protecting the employees from
occupational hazards that have a significant impact on the
Group.

Responding to the Pandemic

In FY 2021,the Group promoted regular epidemic
prevention and control, sought to support its employee
through the crisis and ensure everyone’s healthy, safety and
wellbeing are taken care of. In response to the requirements
of the local authority, the Group implements a series of
prevention measures to safeguard the safety of employees
while maintain the stable business continuity of the Group.

202181 & - AREE W & E
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20218 F - AEE BRI
THRRE BAXBETIH
BEK  WERERETSEAN
i Z2MEWL - RERE
HWHEBIFMAINER  AEEE
T —RHIFEBF R - AREE
BIR%E  RRRFBAEEE

Uphold the principle of social distancing, control
the flow of people and prevent the gathering of
staff

B B RERA - ZEHEIAR  BTIEABRE

Sanitize the workplace on a regular basis

EHH TRSETTES

Enact body temperature screening and show
health code before the entrance of all workplaces

FEHEANFTE LIRS FTRTE TR ARRII R & 5%

Require disinfected certificates for all goods before
acceptance
A EMRWAIERESER

BHIRE KB B

Conduct risk assessments in advance and
formulate contingency plans for epidemic
prevention

Require all staff and customers to wear masks
properly at all times during contact
ERMBEIEABNE ARG RIZF IR ERM
BHOF

Be equipped with sufficient masks, gloves,
disinfectants and other necessary prevention and
control materials
RERHNOE - FE HELZSVEHEYE

Require all delivery-related personnel to conduct
nucleic acids tests regularly
ERMBRBEMRNEA B TEEEITZB A
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Meanwhile, as business resume in the post-Pandemic era,
the Group enacts a series of policies to ensure the smooth
running of business while safeguarding the health for its staff
and clients. In particular, on the premise of adhering to the
requirements of epidemic prevention and control, the Group
provides supporting services for customers on a duty-shift
system to ensure 24-hour awareness on health control.
Meanwhile, the Group keeps on its efforts on the promotion
of epidemic prevention and control awareness as well as
minimises unnecessary face-to-face meetings through the
uptake of digital communication means.

Development and Training

Facilitating its employees to thrive, the Group sees training
as a strategic investment which benefits the mutual growth
of staff members as well as the Group itself. To this end,
the Group considers a suitable and customised package of
training programmes for both its newly hired employees and
experienced workers based on their needs and interests.

Normally, a complete induction training is provided to the
new hires, introducing the corporate culture, organisational
structure, and occupational health and safety (OH&S),
while non-scheduled profession-oriented courses are
offered to the experienced staff according to corporate and
individual needs. To further enhance the professional skills
of its employees and meet the Group’s development goal,
employees are highly motivated to attend external training
courses and take professional qualification examinations.

In FY2021, a total of 865 employees of the Group received
14,427 hours of training, including but not limited to courses
of Induction Training, Promotion Training, Quality Control
Training, Health & Safety Training and Systems Management
Training. More details regarding the employees receiving
training in this reporting year can be found in Table S5 and
S6 in APPENDIX — PERFORMANCE TABLE.
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B.4 Labour Standards

In FY2021, the Group abided by the “Labour Law of the
People’s Republic of China” ( {EARKEFELHNE) )
and other applicable laws and regulations in the PRC to

prohibit any child and forced labour employment.

Having zero tolerance to the illegal employment of child
labour, underage workers and forced labour, the Group
strictly abides by the State Council’s “Provisions on the
Prohibition of Using Child Labour” ( (ZEIEFRZETRE) ).
According to its internal policies, the Human Resources
Department is responsible for requiring all job applicants
to provide valid identity documents to ensure that they are
lawfully employable prior to confirmation of any employment.
The HR Department is also responsible for the maintaining

and reviewing the employee records.

Once the Group identifies any case which violates the
relevant labour laws, regulations or standards, the relevant
employment contract will be terminated at once and the
relevant employees responsible for the management of

human resources will be disciplined accordingly.

In FY2021, the Group was in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations in relation to the prevention of child
and forced labour that have a significant impact on the

Group.

Operating Practices

B.5 Supply Chain Management

As a responsible logistic business enterprise, the Group
collaborates with a wide range of suppliers and purchases
products including electronic parts, vehicles and its parts,
as well as raw materials for steel production and frozen
meat. The Group recognises that its procurement decisions
can cause significant environmental and social impacts,
therefore it strives to uphold its high standards of business

conduct along its supply chain.
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The Group mainly maintain stable, secure and effective
partnership with suppliers by aligning them with the
Group’s strict “Supplier Conduct Code” ( (e 1T A%
HI) ), which provides clear guidance about the Group’s
commitments and expectations on sustainability including
the respect for human rights especially for their employees
and the compliance with local environmental protection laws
and regulations.

To keep up the stable communication with its suppliers, the
Group signs the memorandum with its suppliers and actively
communicates with them through digital means such as
phone calls, emails, instant messages and video conference
especially during the times of Pandemic. Meanwhile,
regular on-site visits are also conducted by the Operation
Department for more efficient communication and review of
performance from time to time.

The Group select its suppliers based on the result of
the Preliminary Investigation Report of each candidate
prepared by the Operation Department, listing the potential
partners’ basic business information, licences, operational
and financial performances, as well as the involved non-
compliance or legal cases. Besides, the Group has a
qualified supplier list that will be reviewed annually against
four main aspects, namely regulatory compliance, employee
rights, health and safety and environmental protection,
to ensure all suppliers’ performances meet the Group’s
standards.

To manage the potential environmental and social
risks along the supply chain, the Group implements
a differentiated management strategy for its suppliers
to identify their latent risks and ensure they operate in
accordance with the “Supplier Code Conduct”. In particular,
a detailed list of Risk Points and Prevention and Control
Measures are constructed in managing the potential
significant risks of the cold chain logistic business from
three perspectives: procurement, storage and sales. In
the meantime, audits and evaluations are conducted by
the Group’s Legal Department jointly with the Finance
Department to ensure no illegal activities are involved in the
partnership.
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Case Study

as well as the subsequent claiming actions.

In FY2021, the global shipping was tight due to the
interruption caused by the Pandemic, leading to a
delayed delivery of goods. In response to this crisis,
the Operation Department of the Group actively
communicated with overseas parties regarding the
delivery and shipping schedules in advance, while got
early prepared for the revise or the termination of orders

In promotion of green and sustainable procurement
practices, the Group prioritises goods with origins that are
conforming to the international production safety standards
during procurement, while putting the collaboration with
suppliers with green and eco-friendly awareness in the first

place during suppliers selection.

In FY2021, the Group maintained stable business
relationship with all its suppliers. During the year under
review, the Group had 251 suppliers and 16 suppliers
located in the PRC and Hong Kong respectively, to which
the aforementioned suppliers management policies are

applied.

B.6 Product Responsibility

Aspiring to become an expert in the PRC’s integrated
logistics and supply chain, the Group upholds the concept
of precautionary principle during its daily operations, with
the potential risks prejudged beforehand, whole process
supervision during projects and the active review afterwards
as its main responsibility concepts. The Group focuses
on serving its customers politely and compliantly so as to
protect the rights and interests of all parties. The Group did

not experience any recall incident in FY2021.

Quality of Service

In order to enhance the safety and high quality of its logistics
and warehouse services during operations and after-
sales, all logistics and warehousing work before the official
delivery to end customers must be operated by designated
supporting service providers approved by the Management.
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In order to maintain stable service quality even during the
disturbance of the Pandemic, the Group actively explores
multiple logistics solutions such as railway, road and sea-
rail combined transportation etc. to preserve the continuous
supply of goods. Meanwhile, the Group also expands the
diversity of its supplier-client network and explores a new
supply chain model with the adaptation of digital storage
technologies in response to the fast-changing market
demand.

Logistics

As a national 5A-level integrated service logistics company,
the Group has been invariably committed to providing
its customers with people-oriented, tailor-made and
professional services. The Group keeps reviewing its
services and making corresponding improvements from the
ESG lens, which allows the Group to refine its operations
on a continuous basis and be prepared to support its
customers with top-notch services in compliance with the
stricter regulations in various national jurisdictions.

Safety of Goods

To ensure the safety of goods during transportation, dash
cams are set up to inspect the condition of the transporting
vehicles, while devices are adopted to prevent accidents
such as the dropout of head and trailer as well as forgetting
to close the flying wing.

To track the location of vehicles and goods in real time, the
Group builds the monitoring system and cargo tracking
system, which enables the Group to have timely access to
the status of cargo transportation.
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Warehouse

Safety of Goods

To ensure the safety and strengthen the security of goods,
a 24/7 security inspection system is established within the
warehouse area, while special inspections are carried out on
a quarterly basis. In FY2021, more than 40 sets of cameras
and ancillary equipment were installed and renewed to
ensure that all areas in the general bonded warehouse of
the Group are under surveillance.

To ensure the safety of goods in the warehouse, written
documents such as packing list and inspection report of
the goods are required and strictly regulated by the Group.
Unpacking inspections are performed as well to identify and
manage any incoming goods with hazardous substances.

Complaints

Dedicating to its customer service optimisation, the Group
values customer feedback and formulates a series of
customer service management systems and maintains
continuous dialogues with its customers. Once any
substantiated complaint is received, specific departments
of the Group are responsible for dealing with the case and
responding to the customer with clear plans for product
return, exchange or compensation in a timely manner.

During the year under review, the Group did not receive
any substantial complaints about the service quality and
the customer satisfaction remained at a high level from
customer surveys.

Privacy matters

It is crucial for the Group to safeguard the security of its

business data and the privacy of its customers to prevent

any potential losses. Striving to protect all sensitive data, the

Group abides by the relevant laws and regulations such as

the “Law on Protection of Consumer Rights and Interests of

the People’s Republic of China” (P A R LB Y & & ##
RIREE).
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The Information Management Department formulates
and monitors the implementation of the strict policies to
safeguard clients’ privacy and the internal information of the
Group. A network data centre is established to ensure the
cyber security of the Group, while risk management and
technical incident recovery plans are developed to protect
personal data and mitigate losses in case of any accidents.
Meanwhile, a confidentially agreement is normally signed
with relevant parties for business that ensures no disclosure
of any sensitive data to the third-party without authorisation.

In FY2021, the Group was in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations regarding health and safety,
advertising, intellectual property, labelling and privacy
matters of its products and services that are material to the
Group. Adhering to the reporting principle of materiality,
policies and approaches regarding recall, advertising,
intellectual property and labelling, which are not material to
the Group given its business nature, are not disclosed in
this section.

B.7 Anti-corruption

The Group believes that the continued success of a
business is built on the stakeholders’ trust and confidence.
To conduct its business with the highest standards of
ethics and integrity, the Group strictly adheres to the
local laws and regulations relating to anti-corruption and
bribery, irrespective of the area or country where the Group
operates, including but not limited to:

e  “Anti-Corruption Law of the People’s Republic of
China” (P2 AR HME R B HE);

e “Law of the People’s Republic of China on Anti-money

Laundering” ({2 A R FE R 28 88%);

*  “Interim Provisions on Banning Commercial Bribery” (%

R ERRRITAHNEITRE);
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e “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic
of China” (AR KFBR T EE HFIE);

e “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” (Cap. 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong); and

e “Anti-Money Laundering and Counter-Terrorist
Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance” (Cap. 615
of the Laws of Hong Kong)

The Group strictly regulates its business processes and
staff behaviour based on the Code of Conduct as clearly
listed in its Employee Handbook. Business Department
is responsible for conducting risk prevention measures
including monthly self-inspection, legal and financial control
of all business units involved in lawsuits and the use of
funds to prevent any suspicious deals or transactions.

Meanwhile, the Group sets up a whistleblowing system
and assigns specific Discipline Staff for the investigation
and handling of suspected activities. Employees can
report directly to their supervisors or the Discipline Staff,
who will then investigate and verify the related evidence
and report to the Company’s Discipline Department and
the Management. Where any crime is substantiated by
the Group, a report will be submitted promptly to relevant
regulators or law enforcement authorities when the
Management considers it necessary.

In FY2021, the Group regularly arranged its staff and
directors to learn and refresh their memories on the national
anti-corruption policies and the Group’s internal Code of
Conduct. To raise their awareness on business ethics from
time to time, these kinds of training were organised at least
once a month with at least one hour duration each time in
the reporting year.
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During the year under review, the Group abided by the
relevant laws and regulations in relation to bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering that have a significant impact
on the Group. In the meantime, the Group recorded zero
concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought
against the Group or its staff members.

Community

B.8 Community Investment

2021 was another year the world persevered through
difficulties caused by the Pandemic. Despite the effective
control of Pandemic in most regions in the PRC, the Group
still strictly followed the anti-epidemic measures imposed
by the local and national government regarding the
maintenance of social distance.

As a good corporate citizen, the Group still focuses for its
support of the local communities as this is an important part
of its social license to operate. The Group focuses on the
poverty alleviation of the local population and the building
of capacity of local communities. As such, the Group’s
support came in the form of creating local job opportunities
and prioritising local suppliers during the year under review.

Putting the original intention and mission (N1, &L (#
an) in its heart, the Group is committed to carrying out more
charitable activities which align with its philosophy in the
coming year.
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VI. APPENDIX - PERFORMANCE TABLE VI. Bt —EREE
Table S3. Number of Employees by Age Group, Gender, #*<S3. 2021 W F AR K E IR F i 4
Employment Type, Position Type, Geographical Locations of The Al MR EEEDS - B i
Group in FY2021 ! SorES AR
Unit: Number of employees Age group
By EEAY Fie4 5l
Aged Aged Aged Aged
30 or between between 51 or
Gender below 31 and 40 41 and 50 above Total
30 5% 315 41 5% 51 5%
14 3l HAT Z405% Z505% HUE wmy
Male St 86 448 383 132 1,049
Female 7 40 217 83 11 351
Total e 126 665 466 143 1,400
Unit: Number of employees Position
B EEAH Bifz
Director
General and senior
Gender staff Management management Total
EEREK
45l —RET EEAE BEEAE By
Male XL 766 237 46 1,049
Female g 240 86 25 351
Total B 1,006 323 71 1,400
Employment type EfEEa
Full time Part time Out-sourced Total
2R R M B
1,083 111 206 1,400
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R HERERES

Geographical location b 35

Number of
Locations employees
thE EEAH
PRC H 1,393
Others HAth 7
Total: FEEg 1,400

1. The employment data in headcount was obtained from the
Group’s Human Resources Department based on the employment
contracts entered into between the Group and its employees.
The data covered employees engaged in a direct employment
relationship with the Group according to relevant local laws and
workers whose work and/or workplace was controlled by the
Group. The methodology adopted for reporting on employment
data set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report
— Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the

Stock Exchange.

Table S4. Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group, Gender and
Geographical Locations in FY2021 1

1. BIZBERBASEEHEEEZ
REIZMEFEER - EAEENA
HEREER - WBUBRERIEE
A RARENEEA HEERREA
REEE U RE TR, S TIES
FIASEZFIMBT - bildRE
BT 8RR AR IATI BN A
PR mml e EHBRE - HE R
ERME —MER3 - HERAREN
ERmREER] -

R S4. 2021 I EFREFEAR - 1R
KipigglomEE RAR

Unit: Number of employees Age group
B EEAH FERaR
Aged Aged
Aged30or  between  between Aged 51 or
Gender below 311040 41 to 50 above Total
30 5% 315 M 51 5%
5l HZUT Z407%% Z507%% ZUE BH
Male o 54 75 34 11 174
Employee turnover rate (%) EERAE (%) 62.79 16.74 8.88 8.33 16.59
Female peg 12 22 3 1 38
Employee turnover rate (%) EERKE (%) 30.00 10.14 3.61 9.09 10.83
Total me 66 97 37 12 212
Total employee tumnover rate (%) 421 & i 4 & (%) 52.38 14.59 7.94 8.39 15.14
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Geographical location il 13
Employee
Employee turnover
Locations turnover rate (%)
hE BEERAAE EERKXE(%)
PRC h 210 15.08
Others HAh 2 28.57
1. The turnover data in headcount was obtained from the Group's 1. BIRKEEERBEASBESA(E
Human Resources Department based on the employment BV HERBER - #AEHE
contracts entered into between the Group and its employees. HIANEREER - BLRAER
Turnover rate was calculated by dividing the number of employees BB ANEE 2021 S FNBER S
who resigned in FY2021 by the number of employees in FY2021. THBRA2021 M FHNE THME
The methodology adopted for reporting on turnover data set oo FalsRE B TmABUEFTIRA
out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG Report — B 77 0% Th RO B 32 BT 8 B[ 2R 4]
Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued by the BEERE - g RERAWME — Mk
Stock Exchange. 3 HEMREIIERRERER]
Table S5. Number and Percentage of Employees Trained in the 7 S5. 2021 I F A& Bz M Rl R B
Group by Gender and Position Type in FY2021 * UM INEE ABRIGE
Unit: Number of employees Position
B EEAH B
Director
General and senior
Gender staff Management management Total
EERER
% 5l —RET EEAE EEAE me
Male Sk 442 210 34 686
% of employees trained X 3Il1E E15 L (%) 51.10 24.28 3.93 79.31
Female pog 115 40 24 179
% of employees trained S 3)ll1&E B15LE (%) 13.29 4.62 2.77 20.69
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Total Employees Trained:

R HERERES

ZIEREAH :

Director
General and senior
staff Management management Total
EERE&
—RET EEAB EEAB me
Total e 557 250 58 865
% of employees trained 5 FIl{E E16 L (%) 64.39 28.90 6.71 61.79

1. The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human
Resources Department. Training refers to the vocational training
that the Group’s employees attended in FY2021. The methodology
adopted for reporting on the number and percentage of employees
trained set out above was based on “How to Prepare an ESG
Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs” issued
by the Stock Exchange.

Table S6. Training Hours Received by the Employees of the
Group by Gender and Position Type in FY2021 !

BIFIIEBERAIEEROANE
R ER - FIREAEEET
E2021 A F 2 Mgl 1531 - &
MRE B TRIIABFE DL BT
BT R B 89 75 5K Ty B A Bt 32 P 3¢ 4
R EBIRE - B REAR
& —HiER3 S RIREIBIE R
&6/ -

% S6. 2021 Bf F ANEEIZ MBI B

287 R B Xl 8

Unit: Training Hours Position
By EAIRE Bifz
Director
General and senior
Gender staff Management management Total
EERE&
5l —®RET BEEAE BEAE By
Male M 2923 1774 1651 6348
Average training hours 191531185 2K 3.82 7.49 35.89 6.05
Female i 1908 5221 950 8097
Average training hours  SFH¥55 585 £ 7.95 60.71 38.00 23.02
Total e 4831 6995 2601 14427
Average training hours 191531185 2 4.80 21.66 36.63 10.31

1. The training information was obtained from the Group’s Human
Resources Department. The methodology adopted for reporting
training hours set out above was based on “How to Prepare an
ESG Report — Appendix 3: Reporting Guidance on Social KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange.
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The Company believes that stringent corporate governance practices
can enhance credibility and transparency and are in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company. The Company has established a
complete set of code on corporate governance practices —“Handbook
of Corporate Governance Practices” pursuant to the requirements
of the GEM Listing Rules. Save as disclosed below, the Company
has complied with all the requirements of the Corporate Governance
Code (the “Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the reporting year, save for the deviation of Code
Provisions A.2.1 and A.6.7.

SECURITIES TRANSACTION BY THE DIRECTORS

The Group has adopted a code of dealing in securities by the Directors
of the Group, which was formulated in accordance with Rules 5.48 to
5.68 of the GEM Listing Rules for the purpose of setting out its own
required standards for assessment of the conduct of the Directors
in dealings in the securities of the Group. Upon enquiries made to
each Director by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the code of dealing in securities by the Directors.

THE BOARD

The Board of the Company comprises 8 Directors which includes 1
executive Director, 4 non-executive Directors and 3 independent non-
executive Directors, among which, Yang Weihong is the chairman and
executive Director; Li Jian, Peng Bo, Jo Shibin and Zheng Yuying are
non-executive Directors; Cheng Xinsheng, Japhet Sebastian Law and
Peng Zuowen are independent non-executive Directors, details of the
members of the Board are set out under the section headed “Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management”.
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The Board of the Company is responsible for general meetings, and
to exercise the functions granted by the general meetings and the
articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”). The major
responsibilities of the Board include formulating the business plans
and investment advices of the Company, convening general meetings
and signing resolutions proposed at the general meetings, formulating
and reviewing the corporate governance policies and practices of
the Company, reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management,
reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, developing,
reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct applicable to employees
and Directors and “Handbook of Corporate Governance Practices”,
and reviewing the Company’s compliance with the Code and
disclosure in the “Corporate Governance Report” of the Company. The
interests of shareholders and the Company is the primary concern for
every member of the Board. Directors should always comply with the
relevant laws and regulations in a dedicated manner. The management
of the Company is responsible to the Board, to exercise the board
resolutions and report to the chairman and the Board in respect of the
operation of the Company in a timely manner. The management timely
provides the updated information to the member of the Board every
month by delivery of monthly business report and statements, which
set out the performance, financial position and prospects and other
things of the Company that are fair and easy to understand.

All the independent non-executive Directors appointed by the
Company have extensive experience in finance or enterprise
management and other professional areas. Acting in a careful and
detailed manner, independent Directors also need to safeguard
the interests of the Company and the shareholders by providing
independent advice relating to connected transactions and material
issues of the Company and providing professional recommendations
for the long-term and stable development of the Company’s business.
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The Directors are subject to a term of office of 3 years and shall be
eligible for re-election upon expiry of the term in accordance with the
Articles. The Board considers that the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors could maintain a reasonable
balance with the executive Directors of the Board, so as to safeguard
the interests of the Company and its shareholders. The non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors perform their
responsibilities of developing the Company’s policies by providing
constructive opinions.

During the reporting year, the Company complied with the
requirements of Rules 5.05 (1) and (2) and 5.05A of the GEM Listing
Rules. As of the end of the reporting year, the Board of the Company
comprises 3 independent non-executive Directors, among which
Cheng Xinsheng has the competent professional qualification in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 5.05 (2). The independent
non-executive Directors appointed by the Company represent at least
one-third of the Board members.

The Board considers that the following features or mechanisms are
effective in ensuring that the Board is provided with independent views
and opinions:

1.  The Company has only one executive Director and all the
other seven Directors are non-executive Directors who are
independent of each other and of senior management and have
no relationship with each other.

2. The independent non-executive Directors are required to review
their independence on an annual basis.

3.  None of the Directors is beneficially interested in the share capital
of any member of the Group or has any right to subscribe or
nominate persons to subscribe for securities in any member of
the Group.

4.  All Directors may seek advice from the Company’s Legal
Department and also from an independent adviser at the
Company’s expense.

After reassessment of the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors by the Company in January 2022, the Company
considered that each of the independent non-executive Directors has
complied with all independence guidelines set out in Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules.
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There is no financial, business, family or material relationship among
the Board members.

A training was provided for each new Director of the Company after
his/her appointment, to ensure he/she would understand the operation
and business of the Group and be fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations as a Director. The Group provides briefings and
seminars to all Directors, so as to enhance his/her awareness of
the relevant GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements as well as the latest developments in the business of the
Group. During the reporting year, the Directors complied with Code
Provision A.6.5 by the following ways:
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Reading Materials Seminar

Director 2= MEE R e
Executive Director HITES
Yang Weihong 1B RTAL v \
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Li Jian g V \
Peng Bo £ v v
Jo Shibin " V \
Zheng Yuying B8 v v
Independent Non-executive NFHITES

Directors
Cheng Xinsheng ERE V \
Japhet Sebastian Law & v V
Peng Zuowen EAEX v v
Zhou Zisheng EI=E2] v v

(resigned on 15 September 2021) (R20214F9 4 15 HEFHE)
The Board held ten Board meetings in 2021 to discuss and decide on ZEEEMR2021 FEARBIT T HAES

material strategies, material operating issues, financial issues and other
matters as required in the Articles. The Company has kept the detailed
minutes of the relevant meetings.
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The attendance of the Board members during the year is set out as

EZgNERAFELF RN

follows: T
Audit Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee = Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
ENZEE FMWZEEE REZES
Directors Ex Exged 23 23 23 RRAE
Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held during tenure (Attendance)
ERHEYE ETHNERETHA (HEXR)
Executive Director TES
Yang Weihong CTerl 10/10 (100%) N/A N/A 1/1 (100%) 2/2 (100%)
NEH NEH
Non-executive Directors FYTES
Li Jian e 10/10 (100%) N/A N/A N/A 2/2 (100%)
NEH TER NEH
Peng Bo £ 10/10 (100%) 1/1 (100%) N/A N/A 2/2 (100%)
(appointed as a member of (Ro021 ¢ NER NEH
the Audlt Committoe 1155 AEZF
on 5 November 2021) ERZEERE)
Jo Shibintete! kg 8/10 (80%) N/A N/A N/A 1/2 (50%)
NEH NEH NEH
Zheng Yuying HF& 10/10 (100%) N/A N/A N/A 2/2 (100%)
NEH NEH NEH
Independent BYFGTES
Non-executive Director
Cheng Xinsheng il 10/10 (100%) 5/5 (100%) 1/1 (100%) N/A 2/2 (100%)
TER
Japhet Sebastian Law Py g 10/10 (100%)  5/5 (100%) 1/1(100%)  1/1(100%)  2/2 (100%)
Peng Zuowen ZEX 10/10 (100%) N/A 1/1 (100%) 1/1 (100%) 2/2 (100%)
il
Zhou Zisheng EI=E2 5/5 (100%) 4/4 (100%) N/A N/A 2/2 (100%)
(resigned on (Ro021 F NER TER
15 September 2021) 9 A 15 AFHE)
Note: BRE -

1. Mr. Jo Shibin appointed Mr. Li Jian to attend two Board meetings and
one general meeting. These three attendances were not included in
Mr. Jo Shibin’s attendance. Mr. Jo Shibin did not attend the meeting
in person due to his personal reasons, which is not in compliance with

Code Provision A.6.7.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1, the roles of the chairman of the
Board (the “Chairman”) and the chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division of
responsibilities between the Chairman and the chief executive should
be clearly established and set out in writing.

Having considered the need of the Company’s business development,
the Board is still of the opinion that the combination of the roles of
Chairman and president (the “President”) (which is equivalent to the
position of chief executive) can effectively formulate and implement the
strategies of the Group, and make appropriate decisions which are in
the interest of the shareholders as a whole. From 11 May 2018 to the
date of this report, the roles of Chairman and President were assumed
by Mr. Yang Weihong. Mr. Yang Weihong has extensive experience in
enterprise management and has been directors of various companies
responsible for the management issues. In the future, the Board will
continue to review the effectiveness of the corporate governance
structure of the Group in the light of its business development needs,
identify suitable candidates and separate the positions of Chairman
and President in due course.

At the fourth meeting of the fourth session of the Board of the
Company held on 20 March 2018, Mr. Yang Weihong was appointed
as the President of the Company, details of which were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 20 March 2018.

At the 2019 annual general meeting convened on 19 June 2020, Mr.
Yang Weihong was re-elected as an executive Director of the fifth
session of the Board of the Company and Mr. Yang Weihong was
elected as the Chairman at the first meeting of the fifth session of the
Board of the Company convened on the same day

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

FEATTHAAR

BETABGXA21 EFEEF(=E
FHETREHNACEERY - X TE
B — ARRRE - T/FRBITHAE 2 HB
NN TRERBZEREL AZEINE -

ERIANAEBERNTE B2
RAE - AFEFEEEH (T8 ] (AR
HERITEAE)® AR A R HIE &
HITAREBARE - MBS BEREF
HHBEERE - B2018F5 811 HEXR
WEBH - EREFREHRBBELLE—A
BE -GEATEECXEREFAERE
EMLR  —HEREZERAREEERL
BEAESEE® - KK EFSNERED
ARERRTFE BERTIASEELEE
SBRBHIN S - MESEHAE -
2 fF B AR Y BR AL ©

aN

JELES

R2018F 3 A20 B ARRIENEEET
FIRESF EBHEA A EERETARR
BEBS  FBHANALQBN20184F3
A20B TR AL o

M®2020F 6 A19H B A M2019F [ &
RAFAS FBEALEENERETS
ARREREEFEWNITES - WRAEA
BRNARREARESEE —AgEL
BRGEALAEEEIER o

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

77



78

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

=f

EREE

TERM OF OFFICE AND RE-ELECTION

The terms of office of the Directors of the Company (including
independent non-executive Directors) are 3 years. All current Directors
will hold office until the expiry of the fifth session of the Board. The
Directors shall retire upon expiry of their terms of office and shall be
eligible for re-election.

THE COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Each of the audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee of the Company has specific terms of reference in place,
with the authorities and responsibilities of each committee clearly
defined which have been published on the websites of the GEM and
the Company.

(1

Audit committee

The Company has set up an audit committee pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules and the
“Guidelines for the Establishment of Audit Committees” prepared
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and
its duties and responsibilities have been properly laid down in
writing under the requirements of Rule 5.29 of the GEM Listing
Rules. The audit committee currently comprises Mr. Cheng
Xinsheng (chairman), Mr. Japhet Sebastian Law (both being
independent non-executive Directors) and Ms. Peng Bo (non-
executive Director), among which Mr. Cheng Xinsheng has the
relevant professional qualification and financial experience. The
members of the audit committee convene meetings regularly
with the management and external auditors and review the
internal audit report and the quarterly, interim and annual
results of the Group. The audit committee reviewed the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
and recommended approval to the Board. In 2021, the audit
committee held a total of five meetings to review the financial
information and the risk management and internal control system
etc. of the Company. As disclosed in the announcements of the
Company dated 15 September 2021 and 5 November 2021,
the audit committee only had two members during the period
between 15 September 2021 and 4 November 2021, which failed
to fulfil the requirement of Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
Through the change of composition of the audit committee on 5
November 2021, the Company has fulfilled the minimum number
of members of the audit committee as required under Rule 5.28
of the GEM Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above, for the year
ended 31 December 2021, the Company complied with the
requirements of Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
the audit committee.
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Remuneration committee

The Company has set up a remuneration committee in
accordance with the requirements of Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing
Rules and its duties and responsibilities have been properly laid
down in writing under the requirements of Rule 5.35 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The remuneration committee currently comprises
Mr. Japhet Sebastian Law (chairman), Mr. Cheng Xinsheng
and Mr. Peng Zuowen (all being independent non-executive
Directors). The remuneration committee is mainly responsible
for making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company and on the establishment of a
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy, reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives, and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages (which include benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment) of
individual executive Directors and senior management. In 2021,
the remuneration committee held one meeting and reviewed the
remuneration of Directors, supervisors and senior management
of the Company, as well as the withdrawal and determination
method of annual performance-based bonus of the Company,
and made recommendations to the Board. For the year ended
31 December 2021, the Company has complied with the
requirements of Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules in respect of
the remuneration committee.
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Nomination committee

The Company has also set up a nomination committee which
is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition
of the Board and making recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified as a director
or member and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships,
assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and succession of Directors. The
nomination committee currently comprises three members, with
Mr. Yang Weihong being the chairman and Mr. Japhet Sebastian
Law and Mr. Peng Zuowen being the members. Mr. Yang
Weihong is the executive Director of the Company, and the other
members of the nomination committee are independent non-
executive Directors of the Company. In 2021, the nomination
committee held one meeting to review the structure of the Board
and senior management of the Company for the year 2021
and execute the provisions on the nomination of the Directors
under the Articles and the policies, procedures and criteria of the
“Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director”.

(3)
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The Board has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) on 26 March 2019, which sets out the selection criteria
and procedure when considering candidates to be appointed
or re-appointed as a Director. The nomination committee
shall consider the following criteria in evaluating and selecting
candidates for directorship:

1. Character and integrity;

2. Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy;

3. Willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as
a member of the Board;

4. Board diversity policy and any measurable objectives
adopted for achieving diversity on the Board;

5. Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules applicable to the
Company and whether the candidates would be considered
independent with reference to the independence guidelines
set out in the GEM Listing Rules; and

6. Other views that are appropriate to the Company’s business
or as suggested by the Board.
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The procedure of nomination by the nomination committee is
summarised as follows:

1. The nomination committee reviews the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience)
of the Board periodically and make recommendation on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy;

2. When it is necessary to fill a casual vacancy or appoint an
additional Director, the nomination committee identifies or
selects candidates as recommended to it, with or without
assistance from external agencies or the Company,
pursuant to the criteria set out above;

3. If the process yields one or more desirable candidates,
the nomination committee shall rank them by order of
preference based on the needs of the Company and
reference check of each candidate (where applicable);

4.  The nomination committee makes recommendation
to the Board including the terms and conditions of the
appointment; and

5. The Board deliberates and decides on the appointment

based upon the recommendation of the nomination
committee.
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The procedure of re-appointment of Director at shareholders’
general meeting is summarised as follows:

1. In accordance with the Articles, every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and shall be eligible for re-election at the shareholders’
general meeting;

2.  The nomination committee shall review the overall
contribution and service to the Company of the retiring
Director. The nomination committee shall also review the
expertise and professional qualifications of the retiring
Director, who offered himself/herself for re-appointment at
the shareholders’ general meeting, to determine whether
such Director continues to meet the criteria as set out
above; and

3. Based on the review made by nomination committee, the
Board shall make recommendations to shareholders on
candidates standing for reappointment at the shareholders’
general meeting of the Company, and provide the
available biographical information of the retiring Director
in accordance with the GEM Listing Rules to enable
shareholders to make the informed decision on the re-
appointment of such candidates at shareholders’ general
meeting of the Company.

According to the Articles, shareholders who individually or in
aggregate holding 5% or more of the total number of voting
shares issued by the Company may make a written proposal to
the shareholders’ general meeting to nominate the candidates for
the Board, but the number of the candidates shall comply with
the Articles and shall not exceed the number of candidates to be
selected.

The Board will from time to time review the Nomination
Policy and monitor its implementation to ensure its continued
effectiveness and compliance with regulatory requirements and
good corporate governance practice.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to enhance the efficiency of the Board and corporate
governance, the Company considers diversity at the Board level
as an important element to maintain a competitive advantage. In
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code, the Board adopted
a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 10 May
2019. The Company’s Board Diversity Policy will have significant
benefits in enhancing the performance of the Company. Under the
Board Diversity Policy, selection to the Board will be based on a
range of diversity areas, including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills and
knowledge. All appointments to the Board will be made on the basis
of merit and the benefits of diversity on the Board will be objectively
taken into account when considering candidates. The following chart
shows the profile of diversity on the Board as at 31 December 2021:

8 Female ED
(1$2}Lgr°/ )
/ <50
6 (37.5%)
NED
_ 0-3
5 FHIT :
(50%) (75%)
4
50-60
3 (50%)
2 4-8
(12.5%)
1 >=9
0 (12.5%)
Gender Position Age group Term of
14 3Bl Bz FiAa B directors
(Years)
HEEH
(F£8)

There is currently one female Director on the Board of the Company,
representing approximately 13% of the members of the Board. The
Company will continue to identify female candidates to join the Board
in accordance with the above selection criteria and through various
channels, including the promotion of existing talent as successors to
the Board, in order to enhance gender diversity on the Board. The
Board hopes to maintain its female membership at no less than 10%
for the next three years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s workforce
generally follows a diversity philosophy that includes gender diversity.
The gender composition of the Group’s workforce is set out in the
Employment and Labour Practices section of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Report (page 52). As at the date of this report, over
20% of the Group’s employees are women and one of the three senior
management of the Company is a woman. As the Company already
has a higher proportion of women in the same industry, the Company
plans to maintain the same level of female representation over the next
three years or increase female representation where appropriate.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage for
the Directors and senior management since May 2021.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

As at 31 December 2021, the supervisory committee comprised 6
members, of whom 3 are shareholder representative supervisors and
3 are employee representative supervisors. The responsibility of the
supervisory committee is to monitor the Board and its members and
senior management so as to protect the interests of the shareholders.
In 2021, the supervisory committee had monitored the financial
position and the legal compliance of the operations of the Company
and has conducted due diligence review of the senior management
by convening meetings of supervisory committee and attending Board
meetings and general meetings. It has duly performed its duties in a
detailed and prudent manner.

INTERNAL CONTROL
Internal control and risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment, maintenance
and review of the Group’s internal control system to safeguard
shareholder investments and the assets of the Group. The internal
control system of the Group aims to facilitate effective and efficient
management which in turn minimizes the risks to which the Group is
exposed. The system can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against misstatement or loss.
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The Group recognises that good risk management is essential for
the long-term development of the Group’s business. Management
is responsible for the establishment, implementation, review and
assessment of the sound and effective internal control system
underpinning the risk management framework. After taking into full
account of the relevant requirements under the GEM Listing Rules
relating to risk management and internal control, the management
continued to improve its existing control and risk management
framework. All employees are committed to implementing the risk
management framework into the daily operation.

The Company has established a dedicated internal audit department
and engaged an external professional agency to assist the audit
committee and the Board in determining the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems on an annual and ongoing
basis. In 2021, the “Internal Audit Work Rules” of the Company was
formulated to standardize the audit work process. In accordance with
the annual audit plan, the Company completed the internal audit of
its subsidiaries, namely, Yuan Da Logistics, Tedahang and Fengtian
Logistics and monitored the implementation of relevant rectifications,
and coordinated with its shareholders and accounting firms to review
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

In 2021, the Board highly emphasized on internal control and
risk management and engaged a professional agency to assist in
completing the development of the “risk management and control
quality project” system, reviewing several system procedures, and
formulated an internal control manual, a set of procedure checklists
and a system package; for the problems identified during the course
of business, rectifying and developing supplementary system and
process to address the risk vulnerability; further supervising and
guiding affiliated company to review the internal control system,
and improving the risk system with reference with the results of the
Company. It strives to achieve the objective of monitoring risks,
implementing standards, and supervising processes so as to prevent
potential risks in the business of the Company and its subsidiaries in
an all-round manner.
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Objectives of risk management and internal control

The objectives of establishing the risk management and internal
control framework of the Group are to identify, assess and manage the
risk of the Group and achieve the Group’s strategic objectives within
the acceptable safety standards. The Group has further promoted
digitalisation of its internal control management while improving
its systems. The “smart operational management platform” for the
integration of business and finance developed by the Company will
automatically consolidate business information and match it with
financial data to avoid isolation of business and financial information;
deliver real-time monitoring of capital through funding plans and
cash management; enable coordination and verification, grading
and preparation, screening and conclusion, monitoring and early
warning through budget management; improve corporate capital
control through deeper integration of capital planning and budget
management. The establishment of the smart operational management
platform, with “uniform financial accounting, uniform capital control,
uniform business and financial integration, and uniform digital
resources”, will facilitate in-depth integration of business and finance,
enhance the timeliness and accuracy of business data acquisition,
and deliver smart reform in the management of the Company. The
smart operational management platform, together with the Company’s
OA system, will establish and reinforce the logical relationship of the
internal authorization system so as to control and mitigate risks.

Meanwhile, a three-line risk management approach has been adopted
to identify, analyze, assess, mitigate and handle risks.

The first line of defence is that our department staff/frontline employees
must understand that their roles and responsibilities to identify, assess
and monitor risks associated with transactions.

The second line of defence is the Group’s management that provides
independent oversight of the risk management activities of the first line
of defence. It ensures that risks are within the Group’s risk capacity
and that the control of the first line of defence is effective.

As the final line of defence, the audit committee of the Company, with
the advices and opinions from the external professional party (such
as the external auditor) on one hand and annual review by the audit
department on the other hand, ensures that the first and second lines
of defence are effective internally and externally.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

REEEERABEZENER

REE B B IR K A RS IR A 2R R

BER#ER - HELREEARENEAR
EAIRENRZE2KFTERAEENE
B AR - ARBEAETEFIEZRER
E—FRENZEENEEMLEE - A2

ARVMEN BN E2ELERET

Bl BEREAREXEKEEWHEMK
%{?ﬁﬁ@@ﬂ R IR ER - K EEM
S BRECHEERcERHESER
B LLJ"E%C%:IELTT Ljvé AR
mE . ERERK  BEEREE . BRESE
2 BEEEMNR ?/’1%%.\ 2R
i%ﬁ/\“%7}<$ BRI BZE
éf/\” mi— - EB—8(at

BIL &R \,)L—JE’J*“*@%?@F#
T’E@J%i‘kﬂﬁﬁf’im rERE  BAE
i‘“%ﬂf?’éﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ M RN BERA T
EENESEBLEE TEELERTAH
XA B OA Z it #L [R B 57 3 & 7E A BB 4% 1
BRNEERR  BREHEERRE -

RIfy - ANEREHRS W_i&ﬂ[f IR A A

B~ AT - G BRERESRR o
HE—EBIHE  BPEIL RIRETINA
HEmfnAaEeKBREAE TR - FFE
LRERER SHBERER

“EhREREAEBNEERE HE—E
[95 ?E’JH eﬁé@ﬁmﬁéﬁiﬁﬁnﬁ H
WREREANEE R AT ENEEA KL

BEBHRNERIT 2B

ERRER—ENR ARRAERELZES
g~ EERIMNEERA T (IMNEZE
fMEZERRER  Z— T HBRBE: Jr-E‘
BFEETERZ - WCRINMITEERSE

iR R R — 5B ARITZ B °

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

87



88

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRE

Procedures and internal control for handling and dissemination
of inside information

The Company has adopted the GEM Listing Rules and the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) to handle and disseminate inside information. The Company
ensured compliance in respect of the handling and dissemination of
inside information by adopting a series of measures including enhancing
identification and confidentiality awareness of inside information,
prohibiting unauthorized use of inside information and giving notice of
lock-up period and securities dealing restrictions to the Directors and
employees. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
has made announcements on inside information in accordance with
the GEM Listing Rules and the applicable laws and regulations.

In light of the above, the Board is of the view that the existing risk
management and internal control systems are effective and adequate
for the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting:

The shareholder(s) (either independently or jointly) holding 3% or more
of the total number of the Company’s voting shares shall be entitled
to propose temporary proposal(s) 10 days before the convening of the
shareholders’ meeting and in writing to the Company. The Company
shall notify other shareholders within 2 days upon receipt of such
proposal(s), and include in the agenda for the meeting the matters in
the proposal(s) that fall within the scope of functions and rights of the
shareholders’ general meeting and with a clear topic of discussion and
a specific matter to be resolved.

Shareholders requesting the convening of an extraordinary general

meeting or a meeting of shareholders of different classes shall proceed
in accordance with the procedures set forth below:
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(1) two or more shareholders holding a total of 10% or more of the
shares carrying the right to vote at the meeting sought to be
held may sign one or more written requests of identical form and
substance requesting the Board to convene an extraordinary
general meeting or a meeting of shareholders of different classes
and stating the subject of the meeting. The Board shall convene
the extraordinary general meeting or the meeting of shareholders
of different classes as soon as possible after having received
the above-mentioned written request. The shareholding referred
to above shall be calculated as of the day on which the written
request is made.

(2) if the Board fails to issue a notice of such a meeting within thirty
days after having received the above-mentioned written request,
the shareholders who made such request may themselves
convene the meeting within four months after the Board received
the request. The procedures according to which they convene
such meeting shall, to the extent possible, be identical to the
procedures according to which general meetings are to be
convened by the Board.

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the following person whose contact details
are as follows:

Name: Yang Xueyan

Address: Third Floor Office Building, No. 39, Bohai Road, Tianjin
Economic and Technological Development Zone

Tel: 022-59858128

Fax: 022-59858100

Postal Code: 300457

E-mail: investor@tbtl.com.cn

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”). The Company endeavours to maintain sufficient operating
capital to develop and operate the Group’s business, and to provide
stable and sustainable returns to its shareholders.

In deciding whether to recommend dividends and determining the
amount of dividends, the Board will consider the performance, working
capital, cash position of the Group and other factors that the Directors
deem relevant at the time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

(=) AR EAEZRBITNEZRLEAR
RENBROHBDZ TR E(EEDZ
1) H M (B 2 R LA £ RIRRER » AT A
BE-DREFEOHRAERARAR
MEMER RFEFEAERR
ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%@%kﬁéﬁ'j%

AeznEd 25 WE et
HEREEERRA %h%%ﬂﬁ

SREBRRRGHE - ATl
BERIELERMEKBEE -

(D) MREFSAEWI M ERE KRR
E+EW&ﬁ%ﬁE%§%mL
T REZEBROBRANEES
SR ZERRUEANBITAS
E OARNSTAREEZRESE

A °
EgdERREHENFNER -

BRRAIEEFERAERLR
ATREFGHX
HEg 70T

BELATN
ERMEBFTAME -

HaBEH

HiHE © ROFLLE IR 28 39 5%
MAE=E

EE 1 022-59858128

£ H : 022-59858100

YRR 5% - 300457

BT : investor@tbtl.com.cn

X 2R
EFeCHAEMKAREBER (KSR

R o RRRBO MR RN EEEARIA
BREEEREENES - AAAR R
RIBHIBE R AIFERIR -
ERTERBEHRERENEER

W EFEHRBASENES -
& Eﬁiﬂﬁ/ﬁ&§$%ﬁ% p/u\ﬁﬁa 2
HZE -

BE
EEL
M EL

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

89



90

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEERRE

The declaration and payment of dividends of the Company are also
subject to restrictions of the “PRC Company Law” and the Articles
and any other applicable laws and regulations. The Board will also
constantly review the Dividend Policy and reserves the discretion to
update, revise, modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time.
The Dividend Policy will not in any way constitute a legally binding
commitment of the Group in relation to its future dividends and/or will
not in any way render the Company obligated to declare dividends at
any time or from time to time.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION WITH THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Board is committed to encouraging and maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with shareholders through the dynamic implementation of a
shareholder’s communication policy through various channels. The
Company’s annual general meeting provides a good opportunity
for the Directors to meet and communicate with shareholders. All
Directors make their best efforts to attend the Annual General Meeting
in order to answer questions from the Company’s shareholders.
In accordance with the disclosure requirements of the GEM
Listing Rules, the Company makes timely, accurate and complete
disclosure of any discloseable and material matters in newspapers
and websites designated by the relevant regulatory authorities to
protect the shareholders’ right to information and participation. The
Company also has a dedicated department responsible for investor
relations, the contact details of which are set out in the section
headed “Shareholders’ Rights” above. The Company attaches great
importance to communication with investors and has hosted individual
shareholders at various shareholder meetings and answered their
telephone enquiries on a number of occasions to enhance investors’
understanding of and confidence in the Company.

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the above channels of
communication between the Company and its shareholders on an
annual basis. The Board is satisfied with the implementation and
effectiveness of the Company’s activities in communicating with
shareholders and investors during the reporting period.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
accounts for each financial period by the management, and issuing
appropriate announcements in accordance with the GEM Listing
Rules for disclosure of all information necessary for the shareholders to
assess the financial performance and other matters of the Company.

The Company has appointed HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as the international auditor of the Company for the year 2021. Fees
for audit and non-audit service provided to the Group by the above-
mentioned auditor for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
RMB1,092,000 and RMBO (there was no non-audit service provided)
respectively.

The Directors of the Company are responsible for preparation
of the financial statements which can truthfully and fairly reflect
financial positions of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to
the International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure
requirements of the “Companies Ordinance” in Hong Kong.

The statements made by the independent auditors of the Company
on their responsibilities for the financial statements are set out in the
independent auditors’ report in this report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engages an external service provider to provide
secretarial service and has appointed Mr. Lo Tai On (“Mr. Lo”) as
company secretary. Mr. Lo is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lo has confirmed that for the
Reporting Period, he has attended not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training, and will continue to perform and discharge the
duties of a company secretary under the GEM Listing Rules. Mr.
Lo is not an employee of the Group, and Ms. Wu Yanmin, the Vice
President of the Company, is the person whom Mr. Lo contacts for
the purpose of Code Provision F.1.1.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the reporting period, the Company proposed to amend the
Articles and such amendments were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 21 July 2021. Such amendments to the Articles were
approved by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 11 August 2021.

The new Articles is available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meeting of the Company has the highest authority. A total
of 2 general meetings were held in 2021. The Company convened an
annual general meeting on 11 May 2021 to consider and approve the
resolutions relating to Directors’ Report for 2020 and Report of the
Supervisory Committee for 2020. The Chairman of the Board and the
members of each committee attended the annual general meeting held
in 2021, so as to answer questions raised by shareholders. In addition,
chairman of the audit committee has attended the annual general
meeting held in 2021 to answer questions in relation to connected
transactions raised by shareholders. The Company highly values the
functions of the general meeting as it is considered to be a direct and
effective communication channel between the Board and investors
of the Company, and thus encourages all shareholders to attend the
general meetings. The Articles have laid out provisions in respect of
the rights of the shareholders including the rights to attend, to receive
notices of, and to vote at general meetings.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of comprehensive
logistics services in China, mainly including supply chain solutions and
materials procurement and related logistics services.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Company during the Year and a
discussion on the Company’s future business development are
provided in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this
annual report. Description of possible risks and uncertainties that
the Company may be facing can be found in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis”. Also, the financial risk factors
and capital risk management of the Company can be found in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Company’s
performance during the Year using financial key performance
indicators is provided in the section headed “Financial Review”
of this annual report. In addition, discussions on the Company’s
environmental policies and performance, key relationships with its
employees, customers, suppliers are contained in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual report.
The Company’s compliance with relevant laws and regulations which
have a significant impact on the Company is contained in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

RESULTS

The financial highlights of the reporting period are set out on page 5
to 6 of this annual report. Discussion and analysis of the results and
financial position of the Group are set out on pages 7 to 21 of this
annual report. The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income is set out on page 131 to 132 of this annual
report.
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The statement of financial position of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 prepared in accordance with the International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) are set out on pages 133 to
134 of this annual report.

PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS AND DIVIDENDS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, profit and total comprehensive
income attributable to the equity holders of the Company was
approximately RMB33,682,000 and RMB13,300,000, respectively.
The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (corresponding period of 2020:
nil).

RETAINED EARNINGS

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the reporting period and details of the distributable reserves of
the Company as at 31 December 2021 are set out in Note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the
IFRSs.

STATUTORY RESERVE FUNDS

Details of the statutory reserve funds are set out in Note 21(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of movements in properties of the Group in the Company
during the reporting period are set out in Note 14 to Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the properties held for investment are set out on page 258
to 261 of this report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

There was no material contract between the Group and the controlling
shareholder or its subsidiaries during the Year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A financial summary including the results and the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the past five financial years is set out in the section
headed “Financial Summary” of this report.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

During the Year, the Company did not made investment for
establishment of other new company, nor did it increase or withdraw
any capital to or from its invested subsidiaries or associates.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had no
capitalised interest (2020: nil).

SHARE CAPITAL

During the reporting period, there was no change in the Company’s
share capital. Details are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Articles
which requires the Company to offer new shares in proportion to
existing shareholders.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and supervisors in office during the Year and up to the

date of this report are as follows:

EBRES

BEEELNR

RAFEARBEAREBPETEER

Date of
appointment

EZEWEH

Executive Director
Yang Weihong (Chairrman)

Non-executive Directors
Li Jian

Peng Bo

Jo Shibin

Zheng Yuying

Independent Non-executive Directors
Cheng Xinsheng
Japhet Sebastian Law
Peng Zuowen
Zhou Zisheng
(Resigned on 15 September 2021)

Supervisors
Li Chenjun
(Resigned on 11 May 2021)

Wang Guanghua
Yan Jun
Han Wanjin
(Resigned on 11 August 2021)

Yang Zhengliang
Huang Fei

Lan Lingyan
Wang Linlin

BITES
BEHA(EFR) 19 June 2020
FEITES
2 19 June 2020
) 19 June 2020
BrEH 19 June 2020
52 19 June 2020
BIUKHITES
BEaE 19 June 2020
7 4 19 June 2020
ZEX 19 June 2020
IS1=R2 19 June 2020
(ER2021F
9.4 15 ABHE)
=
TRE 19 June 2020
(BER2021F
5411 AEHT)
ExE 11 May 2021
[E)E 19 June 2020
2EE 19 June 2020
(BER2021F
8511 AEHT)
BB R 11 August 2021
| 19 June 2020
B2 A 19 June 2020
F HRFH 19 June 2020

R 2020F6 A19H

M 202046 A 19 H
202046 A 19 H
M 20206 A 19 H
202046 A 19 H

#2020 6 A19H
202046 A 19 H
202046 419 H
M 2020%F 6 A 19 H

R 202046 A19H

MR2021F5H11H
R 20206 A19H
R 20206 A19H

R2021E8 11 H
7202046 A19H
202046 A 19 H
#2020 6 A19H
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of its independent non-
executive Directors the annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, and confirmed that
all the independent non-executive Directors of the Company are
independent persons.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors and supervisors of the Company has entered
into a service contract with the Company.

None of the Directors and supervisors has entered into a service
contract with the Company, which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for contracts amongst companies of the Group, no other
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to which the
Company or its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent company
was a party and in which a Director or a supervisor of the Company
or an entity connected with the Director or the supervisor has or had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

The Company has not entered into any contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company at any time during the Year.

CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTOR, SUPERVISOR
OR CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at the date of this report, the Company is not aware of any change
in the information of director, supervisor or chief executive required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules.
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ENVIRONMENT POLICY AND PERFORMANCE

The Group abides by the local laws, regulations and guidelines
issued by the government authorities and puts great emphasis on
environmental protection during the course of operation. The Group
made efforts to improve logistics efficiency, optimized transportation
routes and transportation modes, promoted railway and waterway
transportation due to less discharge of pollutants, and strictly adhered
to the principle of recycle and resource conservation, especially the
recycling of packaging materials.

The Group’s main stakeholders include the customers, suppliers and
employees. The Group enhances communication with its stakeholders
through day-to-day interactions, and thereby enabling it to understand
and satisfy their respective needs. The Group places great importance
on the feedbacks of its customers, and improves the quality of its
services and maintenance work based on these advices. The Group
also recognizes the importance of its relationship with the suppliers
and the employees. The Group has established a trust relationship with
its brand suppliers. It also provides various trainings and benefits for its
employees to develop their potentials, and moves quickly to solve any
potential work issues for them. Further details on the environmental
policy and performance are set out in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” which forms a part of this annual report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance coverage
for the Directors and senior management since May 2021 in respect of
legal actions against its Directors and senior management arising out
of corporate activities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

As at the date of this report, no equity-linked agreements of the
Company were entered into during the Year or subsisted at the end of
the Year.
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DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S REMUNERATION AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’, supervisors’ and senior management’s
remuneration and the five highest paid individuals are set out in Note 9
to the consolidated financial statements of this report.

The remuneration offered to the Directors, supervisors and senior
management shall be determined based on, among other things,
individual experience, responsibility and time devoted to the Company.

DIRECTORS’, SUPERVISORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of 31 December 2021, none of the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives of the Company had any interest and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO),
which were (a) required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests or short positions which the Directors and supervisors are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b)
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO; or (c) otherwise required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

As of 31 December 2021, none of the Directors, supervisors or chief
executives held any beneficial interests in the equity interests of any
member of the Group, or had any right (whether legally enforceable
or not) to subscribe for or to nominate others to subscribe for any
securities in any member of the Group, or had any interest, directly or
indirectly, in any assets acquired or leased or proposed to be acquired
since 1 January 2021.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND PERSONS HOLDING FEMRFBRINN2 Gz {7 b il kAR
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND fhi8igmRiBilAL
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Directors, supervisors and chief executives EARRFIEE EENESTHABMR

of the Company, as at 31 December 2021, the following persons had
interests or short positions in the shares and the underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
or had, directly or indirectly, been interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meeting of the Company; or which were
required to be recorded in the register specified in Section 336 of the
SFO pursuant to such Section:

Long position in shares of the Company

M R2021FE12A31BATALTESA
BEZLHFRPEGROAEXVEE2RID
B2 AESARA N BIEEZ AR RN &
REARMD 2 ERAR - KEESEEE
EWNEE—BERARARETRERE L&
ZZRENZEAERBRAEES% KA E
2R HIREE S K HAE &M 336 &
\@ﬁmauﬁ L2 B S gk

E 5

ARARG A E

Approximate
percentage of

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding to

Number and shareholding the Company’s

class of shares in the same total issued

Name Capacity (Note 1) class of shares share capital

B AF

&G &8 RER RE—E BRI 5 BRITRAEH

8B 51 (ffE1) RFRESLEILE FREMYEIL

Tianjin TEDA Investment Beneficial owner 150,420,051 (L) 58.74% 42.45%
Holding Co., Ltd. Domestic shares
REFEREEREARRA BHEFAA 150,420,051 % (L) W& f%

Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Beneficial owner 77,303,789 (L) 30.19% 21.82%
Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Domestic shares
EARERE (LR BRAF BEFAA 77,303,789 % (L) W& %

Chia Tai Land Company Beneficial owner 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%
Limited Domestic shares
FREMABRAT EmfrA A 28,344,960 f% (L) &%

Tianjin Port Development Beneficial owner 20,000,000 (L) 20.36% 5.64%
Holdings Limited H shares
REBERZEBRERA EmfrA A 20,000,000 M (L) H i

Hongkong Topway Trading Beneficial owner 10,000,000 (L) 10.18% 2.82%
Co., Limited H shares

ERENBESERAR

ERnFEEA

10,000,000 A% (L) H A%
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On 7 June 2013, Tianjin TEDA Investment Holding Co., Ltd. and Tianjin
Economic and Technological Development Area State Asset Operation
Company transferred 28,344,960 and 77,303,789 domestic shares
of the Company held by them to Chia Tai Land Company Limited and
Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd., respectively
and completed the transfer of the shares. So far as is known to the
Directors, chief executives and supervisors of the Company, as at 31
December 2021, the deemed interests of Chia Tai Land Company
Limited, Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. and
their associates under Part XV of the SFO were as follows:

Number and

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding to
the Company’s

class of shares in the same total issued
Name Capacity (Note 1) class of shares share capital
AR AF]
RBEE R RE— BRI 5 ERITRAEH
=5 g1 BRl(MEE1) FRESAIEIE BRESINEIE
Chia Tai Land Company Limited  Beneficial owner 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%
Domestic shares
EXREMBRAT EmfEB A 28,344,960 f% (L) A& f%
Fortune (Shanghai) Limited Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%
controlled by a Domestic shares
substantial shareholder
ER(E8)BRA FEREMHZILEE S 28,344,960 % () WE K
Charoen Pokphand Group Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%
(BVI) Holdings Limited controlled by a Domestic shares
substantial shareholder
EXREE BV IZRAR AT FTEREMZITEAEER 28,344,960 i (L) WE
CPG Overseas Company Limited Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%
controlled by a Domestic shares
substantial shareholder
CPG Overseas Company Limited ~ FZ2RFHZIEEEEZE 28,344,960 % (L) RE K
Charoen Pokphand Group Interest of corporation 28,344,960 (L) 11.07% 8%

Co., Ltd.

NEEBEARAT

controlled by a
substantial shareholder
FERROZIELEE RS

Domestic shares

28,344,960 % (L) W& %
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Approximate
Approximate percentage of
percentage of shareholding to
Number and shareholding the Company’s
class of shares in the same total issued
Name Capacity (Note 1) class of shares share capital
B AT
RAEE R RE— B4 ERITRAEY
=58 51 BRl(MfEE1) FRESAIEIE BRESINEIL
Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Beneficial owner 77,303,789 (L) 30.19% 21.82%
Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Domestic shares
EREERE (L) BRAT] BEmEAA 77,303,789 % (L) W& %
Sino Biopharmaceutical Limited  Interest of corporation 77,303,789 (L) 30.19% 21.82%

controlled by a
substantial shareholder

PR HEFR AR ITERROZ LB R

Domestic shares

77,303,789 % (L) NER%

Note:

1. The letter “L” denotes the shareholders’ long position in the share capital
of the Company.

Save as disclosed in this report, so far as is known to the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company, as at 31 December
2021, no other persons (other than the Directors or chief executives
or supervisors of the Company) had interests or short positions which
were required to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or had, directly or indirectly,
been interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of
share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general
meeting of the Company and/or any subsidiary of the Company; or
which were required to be recorded in the register specified in Section
336 of the SFO pursuant to such Section.
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SHARE APPRECIATION RIGHTS INCENTIVE SCHEME

As at the date of this report, the Company has no arrangement for
such scheme.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the reporting period, the percentages of income of the Group
from sales of goods and provision of services to major customers to
the turnover of the Group are as follows:

Tong Fang Global (Tianjin) Logistics Co., Ltd.
Wu’an Yuhua Iron and Steel Co., Ltd.
Tangshan Donghua Steel Group Co., Ltd.
Hebei Huaxin Special Steel Co., Ltd.

Xi’an Chaoyuan Hong Trading Co., Ltd.

Five largest customers in total

During the reporting period, the percentages of expenses of the Group
arising from the purchase of goods and services from major suppliers
to the cost of sales of the Group are as follows:

Hubei CATA Logistics Co., Ltd.

Tangshan Fengnan Dongyu Commercial Trade Co., Ltd.
Tianjin Hongnuo Import & Export Co., Ltd.

Tianjin Lihe Industry and Trade Co., Ltd.

CATA Logistics Group Co., Ltd.

Five largest suppliers in total

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in these major suppliers or

customers.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the Directors, management shareholders or substantial
shareholders of the Company or their respective associates has
interest in business that competes or may compete with the
businesses of the Group or has any other conflicts of interests with the
Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into continuing connected transactions with
the following entities which are regarded as connected persons of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules as of 31 December 2021.

1. Toyota Tsusho Corporation, which holds approximately 36.2%
interest in Fengtian Logistics, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, is a substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Company. Under the GEM Listing Rules, Toyota Tsusho
Corporation is a connected person of the Company.

2. Tedahang is a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.
On 5 January 2017, Chia Tai Logistics Limited (“Chia Tai
Logistics”) held 40% of the equity interest in Tedahang and
became a shareholder of Tedahang. Therefore, the registered
capital of Tedahang is owned as to 60% by the Company and
40% by Chia Tai Logistics. Therefore, Tedahang is a connected
subsidiary of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.
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Details in relation to the connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions for the year ended 31 December 2021 are as
follows:

Continuing connected transactions

On 6 November 2019, Fengtian Logistics entered into a logistics
service agreement (the “Logistics Service Agreement”) with Toyota
Tsusho Corporation, pursuant to which Fengtian Logistics agreed to
provide logistics services and supply chain solutions for automobiles
and car components to Toyota Tsusho Corporation, for a term of
three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The Logistics
Service Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
were in compliance with the requirements under Chapter 20 of the
GEM Listing Rules, and were exempted from the circular, independent
financial advice and the shareholders’ approval requirements. For
details, please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 6
November 2019 and 30 December 2021.

On 27 December 2019, the Company and Tedahang entered into
the business cooperation framework agreement (the “Meat Sales
and Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which Tedahang would
sell various frozen meat and provide related storage, logistics and
logistics supporting services to the Company, for a term of three
years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022. The continuing
connected transactions are subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 27 December
2019 and the Company’s circular dated 3 June 2020.
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ANNUAL CAP AND ACTUAL FIGURE OF NON-EXEMPTED BRI ol e iERERSMN

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS OF THE fFE LIRREREF

COMPANY
Annual Cap Actual Figure
for 2021 for 2021
2021 F 2021 FERK
FE LR BAEER
RMB’000 RMB’000
Description of transaction R AR¥T T ARETFT
Logistics Service Agreement 0 AR 745 195 2% 15,000 13,739
Meat Sales and Purchase Agreement AmEEWE 176,000 80,612

The independent non-executive Directors, Cheng Xinsheng, Japhet
Sebastian Law and Peng Zuowen, have reviewed the above continuing
connected transactions and confirmed that they have been entered

into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(2) on normal commercial terms or on terms no more favourable to
the connected person than those available to the independent
third parties or on terms no less favourable to the Company than
terms available from independent third parties (as appropriate);

and

(8) in accordance with the relevant agreements with terms which are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders as a

whole.

In addition, the Group has duly complied with the requirements under

Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the
Group on pages 104 to 107 of the annual report in accordance with
Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors consider that those material
related party transactions disclosed in Note 35 to the financial
statements did not fall under the definition of “connected transactions”
or “continuing connected transactions” (as the case may be) in Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules which are required to comply with any of
the reporting, announcement or independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under the GEM Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that
the Company has complied with the disclosure requirements (if any)
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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LITIGATION i

As at 31 December 2021, the Group were involved in litigation or #2021 12A31 8 AEEP LKW E
arbitration of material importance and litigation or claim of material ~ ARFFFASIPE - HAR T Ak AI BEIR i
importance pending or threatened against the Company and its ZEHERFAHRE - FBEO T -

subsidiaries. Details are as follows:

(@ In the case of contractual disputes between the Company (as (a)
the plaintiff), Leimeng (Tianjin) Enterprise Company Limited
(“Leimeng (Tianjin)”, the mobile phone materials provider of the
Company), Tianjin Tongguang Group Digital Communication Co.,
Ltd. (“Tongguang”, the customer of mobile phone materials of
the Company and the guarantor) (collectively the “Defendants”),
the Company required the Defendants to return the payment
and interest to the Company. On 31 October 2019, the Third
Intermediate People’s Court of Tianjin ruled in favour of the
Company. As Leimeng (Tianjin) has mortgaged the property
which is located at UG 1/F and G 1-7/F, Yaxin Mansion,
35 Nanjing Road, Hexi District, Tianjin City (the “Mortgaged
Property”) to the Company, the Company has applied to the
court for compulsory auction of the Mortgaged Property in
accordance with the ruling. On 22 February 2021, the Company
has applied to the court for repayment-in-kind as there is no
interested party to purchase the Mortgaged Property. On 26
March 2021, the Mortgaged Property valued at RMB92,822,828
was ruled to offset the partial debts owed to the Company
in accordance with the ruling from Tianjin Third Intermediate
People’s Court (2019) Jin 03 Zhi No. 340 (2). The Company has
obtained the property ownership certificate of the Mortgaged
Property, and become the owner of the Mortgaged Property,
and executed cash collection of RMB1,247,648. On 2 July 2021,
the Company continued to freeze the bank accounts of Leimeng
(Tianjin) and Tongguang, and no traces of other assets are found.
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LITIGATION

(b)

In the case of contractual disputes that Guofu (Shanghai) Asset
Management Co., Ltd. (as the plaintiff) suing Guoben (Xiamen)
Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd., the Company and Guoben
Holdings Co., Ltd., which was heard on 4 February 2021, the
Company received the judgment from the Shanghai Financial
Court on 24 September 2021 (the “Judgment”). For details of
the Judgment, please refer to the announcements issued by the
Company on 24 September 2021 and 1 November 2021. The
Company has lodged an appeal against the Judgment to the
Shanghai Financial Court on 8 October 2021. On 13 January
2022, the Shanghai High People’s Court accepted the appeal
case, which is expected to hold a trial at the end of April 2022.
The Directors of the Company have sought legal opinion from
a PRC lawyer on the appeal against the Judgement. The PRC
lawyer advised that the Judgment is under appeal process,
so the Judgment currently does not carry any legal force. The
PRC lawyer also considered that the likelihood of the Judgment
being overturned would be high according to the relevant PRC
laws. Based on the opinion of the PRC lawyer, the Directors
considered that the likelihood of being claimed would be low. The
Company considered that it was unnecessary to have provision
for any significant liability as at the year end and to have any
relevant material adjustment for prior periods.

The Company (as the plaintiff) filed a case in the Tianjin Binhai
New Area Court on 18 February 2022, suing Tedahang, a
subsidiary of the Company (as the defendant), for repayment
of the Company’s guaranteed loan of approximately RMB170
million. Tianjin Binhai New Area Court issued a civil judgment on
preservation on 22 February 2022, and seized the real estate
under the name of Tedahang to provide property preservation for
the Company. The case was heard on 18 March 2022. As of the
date of this report, the court has not yet issued a ruling.

sai
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, or redeemed or sold or
cancelled any listed securities of the Company.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and to the
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has, up to the date of this
report, maintained the public float required by the GEM Listing Rules
and approved by the Stock Exchange.

TRUST DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2021, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries placed any trust deposits with any financial institutions
within or outside the PRC.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

DISCLOSURE UNDER CHAPTER 17 OF THE GEM LISTING
RULES

The Directors are not aware of any circumstances that would give rise
to a disclosure requirement under Rules 17.15 to 17.21 and 17.43 of
the GEM Listing Rules.

By order of the Board
Yang Weihong

Tianjin, the PRC, 22 March 2022
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the “Company Law”, the articles of association of
the Company and the relevant regulations regarding Hong Kong
listed companies, the supervisory committee of the Company (the
“Supervisory Committee”), under its fiduciary duty, has taken up a
responsible role to work reasonably and cautiously with integrity and
diligence to protect the interests of the Company, its shareholders and
staff.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee duly reviewed the
operational and development plans of the Company, the supervisors
made their best endeavours to attend each Board meeting and
general meeting held in 2021 and provided reasonable opinions and
recommendations to the Board. It also constantly monitored the
Company’s financial status and administered the code of practices
of the Directors, general managers and other senior management.
The Supervisory Committee has made stringent and effective
supervision on whether any material and concrete decision made by
the management of the Company is in compliance with the laws and
regulations of the PRC and the articles of association of the Company,
and whether it is in the interests of its shareholders.

Through its efforts made on supervision and inspections during 2021,
the Supervisory Committee considered that the members of the
Board, the President and other senior management of the Company,
during the course of business operation and management, all strictly
observed their fiduciary duties, to act diligently and to exercise their
authority faithfully under the premise of safeguarding the best interests
of the Company. They carried out duties in accordance with the
requirements set out in the articles of association of the Company.
During the reporting period, the Company carried out operations
according to the law with a standardised management style, and
its operating results were objective and true. The Company had
an integral, reasonable and effective internal control system, and
its operation decision-making process was legal. The continuing
connected transactions of the Company have been carried out on
fair and reasonable terms that are in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole, and no violation to the interests of the
shareholders and the Company has been found. To date, none of
the Directors, Supervisors, President and other senior management
had been found abusing their authority, damaging the interests of
the Company or infringing upon the interests of its shareholders and
employees, nor found to be in breach of any laws and regulations or
the articles of association of the Company.
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EEeRs

The Supervisory Committee has exercised supervision over the
execution of the resolutions of the general meeting and considers
that the Board is capable of executing the resolutions of the general
meeting diligently.

The Supervisory Committee is satisfied with the performance and
the operating results achieved by the Company in 2021, and has full
confidence in the future development of the Company.

During the Year, the Supervisory Committee of the Company will
continue to perform its duties pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations by adhering to the fiduciary duties and strengthening its
supervisory work so as to safeguard and protect the interests of the
Company and the shareholders, fuffil its responsibility in an honest and
diligent manner and hence achieve good performance in every aspect.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Wang Guanghua
Chairman

Tianjin, the PRC, 22 March 2022
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ES EENEREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Yang Weihong (% 4L), aged 53, was appointed as the
President of the Company on 20 March 2018 and was appointed
as the executive Director and Chairman of the Company on 11 May
2018. He graduated from the Department of Computing Mathematics
and lts Application Software of the Faculty of Mathematics of Nankai
University in July 1990 with a science bachelor degree, and graduated
with a master’s degree in public management from Renmin University
of China in 2005 and graduated from the School of Law of Nankai
University with a master’s degree in law (civil law and business law)
in 2008. He served as a staff at the planning department of Tianjin
Dynamic Factory (KXEB) H#ERETSIEE) from July 1990 to October
1992, a clerk at Tianjin Talent Exchange and Service Center (K2
A ZmIRIEH L) from October 1992 to June 1995, and worked at
the Labor Personnel Bureau of Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Area from June 1995 to June 2002, where he held
various positions including a clerk at the Employment Agency (%3
T45F), deputy director of the General Office (presiding), head of the
Labor Protection Supervision Department (¥4 Eh{REE52XE)), head of
the Special Equipment Inspection and Management Station (&%
kBB IR ), head of the Social Security Division (1t &{RFERD, etc.
From 2002 to March 2018, he worked for TEDA Holding, and held
various positions including deputy manager of the Human Resources
Department (presiding), the manager, director of the General Office
and the head of the Party Committee office, etc. During the period,
he also served as the director and a member of the appraisal and
remuneration committee of the board of directors of TEDA Holding. He
served as the director of Tianjin Teda Football Club Co., Ltd. (KZZ
7 R EKBEZEREBR A R)). Currently, he serves as the Secretary of the
Party General Branch, Chairman and President of the Company and
the chairman of Fengtian Logistics, Tedahang, Tianjin TEDA Alps and
Dalian TEDA Alps. (all being subsidiaries of the Company).
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Jian (Zf#), aged 42, joined the Company in May 2019. He
graduated from Beijing University of Chemical Technology in 2001
with a bachelor’s degree in management engineering. He served as
the Accounting Manager of the Enterprise Management Department
of Beijing Capital Agribusiness Group, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO)
of the Finance Department of Hulunbeier Sanyuan Dairy Co., Ltd.,
the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Finance Department of Beijing
Taiyang Pharmaceutical Industry Co., Ltd., the Senior Manager of the
Finance Department of Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Group and the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) of CPTP Capital. He is currently the Deputy
General Manager of New Business Cluster of Chia Tai Pharmaceutical
Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

Ms. Peng Bo (&), aged 50, joined the Company in July 2018,
International Certified Public Accountant, Tax Accountant and
Intermediate Accountant. She graduated from Tianjin Tanggu
Workers’ University (KZ#E T KZ) with major in financial
accounting in 1998; in 2006, she graduated from Party School of the
Central Committee of CPC ({f HE AR E ) with major in economics
and management. She served as the manager in the finance
department of Tianjin Teda Gas Co., Ltd. (REFEMRFTEREEA
7)) and the deputy head of assets and capital verification task force
at TEDA Holding, and served as the director of Binhai Investment
Company Limited (Hong Kong Stock Exchange stock code: 02886).
Currently, she serves as the manager in the asset management
department of TEDA Holding and director of Tianjin Beacon Paint
& Coatings Co., Ltd. (REEEZ KA R A A]), Tianjin Teda Assets
Operation Management Co., Ltd. (KEREEEEZLERBR AR,
Tianjin Taifeng Industrial Park Investment (Group) Co., Ltd., Tianjin
Yixian International Co., Ltd. (KZZRIEI 2T XEREAER A A),
Tianjin Teda Gas Co., Ltd., Tianjin Teda Urban Rail Investment and
Development Co., Ltd., and Tianjin Jinbin Development Co., Ltd. (K
EEBEERD AR AR (Shenzhen Stock Exchange stock code:
000897).
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DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jo Shibin (#E&#), aged 58, joined the Company in June
2020. He graduated from the Department of Hydraulic Engineering
in Tsinghua University in July 1984, with a bachelor’'s degree in
hydropower engineering and construction. He was admitted to the
Graduate School of Engineering of Nagoya University, Japan, majoring
in urban transportation planning, in October 1985 and obtained an
engineering doctorate in urban transportation planning in March 1991.
He established JCD Co., Ltd., in Tokyo in July 1993. He joined CT
Bright Corporate Godo Kaisha (Japan) (B AR IEE XA AR E4) in
January 2017 and currently serves as the Chief Operating Officer and
concurrently serves as the president of JCD Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of
CP Group in Japan.

Mr. Zheng Yuying (285 88), aged 43, joined the Company in May
2018. He is a doctor in finance and a senior economist, graduated
from the School of Economics of Fudan University (18 B K 224575 &
B) with a major in Finance. Mr. Zheng holds a Doctor’s degree in
economics of Fudan University, Master’s degree in management and
a Bachelor’s degree of Engineering of Tongji University. He served as
a director in companies such as Tianjin TEDA Group (KEZiEEE),
Tianjin Steel Pipe Group (XZ#i% & &), Tianjin TEDA Construction
Group (K)EZTEZREME). Currently, he serves as the deputy
manager in the investment management department of TEDA Holding,
the vice chairman of Tianjin Binhai Teda Aircraft Carrier Tourism
Group Co., Ltd. Mr. Zheng is an FRM certification holder and also
the member of Global Association of Risk Professionals (GARP), with
qualifications in dealing with securities and funds.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Cheng Xinsheng (2% 4), aged 59, joined the Company in June
2014. He is a professor of Business School of Nankai University as
well as a Doctor and Postdoc of Management. From 2004 to 2005,
he was the visiting scholar of University of Alberta in Canada and the
assistant executive editor-in-chief of Nankai Business Review and was
honored with the awards of outstanding result in social science for
several times. In 1994, he became a fellow member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He was in charge of four
research projects in management funded by National Natural Science
Foundation and four projects funded by the Foundation of the Ministry
of Education. He also participated in over ten key topic projects
funded by National Natural Science Foundation, National Philosophy
and Social Science Foundation and the Humanities and Social
Sciences Foundation of the Ministry of Education. He has published
five books and over 50 articles and has a translated work. He was an
independent director of Offshore Qil Engineering Co., Ltd (Stock Code:
600583, Shanghai Stock Exchange). He is currently an independent
supervisor of China QOilfield Services Limited (Stock Code: 601808,
Shanghai Stock Exchange).
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Mr. Japhet Sebastian Law (% 3 §%), aged 70, joined the Company
in August 2012. He obtained his Doctorate degree of Philosophy
in mechanical/industrial engineering from the University of Texas at
Austin in 1976. He was a professor of the Department of Decision
Sciences and Managerial Economics of the Chinese University of
Hong Kong from 1986 to 2012. Mr. Law was the Associate Dean
and subsequently the Dean of the Faculty of Business Administration
of the Chinese University of Hong Kong from 1993 to 2002. Prior to
returning to Hong Kong, he was the director of Operations Research
at the Cullen College of Engineering and director of Graduate Studies
in Industrial Engineering at the University of Houston, and was also
involved with the U.S. Space Program in his career with McDonnell
Douglas and Ford Aerospace in the United States. He was the
consultant of various corporations in Hong Kong and overseas.
He is also active in public services, having served as a member of
the Provisional Regional Council of The Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region and various other committees,
and is also active on the boards of profit, non-profit and charitable
organisations in Hong Kong and overseas. From July 2010 to July
2013, he was an independent non-executive director of Cypress
Jade Agricultural Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00875). From August
2013 to July 2016, he was an independent non-executive director of
Shanghai La Chapelle Fashion Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 06116, Hong
Kong Stock Exchange). From June 2008 to June 2020, he was an
independent non-executive director of Beijing Capital International
Airport Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: 00694, Hong Kong Stock Exchange).
He currently serves as an independent non-executive director of Tianjin
Port Development Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 03382) (a company
listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange), Regal Hotels International
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 00078), Shougang Fushan Resources
Group Limited (Stock Code: 00639) and Binhai Investment Company
Limited (Stock Code: 02886) and Global Digital Creations Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 08271), and an independent supervisor of Beijing
Capital International Airport Company Limited (Stock Code: 00694), all
being companies listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Peng Zuowen (Z1EX), aged 44, joined the Company in
November 2018, graduated in Information Management from Beijing
Forestry University (At R KX E2) in July 2000. He had worked as
the Deputy Director of the Information Center of China Flower and
Gardening News ( {FREUTEFF ) {587 1Y), a newspaper affiiated to
the Economic Daily Newspaper Group (&% B R 2 5 ®). He is now
the General Manager of Zhongke Dianji (Beijing) Technology Company
Limited (FFRI2hE 1t ) AR A A)), the Chief Executive Officer and
the Chief Product Officer of Guoxin Youe Data Company Limited (12
BHERABMR AR, the Secretary of Big Data Applications Specialty
Association of China Software Industry Association, the Specially-
employed Expert of Beijing Forestry University Big Data Application
Engineering Laboratory and the Guest Professor of Internet Public
Sentiment of Communication University of China (4 B {8 1% K £48
wEIBEE ). He was the author of “Big Data Analysis by Industry”
( CREBUEDTTEKRBEMN) ) and the business definer of “big data”. He
is dedicated to three key areas including the management and the
practical application of big data in various industries, the research
and practice and application of big data empowerment in urban
industrial development, and the construction and operation of smart
cities by new-generation information technologies. As a result of his
contribution to the aforesaid three key areas, he was interviewed in the
CCTV program “Beyond” (CCTV &) # EB) and awarded with the
title “China Outstanding Innovative Entrepreneur of the Year 2017”.

SUPERVISORS

Shareholder Representative Supervisors

Mr. Wang Guanghua (£ Y %), aged 37, joined the Company in
May 2021 and was appointed as the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board. He is an accountant. He graduated from Jilin College of
Construction and Engineering with a bachelor’s degree in business
administration in 2007 and graduated from Jilin University with a
master’s degree in accounting in 2009. He has worked in TEDA
Holdings as a staff member of the Audit Department, a staff member
of the Office Secretary Section, a staff member of the Board Office, a
Deputy Director of the Board Office and a Director of the Board Office.
He is currently the Director of the Office of the Board of Directors,
the Director of the Audit Centre and the Party Branch Secretary of
TEDA Holding, as well as a Supervisor of Tianjin TEDA Green Group
Company Limited and a Director of Tianjin TEDA Company Limited.
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Mr. Yang Zhengliang (I R), aged 41, joined the Company in
August 2021. He is a Master’s degree holder, a senior accountant and
an internationally registered internal auditor (CIA). He was a section
officer, section head and middle rank of Tianjin Steel Pipe Group
Company Limited, the audit director of Beijing Naiwei Technology
Company Limited, the deputy director of the investment department
and the deputy general manager of the investment development
department of Tianjin Port (Group) Company Limited. He is currently
the chief representative of Tianjin Representative Office of Tianjin Port
Development Holdings Limited (stock code: 03382, Hong Kong Stock
Exchange), a shareholder.

Mr. Yan Jun (B ), aged 47, joined the Company in June 2020. He
graduated from Jilin University of Finance and Economics (formerly
Changchun Tax College), with a bachelor’s degree in economics, and
is an international Certified Internal Auditor (“CIA”). He once served as
the head of the audit department of Ninetowns Internet Technology
Group Co., Ltd. (NASDAQ: Nine), the head of the audit department of
CAR Inc. and the senior audit director of Lashou Network Technology
Co., Ltd. L FPLEFM B R A R]) etc. He currently serves as
the deputy general manager of New Business Cluster of Chia Tai
Pharmaceutical Investment (Beijing) Co., Ltd.
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Staff Representative Supervisors

Mr. Huang Fei (EZ), aged 35, joined the Company in April 2019
and became a staff representative supervisor of the Company in June
2020. He graduated from Tianjin University of Finance and Economics
in 2009 majoring in accounting (international accounting) with a
bachelor’s degree in management. He is an assistant accountant and
human resources professional (second-level). He was a staff member
of the human resources department and the organization department
of the Party Committee of TEDA Holding from 2009 to 2019. He
was also assigned to work in Tianjin Teda Urban Rail Investment and
Development Co., Ltd.* (RKEFEH M BNBEIRE ZHRAR A A from
2015 to 2018. Mr. Huang served as a supervisor of Shanghai FSG
(Tianjin) Human Resources Co., Ltd.* (L/&9MNR (RE)ANEBRAE
[R 22 7]) and the assistant of the asset management department of
the Company. He currently serves as the Secretary of the Integrated
Party Branch, the League branch secretary and deputy head of audit
department of the Company, a director of Yuan Da Logistics and
Bonded Warehouse and a supervisor of TEDA Supply Chain, all being
subsidiaries of the Company.

Ms. Lan Lingyan (B8 #), aged 40, joined the Company in August
2006 and became a staff representative supervisor of the Company in
June 2020. She graduated from Sichuan University in 2006 majoring
in chemical engineering and technology with a bachelor’s degree
in engineering. She served as an administrative secretary, business
manager of the Party and mass work department, deputy secretary
of the corporate joint Party branch of the Company. She is currently
the discipline officer of the Company’s labor union and the head of the
department of Party-masses work.
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Ms. Wang Linlin (E¥#f), aged 38, joined the Company in February
2010 and became a staff representative supervisor in June 2017.
She graduated from the Zhongnan University of Economics and Law
in 2007 with a bachelor’s degree (major in law); she also obtained
a bachelor’s degree (major in psychology) from the Central China
Normal University. Ms. Wang passed the National Judicial Exams of
the People’s Republic of China in 2009. She served as a specialist of
the risk management department, legal supervisor of the President’s
Office and the legal supervisor of the legal and risk control department
of the Company. She currently serves as the legal supervisor of the
general office of the Company.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yang Weihong (#4L), aged 53, the executive Director and
President of the Company. He is fully responsible for the Party building
and the operation of the Company. He is also in charge of the Party
building, audit and the work of the Board, as well as the operation,
legal affairs, risk management, information system, strategic emerging
projects and safety production of the Company. His biography is set
out in the sub-section headed “Executive Director” above.

Mr. Tang Zhizhong (BEE®), aged 52, graduated from the
Department of Industrial Business Management of Tianjin University
of Finance and Economics with a bachelor’s degree in economics
in 1991 and obtained the master’s degree in international shipping
and transport logistics from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
2005. From 1991 to 1994, he served with Tianjin Municipal Bureau
of Labor and Social Security as a clerk. From 1994 to 2002, he was
the associate chief officer, chief officer, chief and vice investigator of
the Work Committee of Tianjin Development Zone and Free Trade
Zone of the Communist Party of China successively. From 2002 to
2005, he was a vice investigator of the Administrative Committee of
Tianjin Development Zone. From 2005 to 2012, he served as head
of the business management department, assistant to the general
manager and executive deputy general manager of Fengtian Logistics.
In May 2012, he joined the Company as the general manager of the
comprehensive management department. From 2015 to 2017, he
served as the vice president of the Company and the general manager
of the comprehensive management department. He is currently the
Party branch committee member and vice president of the Company,
and the head of investment and development department of the
Company. He is also the director of Tianjin TEDA Alps and Dalian
TEDA Alps (both are the subsidiaries of the Company).
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Ms. Wu Yanmin (:R&i8)), aged 48, an intermediate accountant,
certified public accountant, certified tax agent, registered land valuer,
registered real estate valuer, and registered asset appraiser. She
graduated from Nanjing Forestry University with a major in accounting
in June 1994; graduated from Shandong Economics University with
a Bachelor’s degree in accounting in July 2001; and graduated from
Tianjin University of Finance and Economics with a Master’s degree in
accounting in June 2011. She was a cashier, accountant and financial
officer of Shandong Jining Pharmaceutical Corporation (LR & EET
Bezi = B\ 7)), a senior audit manager of the Tianjin Branch of China
Audit Certified Public Accountants LLP; she served as the financial
supervisor, the deputy financial manager, and the financial manager
of Tianjin Tifen Industrial Park Investment (Group) Co., Ltd and served
as the chief financial officer of Ringpai National Chain Veterinary
Hospital Management Co., Ltd. She joined the Company in July 2018
as the financial general manager of the Company. From May 2019 to
November 2020, she has served as the Chief Financial Officer and the
head of finance department of the Company. In November 2020, the
title of her role was changed to Vice President. She is currently the
Vice President of the Company and the head of finance department of
the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

31/F Gloucester Tower
The Landmark
11 Pedder Street

HLB) B # &t & ¥ 5 s & a4
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

Central
Hong Kong

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

TIANJIN BINHAI TEDA LOGISTICS (GROUP) CORPORATION
LIMITED

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tianjin Binhai
Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
131 to 287, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (‘IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements sections of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment assessment of trade, bills and other receivables

Refer to note 5 and note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

Our procedures in relation to independent professional
valuer’s ECL assessment on trade, bills and other
receivables included:

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had net trade, bills
and other receivables of approximately RMB676,670,000
(2020: approximately RMB777,065,000) and aggregated
provision for impairment of RMB298,427,000 (2020:
approximately RMB251,890,000).

In general, the credit terms granted by the Group to the
customers ranged between 30 to 180 days (2020: 30 to
180 days). Management applied judgement in assessing
the expected credit losses (“ECL”"). Receivables with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection are assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance. ECL are also estimated by
grouping the remaining trade, bills and other receivables
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its business
and its ageing category, and applying expected credit
loss rates to the respective gross carrying amounts
of the trade, bills and other receivables. The ECL
rates are determined based on historical credit losses
experienced and are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information such as macroeconomic
factors affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
trade, bills and other receivables.

We focused on this area due to the impairment
assessment of trade, bills and other receivables under
the expected credit losses model involved the use of
significant management judgements and estimates.

Understanding the key controls that the Group
has implemented to manage and monitor its credit
risk, and validating the control effectiveness on a
sample basis;

Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade, bills and other receivables as at 31
December 2021 to the underlying financial records
and post year-end settlements to bank receipts;

Inquiring of management for the status of each of
the material trade, bills and other receivables past
due as at year end and corroborating explanations
from management with supporting evidence,
understanding on-going business relationship with
the customers based on trade records, checking
historical and subsequent settlement records of
and other correspondence with the customers;
and

Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL
provisioning methodology, examining the key
data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-looking information, used to determine the
expected credit losses.

We found that the management judgment and
estimates used to assess the recoverability of the
trade, bills and other receivables and determine
the impairment provision to be supportable by
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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EREA G BHREE - EFAARGE
EEEFERENRE N WIREEFEL
LEMNSFR(ER) - RIFESHREE
SEBFRAIFILEE IR 2INTEE
ﬂﬂ,\m—fﬁmﬂ#/i BRIZRIRA AR ER
LREMMNEIE

% S0 6 5t &
N&E

BAWBE -

st S HE IS IRERARIE

EHEHB B HRREBEERES
TEEARMGFRERMEBME AR

RARSEERE  YHABRERME
ROZEERE - ROERZEBRRERS
BAWER @ Rt 2R RERIEE B
B o PR A TR E N BTEHEMRE A
}\ifﬁl,\&ﬁkﬁ*ﬁﬂfﬁ BERERS
IKFERRAE - L NMREBRRE BT £
APETTEVER - AR —BAHERBLAFE
FrABREEE IR - SRR AT I IRGF S SE AR EE
£ REEBEMb P BB K E AR R A
ERFESHVBRRERE  KEZFA
HPBHRREHEERER - MBRED
B ERBUR AR B EK ©

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

127



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B BT &

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise {ERRIBEEBEFTERETHET TIEM—

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism &%

» PR B R AT R (EE R

throughout the audit. We also: BRRFEERELEE - K-

® |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the

consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

e  (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit  ®
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, action taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B ABET R &
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
B BT &

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Yau Wai Ip.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yau Wai lp
Practising Certificate Number: PO7849

Hong Kong, 22 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EHEEREAMZERAR

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 2021 12 431 Hi1FF/Z

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B aE ARBTRT ARETR
Revenue WA 6 3,069,814 2,880,818
Cost of sales SHE KA (2,896,417) (2,713,283)
Gross profit EF 173,397 167,535
Administrative expenses TBRAX (59,195) (53,557)
Other gain and loss - net H oz K B8 — 55 7 25,274 19,188
Gain on change in fair value of REMEIAABEEEH
investment properties e 15 9,511 4,700
Impairment loss of trade, bills and EHRKFIA - BRER
other receivables, net K2 B A E WK IR R (B
B8R 4. 1biii (46,537) (179,343)
Operating profit/(loss) R, (BER) 102,450 (41,477)
Finance costs BbE KA 10 (23,545) (33,479
Share of profit of investments accounted HAEREARSY
for using the equity method eI E R 11b 33,755 20,285
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETEBANER,(FR) 8 112,660 (54,671)
Income tax expenses FrS iR 2 12 (33,352) (27,444)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERR(FHE) 79,308 (82,115)
Other comprehensive loss Htt2mEEE
ltem that will not be reclassified HEetTgawoEr
subsequently to profit or loss: B&mWIEE -
Equity Instruments at fair value through BREMEEBAZAR
other comprehensive income BEARNERTA (20,382) (3,191)
Total comprehensive income/(loss) EEZEBRA
for the year (BE)BHR 58,926 (85,306)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

S EEREMEERAR
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B aE ARBTRT ARETR
Profit/(loss) for the year THEFEEFEE
attributable to: wmAL(EE) ¢
Owners of the Company ZA/NEIEZ =N 33,682 (129,386)
Non-controling interest FEVERR R 45,626 47,271
79,308 (82,115)
Total comprehensive TH&FELEE
income/(loss) attributable to: WA (B8 ) #%E
Owners of the Company IN/NEIE Z N 13,300 (132,577)
Non-controling interest FEIE AR M 45,626 47,271
58,926 (85,306)
Earnings/(loss) per share BRAEF,(Ei8)
(RMB cents) (AE®SD)
- Basic and diluted —EARREE 13 10 (37)
Dividends &5 29 - —

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTITION
B ot B &

For the year ended 31 December 2021 & Z 2021 4 12 5 31 AL F/ZE

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2021 2020
2021 F 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BsE AR®BTR AR%®TT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB R&E 14 241,496 269,853
Investment properties REME 15 412,900 307,700
Amount due from joint venture EUE & HER 18 147,737 —
Investments accounted for using HAEZ= &)\%E’J&é
the equity method 11b 227,225 226,181
Equity instruments at fair value FREMEEW A
through other comprehensive income NABEARD
HaTHE 11c 36,837 57,219
1,066,195 860,953
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 9 18,114
Trade, bills and other receivables B S RWGIA - BIR
TR I E th FE YR IE 18 528,933 777,065
Pledged bank deposits BEHIR{TER 19 123,289 129,560
Cash and cash equivalents BeNBREEEYD 19 357,757 448,504
1,009,988 1,373,243
Total assets WEE 2,076,183 2,234,196
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkEaE
Equity attributable to owners AAREBAEGESR
of the Company
Share capital fi& 7x 20 354,312 354,312
Other reserves H b b 21 98,224 113,380
Retained earnings RE AT 22 394,308 365,852
846,844 833,544
Non-controlling interests IR E S 137,196 134,146
Total equity RS 984,040 967,690

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

133



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSTITION

SRR R
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

B E ARBTRE ARETET

LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBEME
Deferred income PIEMA 26 4,402 4,613
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 52,491 82,146
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE 28 56,997 56,997
113,890 143,756
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables 5 RHEMERFIE 23 591,981 575,419
Contract liabilities E48E 24 106,937 127,773
Current income tax liabilities EHFGHAasE 6,798 9,250
Borrowings B 25 251,490 349,500
Lease liabilities HEaE 27 21,047 60,808
978,253 1,122,750
Total liabilities wmesE 1,092,143 1,266,506
Total equity and liabilities HEZKREE 2,076,183 2,234,196
Net current assets RBEEFE 31,735 250,493
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBEE 1,097,930 1,111,446

These consolidated financial statements were approved and #ZEAHMEHRRCKEHEST SN 2022
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2022 and F3 A22 Bt /& RIRETIEE - WHMNU T

were signed on its behalf by: ATREEE -
Yang Weihong Zheng Yuying
BEAL ey
Director Director
BF EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated K& Ff i sE i A 3% 5 & BT 1S SRR A0 — 3P
financial statements. n

o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
EOEZSE X

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 2021 12 431 Hi1FF/Z

Attributable to owners of the Company

LNGIE 2PN L
Other Non-
Share reserves  Retained controlling Total
capital  (Note 21) earnings  Sub-total interests equity
Hittf
BRA  (K&E21) REEA st FEREZ BER

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETR ARBTR ARETT ARBTT ARETR

Balance 1 January 2020 7220201 A1 BH)
wa 354,312 112,749 499,060 966,121 118,556 1,084,677

(Loss)/profit for the year £ (E518) /& H =
Other comprehensive loss ~ FE £ 2 EEE

(129,386)  (129,386) 47211 (82,115)

for the year = (3,191) = (3,191) = (3,191)
Total comprehensive (loss)) EE2E (&),

income for the year Nt = (3,191)  (129,386)  (132,577) 47,271 (85,306)
Transfer to other reserves  ERZ H i - 3,822 (3.822) - - -
Dividends paid to B RFEERE R

non-controlling interests IR AIR 8 = - = = (31,681) (31,681)

Balance at 31 December ~ ®2020F12 A31 B R
2020 and 1 January 2021 20211 A1 B

e 354,312 113,380 365,852 833,544 134,146 967,690
Profit for the year FEEA = = 33,682 33,682 45,626 79,308
Other comprehensive loss ~ FE E 2 HEEE
for the year = (20,382) = (20,382) — (20,382)
Total comprehensive (loss)) FE2E (&),
income for the year WABEE = (20,382) 33,682 13,300 45,626 58,926
Transfer to other reserves  EEZEpEE - 5,226 (5,226) - - -
Dividends paid to ERIEERERIRT
non-controlling interests ol dss = = = - (42,576) (42,576)

Balance at 31 December #2021 E12831 8
2021 a3 354,312 98,224 394,308 846,844 137,196 984,040

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  BEKIHI I B Z S & MY EHRER A — =B
financial statements. 77 e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EOHEETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #;%2 20214 12 431 AIFF/E

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B aE AR®TRT ARETT
Cash flows generated from RETEMB
operating activities HERE
Cash generated from operations LEBAGERS 31 138,241 775,158
Interest received B U F B 16,637 12,007
Interest paid B FLE (23,545) (26,531)
Income tax paid BERAER (35,804) (26,734)
Net cash generated from operating activities #& 4 EEFT1SIR & F 58 95,529 733,900
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHERESRE
Decrease/(increase) in pledged BERRITFERRD
bank deposits (H#hm) 6,271 (1,787)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E W% - ME LR&RE (15,808) (25,972)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BEMERE
plant and equipment Fri5 k18 976 11,687
Dividend income from equity investments REREZREHREBA 577 —
Dividends received from investments BiI%E 2B BB 32,711 20,662
Net cash generated from investing activities & & EE TSR & /F 58 24,727 4,590
Cash flows from financing activities METHRSRE
Proceeds from borrowings BRI PTIS TR 251,490 589,500
Repayments of borrowings EEEX (349,500) (1,197,528)
Repayments of lease liabilities HEAaBZEENA (70,417) (56,891)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests & [A] FE4% i% 4 25 Rk 1
B % B (42,576) (31,681)
Net cash used in financing activities RERBTARSFE (211,003) (696,600)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ“ /)|
cash equivalents W), IR (90,747) 41,890
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January B/\1 A1EMRS R
e EEY 448,504 406,614
Cash and cash equivalents fﬁ/\ 1231 HMRE X
at 31 December B EEY 357,757 448,504

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BT BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 2021 12 431 Hi1FF/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION

Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively refer to as, “the
Group”) are principally engaged in provision of logistics and
supply chain solutions services and trading and related logistics
services in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company was established as an investment holding
company in the PRC by its promoters, Tianjin Teda Investment
Holding Co., Ltd. (RKIEREREZER AR A F) (“TEDA Holding”)
and Tianjin Economic and Technological Development Area
State Asset Operation Company (KE&L B TFEERAEE
EE#LZ N 7)) (“TEDA Asset Company”) as a joint stock limited
company on 26 June 2006. Both TEDA Holding and TEDA Asset
Company are controlled by Tianjin Economic and Technological
Development Area Administrative Commission (“TEDA
Administrative Commission”).

Pursuant to the Group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
in preparation for the listing of the Company’s overseas listed
foreign shares (“H shares”) on the Growth Enterprises Market (the
“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”), the Company became the holding company of the
Group in June 2006. The Company’s H shares were listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange on 30 April 2008.

On 18 November 2011, TEDA Holding entered into a share
transfer agreement with Chia Tai Land Company Limited (“Chia
Tai Company”), while TEDA Asset Company entered into a share
transfer agreement with Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Investment
(Beijing) Co., Ltd. (“Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Company”).
Accordingly, TEDA Holding and TEDA Asset Company agreed
to transfer 28,344,960 (8% of ordinary shares) and 77,303,789
(21.82% of ordinary shares) domestic shares of the Company
to Chia Tai Company and Chia Tai Pharmaceutical Company
respectively. In 2012, the two aforementioned domestic share
transfers were approved by the relevant state-owned assets
supervision and administration authorities of the PRC. The
registration procedures of the related transfers have been
completed on 7 June 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued) 1.

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors of the Company consider
TEDA Holding as the immediate holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company.

The address of the registered office are principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in “Corporate
Information” section to the annual report.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), which is also the functional currency of the
Company unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 22 March 2022.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which is a collective term that includes
all applicable individual IFRSs, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”), and
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.
For the propose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is considered material if such information is
reasonably expected to influence decision made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group and the Company. Note 2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies
resulting from initial application relevant to the Group for
the current and prior accounting periods reflected in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for equity instruments
at fair value through other comprehensive income and
investment properties that are measured at fair values at the
end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair
value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of IFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of IFRS16, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in IAS 2 Inventories or value in use in IAS
36 Impairment of Assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)
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Basis of measurement (Continuead)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

e |evel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The Group’s principal operations
are conducted in the PRC. The consolidated financial
statements have been presented in RMB, which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d) Application of Amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the IASB for the first
time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2021 for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements:

2. RAEERER)

(d)

FE PR AR5 5T B PR Bt 75 i o5 22 A
([EFR A RS SRS 2R )

TG [ 3 | A R B AE 1S 5T B
BRI e A

RAEE  AEEREA Y
BHERREREA B 2021 F1
A1Bskz &Gz FEHE
58 ) A5 2k A [ 12 sl B B B 75 R
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PR e ERBESHEAA
KBS T 2 BIRR B R s 15 22 A -

Amendment to IFRS 16
BIRR B 3RS RIS 16 SR (BT AN)
Amendment to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7,

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
2 COVID-19 &R %R
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

BIFR B 5 5 2 RIS O 5%
REEtERIE 395 - BV BHmE
FERIE 757 - BIRPBIHREERIFE 457 1%
BRI B ERERIE 16 5% (BFTA)

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision of the
IFRS Interpretations Committee (the “Committee”) of the
International Accounting Standards Board issued in June
2021 which clarified the costs an entity should include
as “estimated costs necessary to make the sale” when
determining the net realisable value of inventories.

The application of the amendments to IFRS Standards
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Group’s financial performance and positions for the current
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea) 2. REE®EZ)

(d) Application of Amendments to International Financial (d) FER&IEET BB B %5 3R 45 22 A
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued) (TEIRRET SR E 2R 1) (&)
New and amendments to IFRSs that have been Issued but BB E 5 K £ X2 FTET B BY
not yet effective RIS BRI RAEET R
The Group has not early applied the following new and REBWHEIEAERATER
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet MR1E 8 R A R FTE] A AE 5T
effective: BREF RS RS 4R -

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related Amendments?

BUpR B 7 S YE RSB 755 R a & RABRIERT A2

Amendment to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework®

BIPR BT s R B35k (1B5]AN) BESR MR

Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture'

BB B 75 5 E RIZE 1057 K2 REEFHEBENANAENHEELEH TR’

B2 ERIFE285, (1B5]A)

Amendment to IFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond
30 June 20214

BIRR B B SR 5 22 R 16 5% (183 ) 20214 6 A 30 H 2% 8 COVID-19 18R & s % ¢

Amendment to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current and
related amendments to International Interpretation 5
(2020)?

BIPR & 5T RIS 1 5 (185 AX) BESEARINIERE RERREE S5
MHREAEET (2020 4F ) 2

Amendment to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

and IFRS Practice Statement 2
e a2 RISE 1 5 N BPR B 75 v s 22 R SETBUR I EE 2
BRREE 2R UEEFTA)

Amendment to IFRS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
B PR B 75 R 5 22 RIS 8 5% (BT AR) BEbETZ EE?
Amendment to IFRS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising From
a Single Transaction?
BRI E 12 5 ((BRT ) HE-QRHGELNEERBBEBZRELENIEA?
Amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment —Proceeds
before Intended Use®
e ERIE 165 (BT ) M - BB N ERE — BE BRI 2 RS RUR?
Amendment to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfiling a Contract®
S &R ERISE 37 5 (IBFT ) BRMEHN-BITaKZBARS
Amendment to IFRS Standards Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020°
B B 75 ¥R 5 Bl (BT X)) 2018 F 2 2020 FRIR M B H £ R 2 FE UL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d) Application of Amendments to International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

New and amendments to IFRSs that have been Issued but
not yet effective (Continued)

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in the
foreseeable future.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements, and have been applied consistently by Group
entities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(a)

144 Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited K)2/&8 /8 Z=E YR &

Basis of consolidation

The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in the consolidated
financial statements, and have been applied consistently by
Group entities.

® has power over the investee;

® is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

* has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an
investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

e the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

*  potential voting rights held by the Group,other vote
holders or other parties;

* rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EEASSIHBRIRE &)
(Continued)

(a) Basis of consolidation (Continued) (a) EHIEEE)

®* any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time that
decisions need to be made, including voting patterns
at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the noncontrolling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(b)

Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as
held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5. Under the equity method, an investment in
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group’s
interest in that associate or joint venture (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(b)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint venture.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of
the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the
cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or joint venture may be
impaired. When an objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset
that forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in
accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

EABFHR

(b)

RIlk S (47)

REHENTREE DT (E)
REtE QR AEERAIMIRE
BIREHRKREERRINE
ENAlZ BRZEREANR o

WEEREZ AR E & A FHY
RER  BEKNNBBAEE
BlEREHRABNEERE
BRAAEBEFENTMAISE
REPME FARENER
B AEERGEAUENEER
BEANBEFEBREIRENK
ROEME D - REF(GE
MR ERE AT ERTE

27
e

AEBFERTEERERE
TRBHE A AR A DR R

Bl lrER(E - ERBER

FHER  RENZHKEES
RIBBIFR S5 £R% 36 5IER

B-BEETRENR 5%
AEER B RE(BNFERE
BEHEAALBER LSRR
mE)EEREBEELR - F
B R R EREEBKIEE
FREEN—HrD - WERKRE
F AU Bl S KEIG N - RIAR &R EX
R TR SE 36 SRR ZRE
EERED -

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

147



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(b)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with
a resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.
When the Group retains an interest in the former associate
or joint venture and the retained interest is a financial
asset within the scope of IFRS 9, the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value at that date and the fair
value is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture and the fair value of any retained interest and
any proceeds from disposing of the relevant interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a
gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive
income by that associate or joint venture would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss
from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associate or
joint venture.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to
fair value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Investment in associates and joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related
assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate or joint
venture that are not related to the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Group’s senior management that
makes strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(d)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity’s
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

e exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

* exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the
foreign operation), which are recognised initially in
other comprehensive income and reclassified from
equity to profit or loss on repayment of the monetary
items.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(d)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
that period, in which case the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions are used. Exchange differences arising,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a
joint arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign
operation of which the retained interest becomes a financial
asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate
share of accumulated exchange differences are re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in profit
or loss. For all other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals
of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in
the Group losing significant influence or joint control),
the proportionate share of the accumulated exchange
differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings are
tangible assets that are held for use in the production or
supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than construction in progress) are stated at historical
cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.
Cost may also include transfers from equity of any gains/
losses on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

(Continued)

(e)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

Property, plant and equipment (Continued) (e)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are charged to the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, the
depreciation rate per annum is as follows:

Buildings

Machinery

Furniture and office equipment
Motor vehicles

5
3
RARMAERNA
e

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(e)

(f

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Construction in progress represents the direct costs of
construction incurred of property, plant and equipment
less any impairment losses. No provision for depreciation
is made on construction in progress until such time
the relevant assets are completed and put into use.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “Other gain and loss — net” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Investment property

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties
include land held for undetermined future use, which is
regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are measured
at fair value, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued
operating lease income.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount
of the investment properties under construction.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Investment property (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposal. A leased property which is recognised
as a right-of-use asset is derecognised if the Group as
intermediate lessor classifies the sublease as a finance
lease. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwiill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
CGUs, when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. SEASSHRIME #)

(Continued)

(g) Impairment on property, plant and equipment and (9)

right-of-use assets other than goodwill (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of
the group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its
value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

156  Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X =& 8 FE Wik & RN BR A F)

ERE(BHERI) (&)

A EER SRR EBERLE
RAEERBEMETONRS
& o EaHEEREER - A5
ARIREmE IR AR TATRL
AEPREARE  FURE
[RER B BT 58 B E e (B
BrMEEGREELEM)H
KA RBRA S - MR E
REREBL ARBULAELFHE -

st EE (KR EEEN)
ZA el REREREE -
AIBE(SREELEN)ZK
HERHEEEAT OISR -
AR EE —BEESR
EREEABUNAREEN
MAORAEEMS A5 H
K—AREELBUMNKREE
(BRESEE—HRSELE
BUNARIBEELMLO AAIE
EMEREE) EZERSESE
BRANAIKRESREETHER -
RoOEBERBER  BEERE
BEEDENRDEENERR
BONER)  ARREBEELK
—HRECELBUPEREE
MREERLPIDEEEMBE
E- - BENEREENRER
PE R A B E R b S B (1
AFE) ERAEEWAE
EIRTBE=ZFR2H&SE - K
ROEREEENREBRSHR
Bl ol =R B —HER
TEABMUNEMEE - BE
ERRNES N 18 a5 BERR o



3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(9)

(h)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets other than goodwill (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUS)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUSs) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to
or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest and dividend income which are derived from the
financial assets and shareholders’ rights are presented as
“other gain and loss — net”.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI”):

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), except that at the
date of initial application/initial recognition of a financial asset
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which IFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

(Continued)
(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

® on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profittaking or

® it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised
cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of
financial assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired. For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the asset is
no longer credit impaired.

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOC/

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the other
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment. The
cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or
loss on disposal of the equity investments.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments are
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly
represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.
Dividends are included in the “other gain and loss — net” line
item in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest
earned on the financial asset and is included in the other
gain and loss — net line item in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment assessment under
IFRS 9 (including trade receivables, bills receivables, other
receivables, amount due from joint venture, pledged banks
deposits and bank balances. The amount of ECL is updated
at each reporting period to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected
to result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting period as well as the forecast of
future conditions.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the reporting period with the risk of a default occurring on
the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

® significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

* existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to
ensure that the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers
an event of default occurs when information developed
internally or obtained from external sources indicates that
the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors, including the
Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than 1 year
past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criterion is more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
of default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidatio n or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be subject
to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forwardlooking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights. The
Group uses a practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables using a provision matrix taking into
consideration historical credit loss experience and forward
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(h) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for
cases where evidence at the individual instrument level may
not yet be available, the financial instruments are grouped
on the following basis:

e Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade and other receivables and amounts due from
customers are each assessed as a separate group.
Loans to related parties are assessed for expected
credit losses on an individual basis);

e  Past-due status;

*  Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share
similar credit risk characteristics.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to
control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability
for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise
the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised
borrowing for the proceeds received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

A modification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group assesses whether the revised terms
result in a substantial modification from original terms
taking into account all relevant facts and circumstances
including qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not
conclusive, the Group considers the terms are substantially
different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees
received, and discounted using the original effective interest
rate, is at least 10 per cent different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original
financial asset, after reducing gross carrying amount that
has been written off.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted
at the financial assets’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted to the
carrying amount of the modified financial assets and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in profit
or loss at the date of modification.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Perpetual instruments, which include no contractual
obligation for the Group to deliver cash or other financial
assets or the Group has the sole discretion to defer
payment of distribution and redemption of principal amount
indefinitely are classified as equity instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including borrowings, lease liabilities, and
trade and other payables) are subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

3.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(h)

(i)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in the profit or loss.

Provision

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(i)

)
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Provision (Continued)
Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a present obligation arising from past
events but is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is jointly and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a contingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow
of future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no
reliable estimate can be made.

Inventories

Inventories which consist of cargos are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of inventories
are is determined using on a first-in-first out method. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less all estimated costs of completion
and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs necessary to
make the sale include incremental costs directly attributable
to the sale and non-incremental costs which the Group
must incur to make the sale.

3.

BB ARAT

BABFTHR

U]

)

RItk S (47)

Biw(E)

FAABEABENEHSIE
MIRAE - B EERER
HE TR 2R RELER
ﬁéﬂ@ﬁ/uuwﬂj;}:ﬁﬁ?&ﬁ?%j& ’
FEZBBONSREERS
FEiEE -

HMAREHRARBERES
Bif - BRFEEMETET
MZBOEHBRAREIARE
& NIEA OB K P

_73
s ©

ZXEIT\%‘ 1Ta04 - DARESE
W BN ERINEZR
EWZ\%T% o fli LA BT /E & 3 A
BERENEBRALETE
RRLER S RE - Bl
BEMEAENRERARNES
MU BmATRAERE B
BmEFERNERLTEEELA
SEREETEFER SN o

FE
B WA B A K]
BRFENREER - FE
XA PR SR A 5 th B9 TR BERE ©
AERFEANAEER AR
S EER S A AR
SERCRAN B TTSH B H) 0 B K
o EITHEMT RN EIE
HEEEREBENIEERAR R
AEBRETHEM YA
IEERA -



3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(k)

U

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated and entity balance sheet,
bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issuance of new ordinary shares
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (treasury shares), the consideration
paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs
(net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to owners of the Company until the shares are cancelled
or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are subsequently
reissued, any consideration received, net of any directly
attributable incremental transaction costs and the related
income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s equity owners.

EASEBERIRSE ()

(k)

U]

RERREEEY

REHBRESRERA  REM
ReFEMERTERSE R
TZRAER  REHAR=
BEASKATHEME RS RE
MIRE - URRTTES - XA
HEEREERBERA  RTT
BXERDABNNBRIEAT

EX ]

IR

TRERBR AR BEERRAE
BITH L B BRI AN
=AY RS RIENRIER
(FNBRBLIR) ©

EEAEELAREEAQFN
BA(EFBA ) FTai e
RE(BRETAMEBKAETA
EREENBINKAR)BAR
RIEEARGERNER B
ZERMDPEEIEBRETR
Ik BREEBRE G ENE
17+ B WO BR Y £E o] (X (B (F0 B
T EZEENRBRINZZHRA
LRBBREREE)EFAR
NEEREA AR -

2021 ANNUAL REPORT 4 #

175



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(m) Borrowings

(n)

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
(Continued)

(n)

(o)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

Borrowing costs (Continued) (n)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Related parties (o)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is
related to the Group if that person:

(@)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of a parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB mAME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

(Continued)

(o) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

@)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of the group of which the other entity is
a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(o) Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

)

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

A person identified in (i)(a) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

(Continued)
(o) Related parties (Continued)

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or he influence
by, that person in their dealing with the and include:

(a) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(o) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of the person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

A transaction is considered to be a related party transaction
when there is a transfer of resources or obligations between
related parties.

(p) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

(Continued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(p) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

0

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if
they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

(Continued)

(p) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(i)

Deferred income tax (Continued)
Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements,
except for deferred income tax liability where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates. Only where
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group
the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there
is sufficient taxable profit available against which the
temporary difference can be utilised.

3.

182  Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X =& 8 FE Wik & BN BR A F)

EASEHHERIRSE ()

(p)

=

(i)

RIEEFRSH (&)

BT3B
SINEREARER

BELEFEHEERMBA
Al BENRNEA R
BREELZERRERE
EmEE  EREASE
ARG E R ER 2 R
RfE - MERERAEAE
REKRARRETEREDA
BRON o =T - ANKE
EORYEHI B OB E AR
FRESERR - BEHERILA
BRPENERT - AEE
7 BE SRR I 1% [0 R FE R Y
SR

EXEFSIREETIMIRE
a1 = PNCIIR: e WNCIYE
B LR E A BRI FR R
IRy Z= BRI AERE - A B R
F A 2 R A AT REIS B 1R B
O A A Re B A TE R MR
AR A K 55 A R B B
BERR -



3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
(Continued)

(p) Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
(i) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the
balances on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model, the
carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale, except for freehold land,
which is always presumed to be recovered entirely through
sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

(p)

(q)

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right- of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities separately. Temporary differences relating to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

Employee benefits

Payments to a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
are dealt with as payment to defined contribution plan which
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to contribution.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

()

(s)

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and
equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
income and are credited to the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related
assets. Such grants are presented under other gain and
loss - net.

Revenue and other income
Revenue from contracts with customers

Under IFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

(Continued)
(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

(s)

Revenue and other income (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with IFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s
unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer. A contract asset
and a contract liability relating to a contract are accounted
for an presented on a net basis.

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations, the Group allocates the transaction price to
each performance obligation on a relative stand-alone
selling price basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY

(Continued)

(s) Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of raw materials is recognised
when control of the products has transferred, being at
the point the products are delivered to the customer
and the customer has accepted the products, and
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
customer’s acceptance of the products.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on
the price specified in the contract, net of discounts,
returns and value added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are
delivered and the customers accept the products,
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

Sale of services

Revenue from rendering of logistics services for
finished vehicles, supply chain management for
automobile components and parts, warehousing
services and related logistics services for steel trading
are recognised upon the completion of services due to
the short duration of the service period.

For sales of services, revenue is recognised at point
in time in accounting period in which the services
rendered, by reference to completion of the specific
transaction and assessed on the basis of actual
services provided.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.
(Continued)

(s)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

Revenue and other income (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the
gross carrying amount of the asset. For credit impaired
financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to
the amortised cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of
loss allowance) of the asset.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised in the statement
of financial position initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received and that the
Group will comply with the conditions attaching to
them. Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or loss on
a systematic basis in the same periods in which the
expenses are incurred. Grants that compensate the
Group for the cost of an asset are initially recognised
as deferred income and subsequently recognised
in profit or loss upon on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset by way of reduced depreciation
expense.

Dividends income from equity instruments

Dividend income from unlisted equity investments is
recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment is established.

Dividend income from listed equity investments is
recognised when the share price of the investment
goes ex-dividend.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

®

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under IFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components, including
contract for acquisition of ownership interests of a property
which includes both leasehold land and non-lease building
components, unless such allocation cannot be made
reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

3.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of motor vehicles and properties
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. It also applies the recognition exemption for lease
of low-value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight- line basis or another systematic basis over the
lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

* any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

® any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

e an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

®

Leases (Continuead)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Except for those that are classified as investment
properties and measured under fair value model, right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets in “property, plant
and equipment”, the same line them within which the
corresponding underlying asset would be presented if they
were owned.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease
is not readily determinable.

3.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease
liability comprise:

fixed lease payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

® variable lease payments that depend on an index or
rate, initially measured using the index or rate at the
commencement date;

e the amount expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise the options; and

* payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the exercise of an option to
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that reflect changes in market
rental rates are initially measured using the market rental
rates as at the commencement date. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are not
included in the measurement of lease liabilities and right-of-
use assets, and are recognised as expense in the period
in which the event or condition that triggers the payment
OCCUrs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

(Continued)

(t) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever;

* the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

Lease liabilities are presented as separate line item. The
Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

* the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the standalone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that standalone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease incentives from lessor by making
corresponding adjustments to the relevant right-of-
use asset. When the modified contract contains a lease
component and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the
modified contract to each lease component on the basis
of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

®

Leases (Continuead)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Lease modification

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

3.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

* any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
IFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

®
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Leases (Continuead)
The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the commencement date at
amounts equal to the Group’s net investment in the leases,
measured using the interest rate implicit in the respective
lease. Initial direct costs (other than those incurred by
manufacturer or dealer lessors) are included in the initial
measurement of the net investments in the leases. Interest
income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect
a constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model. Upon application of IFRS 16 on 1 January 2019,
variable lease payments for operating leases that depend
on an index or a rate are estimated and included in the total
lease payments to be recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income
when they arise.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are presented as revenue.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY 3.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

(Continued)

®

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-lease
components, the Group applies IFRS 15 to allocate the
consideration under the contract to each component. Non-
lease components are separated from lease component on
the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
IFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICY
(Continued)

®

(u)

Leases (Continuead)
The Group as a lessor (Continued)
Sale and leaseback transactions

The Group applies the requirements of IFRS 15 to assess
whether sale and leaseback transaction constitutes a sale
by the Group.

For a transfer that satisfies the requirements as a sale, the
Group as a seller-lessee measures the right-of-use asset
arising from the leaseback at the proportion of the previous
carrying amount of the asset and recognises any gain or
loss that relates to the rights transferred to the buyer-lessor
only.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial assets and liabilities include
trade, bills and other receivables, pledged bank deposits
cash and cash equivalents, trade and other payables,
borrowings and lease liabilities. The risks associated with
these financial assets and liabilities include market risk
(interest rate risk and foreign currency risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

(a) Market risks
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
various currency exposures, primarily with
respect to RMB, Japanese Yen (“Yen”) and USD
Dollars (“USD”). Foreign exchange risk arises
from future commercial transactions, recognised
as sets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. The management do not
expect the net foreign currency risk from these
activities to be significant and hence, the Group
do not presently hedge the foreign exchange
risks. The Group periodically review liquid
assets and liabilities held in currencies other
than the functional currencies of the respective
subsidiaries to evaluate its foreign exchange risk
exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(@) Market risks (Continued)
(i) Foreign exchange risk (Continueqd)
Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 10% against the USD with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
RMB186,000 (2020: approximately RMB179,000)
higher/lower.

(ii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of rate changes on
interest bearing financial assets and liabilities,
mainly bank balances and cash and bank
borrowings. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at fixed rate of interests so as to
minimise the fair value interest rate risk. The
Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, management will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the need arise.

202  Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited X388 /82 Yin £ @R M AR A 7

i mRERE 7)
BHEBREEE)

5z (&)

4.1

@)

(i)

(i)

SNEmBR(4F)

K2021%12 A
1A AR
AETRE/F
E10%  mMATAH

fo T B E R
o B4 PR 1L

F #5385 0,k A 49
A FE #186,000 7T
(2020F : W AR
#179,0007C) °

RERBRAAE
EFRER

AEERFEXA
RBEHFE R
TREERAGE(E
ERRITEHR KRR
A RIRITHE )
AXRERENEK
BB o NE&EEHK
RBRFFETIAE
BERE - UEQAA
EEMNXARRE
RE - ARERK
I & RERITAE
TEAHNNUEHRE
A A R E o
A EREBRN
FBERZ R
ERMEEL



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@) Market risks (Continued)

(1)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continueq)

The sensitivity analysis below has been prepared
based on the exposure to interest rates for
interest bearing bank balances and variable rate
bank borrowings at the balance sheet date and
on the assumption that the amount of assets and
liabilities outstanding at the balance sheet date
was outstanding for the whole year.

If interest rates on bank balances and variable-
rate bank borrowings had been 100 basis
points (2020: 100 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, post-
tax profit for the year will increase/decrease
by approximately RMB1,722,000 (2020:
approximately RMB1,714,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

4.

FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

©)

Credit risk

Majority of the Group’s revenue is received from
individual customers in relation to logistics and
supply chain service for finished automobiles and
materials procurement and related logistic services
and are transacted in cash or credit. The Group’s
trade receivables arise from logistics and supply
chain service for finished automobiles and materials
procurement and related logistic services. The Group
has concentration of credit risk as 30% (2020: 23%)
and 52% (2020: 46%) of the total trade receivables
was due from the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers, respectively. The management
of the Group makes periodic assessment on the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables based
on historical payment records, the length of overdue
period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the debtors.

4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk refer to the risk that the Group’s
counterparties default in their contractual obligations
resulting in financial losses to the Group.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to financial assets is the carrying amounts
of trade, bill and other receivables, pledged bank
deposits and bank balance.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Other monitoring procedures are in place to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
IFRS 9 on trade balances individually or based on
provision matrix. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not
indicate significantly different loss patterns for different
customer segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

4.

FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

©)
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Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on bill receivables are limited because
the counter parties have no historical default
record and the ECL on these items are considered
insignificant.

Besides, the Group monitors financial position of
debtors of other receivables closely and follow-up
action will be taken to recover overdue debts. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider the
Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

Deposit and other receivables as well as amount due
from joint venture are measured as either 12-month
ECL or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. The Group
established ECL model based on historical settlement
records, past experience and available forward-
looking information which include GDP and other
macro-economic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables. The Group’s other
receivables are deposits or receivables arose from
normal operations, which based on management’s
assessment, the credit risk is not significant. In this
regard, the directors are satisfied that the risks of
impairment are monitored and adequate provision,
if any, has been made in the consolidated financial
statements. On that basis, the expected loss rate as at
31 December 2021 was 3.24% (2020: 2.12%). Further
quantitative disclosures in respect of trade and other
receivables are set out in Note 18.

4.

BB ARAT

i mRERE 7)
BHEBREEE)

4.1

©)

LV AC )

FRUREBENEERRE
R RASYFHEELE
#rek - EFHE WA
EEEBEETRE

SN REBEYERH
fib FE UL SR IB B 5 A B B 75
RS - WEEEUR HETTEN IR
Bl BAEIE - BLtm = -
$“ﬂ§$mﬁ$ﬁlz
=sERBAIERD
FR - HAth pE U FRIE K 8
e & hERBIZI12(E
RAEHEEBERFE
BHEEEEE - BUA
REEXERUREER
PR B Em AR - AEE
BEATEERE  BF
KB RIS EATRE M B R
(BREBERNEES @&H
b LB R 45 H WK
%ﬁmtﬁﬁﬁlﬁn,
VEHEEEEEDR -
REEREMERKIER
FREBEENIRSHIE
WRIE - RIBERENT
- EEERRBRYTE
N ﬁMﬁa*§$%m
EERRERR KA A G
Bz ANIEL 2 HEE
(nF) - EHERE L - R
2021F 12 A31H W &
HiES 18R 5 3.24% (2020
F:212%)c BEHEE 5
N E M EBGRIE R —
SLFEBEEHNHTEE18 ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

©)

Credit risk (Continued)

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customer’s past history
of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to
the customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates. Trade
receivables are due within 30 to 180 days from the
date of billing.

As at 31 December 2021, all of the Group’s pledged
bank deposits and bank deposits were deposited
with financial institutions which are reputable banks
with high credit rating incorporated in Mainland China.
Management believes that these financial institutions
are of high credit quality and does not have significant
credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Provision of trade receivables

The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
which are assessed on a collective basis by using
provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired). On that basis, the ECL loss allowance
of trade receivables as at 31 December 2021 are:

HREREER 2
41 BH¥EEREREZEE)

b) 1EEER(E)

(i)

B2 RWRERE

TRERERFES
ABEREEERE
EERIE) AR
wREIALKES N
BREENICE Y G
ENEERBRNE
Fteo U ER
M 2021412 A 31
B E 5 KR
BHEEERENE
BREETENT

Trade receivables

B A RWHIE
More than ~ More than
1 day 1 year
but less but less
than 1 than2 More than
No past  yearpast years past 2 years
due due due  past due Total
by B
1XEL  B1ERE  AHBA
31 December 2021 202112 A31H PNk ME  DR2F 2F A&t
Expected credit BHEEREX
loss rate 1.34% 0.98% NATEA NATER
RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Gross carrying amount  48REE
- Trade receivables - BHEWE 231,419

Provision g 3,100

30,683

300

ARBTT ARETT AR®TR

- 262,102

- 3,400
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4. BIEEBER 7

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIEREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEEEE)
() Provision of trade receivables (Continuead) (i) EZEKZRERE
(%)
Trade receivables
BiLrE
More than 1 More than 1
day but less  year but less More
Nopast than1year than?2years than?2 years
due past due past due past due Total
1RED BIERE  BHEA
31 December 2020 2020512531 B RH ME  OR2E 2F Bt
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERE 1.52% 9.11% N/A N/A
RMB'0O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT AR%TR ARETRT
Gross carrying amount BRERE
- Trade receivables - S RWGR 208,047 13,373 - - 221,420
Provision Bh 3,158 1,218 = = 4,376
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4.

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Provision of trade receivables (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group provided approximately RMB3,400,000
(2020: approximately RMB4,376,000) impairment
allowance for trade receivables based on the
provision matrix within lifetime ECL (not credit-
impaired).

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group conducted a comprehensive
assessment on the trade receivables and made
a comprehensive consideration on the debtor’s
past repayment status, ageing and financial
status of the debtor. The Group performed
individual ECL assessment on those receivables
with known financial difficulties with are significant
and overdue for a long period. During the
year the Group mainly considered the rapid
deterioration of credit status of several debtors,
which is expected to render the Company
not being able to collect some of its trade
receivables as scheduled. Therefore, debtors
with credit-impaired with gross carrying amounts
of approximately RMB197,170,000 (2020:
approximately RMB197,218,000) were assessed
individually, and the impairment allowance
of approximately RMB197,170,000 (2020:
approximately RMB197,218,000) were provided
against those gross amounts of trade receivables.
The Group processed recovery action against
these credited-impaired debtors.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HIRERSEZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIEREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEEEE)
() Provision of trade receivables (Continueqd) (i) EBEZEWRFERE
The following tables show reconciliation of ECL TRIITRR 2021 F
loss allowances of trade receivables as at 31 12A31B M E 5
December 2021: JEW K EEBHEER
EBENEEREGY
BE -
RMB’000
ARETT
As at 1 January 2020 7K 202041 A1H 72,620
Provision for the year FNEE 185,553
Impairment loss reversal for the year FARBERESE (56,008)
Written off for the year F M EH (571)
As at 31 December 2020 and R2020F 12 A31 H X
1 January 2021 202141 A1H 201,594
Impairment loss reversal for the year FAREIRERE (1,024)
As at 31 December 2021 7K2021412 A31H 200,570
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea) 4. HEEBERZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 41 BIRREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEEEE)
(i) Provision of deposit and other receivables (i) RERkHMbEKRRK
HEE
Deposit and other receivables 72 R E M E K
H

The following tables show reconciliation of ECL
loss allowances for deposit and other receivables

TRITRKR2021F
12 A31 HHZ S &

(including amount due from joint venture) as at 31 Hh KB (BE
December 2021: EW & & EKIE)
EHREEERENE
BREHEK
RMB’000
AR%T T
As at 1 January 2020 ©K2020%F1A1H 498
Provision for the year FREHE 3,626
As at 31 December 2020 R2020F 12 A31 B R
and 1 January 2021 202141 H1H 4,124
Provision for the year FRRE 2,027
As at 31 December 2021 72021412 A31 H 6,151
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HSEBERZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIEREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEEEE)
(iii) Provision of prepayment (iii) FEAFRIERE
Prepayment to supplies [a] £ JE 7 5% 1T B 78
FE

The reconciliation of impairment for prepayment
as at 31 December 2021 are:

R2021 412 A 31
B W38 (I 5K B R E
HERA

RMB’000

ARET T

As at 1 January 2020 R2020F1H1H -

Provision for the year FAEE 46,172

As at 31 December 2020 and R2020F12 A31 B X

1 January 2021 202141 HA1H 46,172

Provision for the year FNEE 45,534

As at 31 December 2021 72021412 A31H 91,706
The individually impaired prepayments related BEBENTEMN K

to suppliers that were in financial difficulties.
The directors of the Company estimated the
amounts of impairment is after taking into
consideration when events came to the attention
of management that there were media reports
about the liquidity problem of suppliers and their
performance on subsequent settlements of the
Group’s prepayments.

TR B2 g 7 1S IR AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HFEEBERZ)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIRREBEZEE)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) 1FEEE(E)
During the year, the following impairment loss was FRN - ERBEERERNA
recognised in profit or loss. TR EEE °
2021 2020
2021 F 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT

Provision for ECL in loss B 5 FE W IR K H Ath FE UK
allowance for trade AR BB EN
and other receivables EHEEHERE (2,027) (189,179)
Impairment of prepayment TR RIBRE (45,534) (46,172)
Reversal of previous B RE R R RO
impairment loss 1,024 56,008
(46,537) (179,343)
Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held HBRFAEREAmEM
or other credit enhancements BEEERINESEER
A o
Maximum exposure
&= EkE
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETR
Credit risk exposure relating to BEERGERIINEEEBAD
off balance sheet items EERRAE
— financial guarantees — IR 8,952 31,333
At 31 December ®12 A31H 8,952 31,333
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4. BIEEBER 7

4.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 4.1 BIEREBEZEE)
(c)  Liquidity risk © EEELERE
In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group EEBRBERRERST
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash H AEBEERRERFH
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to RekBReEENEER
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects BRRBEHBNAEEE
of fluctuations in cash flow. The management monitors ERTHREKTE - WRER
the utilisation of bank borrowings and ensures ERERPNTE - B
compliance with loan covenants. ERIRITERNEAE
M BRETEREE -
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRFAJNATEECRBE
contractual maturities for its financial liabilities. The BRTERNEEER - BE
tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted HRTDIERAEERFEA
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest BEZAEMBERER
date on which the Group is required to pay. The tables MEREEE - JIREHE
include both interest and principal cash flows. FMERKSHEERE °
Over Over
dmonths 6 months
Weighted but not but not Total
average  Lessthan  morethan  more than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 3 months 6 months 1year Overiyear  cashflows amount
BA=A EBr~fEA RER
i TR BRgR BFER Réhe
TR =féR AMER -F BE-E a5 HEf
% RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
% ARETR ARETz  ARETn  ARMTn  ARETn  ARETx
As at 31 December 2021 R021F12A31A
Non-derivative FEeRAE
financial liabilities
Trade and other payables BHREMEMTE - 371,151 53,700 165,000 - 589,851 589,851
Borrowings &3 550 44,255 187,232 25,830 = 257,317 251,490
Lease liabilties HERE 510 6,415 5,963 11,796 55,121 79,895 73,538
421,821 246,395 202,626 55,121 927,063 914,879
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 220214 12 531 HIFF/ZE

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continuea) 4. HIEERER2)
4.1 Financial risk factors (Continueqd) 4.1 BEEEZEZ)
(c)  Liquidity risk (Continued) © mEELEEE)
Over Over
3months 6 months
Weighted but not but not Total
average Less than more than more than undiscounted Camying
interest rate 3 months 6 months fyear  Overiyear  cashfiows amount
BAZER BB EA REB
g T iR iR Reig
T =R AR - B a5 HAEE

%  RVBOOO  RMB'OO0  RMB00  RMBOO0  RWMB'OO0O  RMB'00O
% ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR ARETR

As at 31 December 2020 R2020E12A31H

Non-derivative financial liabiities ~ JEATE2RE B
Trade and other payables BHREMENTE - 306,828 266,750 - - 573,578 573,578
Borrowings &R 523 38915 318535 - - 357,450 349,500
Lease liabilties figek 503 17,09 17,09 38,016 88,540 165,748 142,954

362,839 602,381 33,016 88040 1086776 1,066,032
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.2 Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues as well as bank
borrowings.

The Group monitors it capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio. The Group’s gearing ratio (ratio of borrowings
(including borrowings and lease liabilities) to total equity) is
approximately 33% (2020: 51%). There were no changes
in the Group’s approach to capital management during the
year.

4. BIEEBER 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

4.

FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

@

218  Tianjin Binhai Teda Logistics (Group) Corporation Limited K& /& /82 ¥in &

Fair value of financial instrument

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

(i)  the fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities with standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted market prices; and

(i)  the fair values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models based on
discounted cash flow analysis.

The carrying amount of other financial assets and
liabilities carried at amortised cost, approximate their
respective fair values due to the relatively short-term
nature of these financial instruments.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are
measured at fair value for financial reporting purposes.
In estimating the fair value, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. For
instruments with significant unobservable inputs under
Level 3, the Group engages independent professional
valuer to perform the valuation.

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to
3 based on the degree to which the fair value is
observable as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

(a)  Fair value of financial instrument (Continued)

Level 1 fair value measurements are those
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 fair value measurements are those
derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 fair value measurements are those
derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the assets or liability that are not based
on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

4. BIEEBER 7
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO RERME
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #.2 2021 12 431 A1 F/E

4. FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continuea) 4. HIFERSEZ)
4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 4.2 EXREBERE)
(Continued)
(@)  Fair value of financial instrument (Continued) (@ SHTANTEEGE)
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are REBKE AR TE
meassured at fair value on a recurring basis AENEREENATE
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
- -t BE=B a5t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR

31 December 2021 2021512H31H
Equity instruments FHBEMEEBA
at fair value through EAREETRY
other comprehensive T A
income - 29,349 7,488 36,837

31 December 2020 2020%12H31H
Equity instruments FHBRHAEEA
at fair value through EAREEYRY
other comprehensive  #E#=m T A
income S 43,821 13,398 57,219
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

FINFNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 4. HFEBERZ)
4.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments 4.2 EXREREE(E)
(Continued)
(@)  Fair value of financial instrument (Continued) (@) ZETALNLIEEGE)
Valuation
technique(s) Significant
Fairvalue  and unobservable
Financial assets Fair value as at hierarchy  key input(s) input(s)
RT3ERH MEE  BERTR N
CHEE AREE R FEHA FABRHA
2021 2020

RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETR

Private equity 29,349 43,821 Level 2 Net asset value N/A
investments

at FVTOC

BAREE Eho EEE TEH
STAEA,

2EMEN

EMRE

e

Private equity 7,488 13,398 Level 3  Market approach Discount for lack of marketability
investments of 23.55% (2020: 18.45%)
at FVTOC

BRREEGA ER3 WA HRZmERENNTNA
A 2mEkeE 23.55% (2020 : 18.45%) ©
NASRERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements,
the directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, that the directors of the Company have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

BB R QA

EBZFHHER AR R E
SRR

FFH%W'J ‘B mMARME2 2 A%
'JFBZ ET’$ T%?/ﬁ?fﬂi

ﬁ%ﬁfﬁ{’ﬁtﬁ#lﬂiﬁﬁ ﬁer&TE““c’
Bfhst MR RER IRBEBERLR
REMRSHEBZEAREL - BR
TBIL AT BEA B AL F Al RT

ltt—rféqu&?fEF'*E-HE”‘“A FETINE

o MEETAFT BT EHEH &
JE’J%F‘?FE?&‘; - RIFREBETR
SEZME AR WEEHEE
BRI IR R ARRARAELR
£ AleEFhZIEsT M MAR K
HAR N HERR o

F& & 5t BUR IS AT E B E K3

NTRAARBIEENERAAEES
AARREMELHRE M B HRE
MRANEEBRREAFEZEX
FIE - O R AEFTBRSD o

FHPARZEERR

RBEHR StAMB B KEM G
ATHAMAEFERR ARERE
BRER MEBT—HMHBFERN
EEMBEREELREXAEYN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EE2SsHHIEIRMNIRRARZEFE

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued) BRIR(Z)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continueqd) THBAEZEEERER(E)

@  Provision of ECL for trades, bills and other receivables (@) < BB R B M A SIE A

Jﬁ;@ﬁfaf@%fﬁ/ﬁ

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the AEBFERBERETER
trade, bills and other receivables. The provision rates are FEWRIENE ZERIE - B
based on internal credit ratings as groupings of various EEREAMEYGRIE - BEX
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix ERARBEETFRIEREE
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into HUBBERANSEEBEAD
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable DA)ME - BAEEREERK
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. SEMNBEFENE  WEED
At every reporting date, the historical observed default SR BN AATRTEE
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking B BFABENKAREE
information are considered. In addition, trade, bills and other 7o REEmE B - EHET
receivables with significant balances and credit impaired are HBEBEMFENE  AE
assessed for ECL individually. RRTEEE R E L o 1toh -

ERBEREHRIEERENE
FEWFHIE - BRERENEAM
U FENEREEEEST
B o

The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade, bills EREHEEBEERAEEE

and other receivables are disclosed in Note 18. SEWGRIE - YRR R E A
FEWRIBEBHERRWT18E
E:'E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5.

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for an asset at the end of each reporting period.
The asset is tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. When
value in use calculation is undertaken, an estimation of the
value in use of the cash-generating units to which the asset
is allocated will be required. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value of those cash flows. A change in the
estimated future cash flows and/or the discount rate applied
will result in an adjustment to the estimated impairment
provision previously made.

(c) Valuation of investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuation performed by independent professional
valuers. The determination of the fair value involves certain
assumptions of market conditions which are set out in Note
15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY 5. EE2SsHHIEIRMNIRRARZEFE

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued) EkiE 2

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continueqd) THBAEZEEERER(E)

(d)  Valuation of investment properties (Continued) (@ BEYZEBILZEGE)
In relying on the valuation report, the directors of the KEBEGHERS  ARREEE
Company have exercised their judgement and are satisfied TEL HE RN EEN AR
that the method of valuation is reflective of the current B B ISR B R R o

market conditions.

The principal assumptions for the Group's estimation of AEBEFAABEZEER
the fair value include those related to estimated rental REFLE2EREME R GMT
values with reference to the current market rents for similar THEUMENRETSES
properties in the same location and condition, appropriate HEOHKREERBBHENE
reversionary yield and expected profit margin. MiEETHeBEMBZAAE
=R
As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the Group’s MR2021F12H31H K &
investment properties is approximately RMB412,900,000 EMREMENAABERD
(2020: approximately RMB307,700,000). A R # 412,900,000 7t(2020
F 4 A R ¥307,700,000
TT) e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported the Group’s senior management, being
the chief operating decision under (“CODM”), for the purpose
resources allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on types of goods or service delivered or provided.

The Group reports two operating segments; these are managed
independently by the responsible segment management bodies
in line with the products and services offered and the distribution
channels and customer profiles involved. Components of entity
are defined as segments on the basis of the existence of segment
managers with revenue and segment results (profit earned by/
(loss from) each segment before income tax less interest income,
finance cost, share of profit of investments accounted for using
the equity method and corporate expenses) responsibility who
report directly to the CODM who make strategic decisions.

Principal activities of the Group’s two reportable segments are as
follows:

Logistics and supply chain service for finished automobiles
and components — Provision of logistics services and supply
chain management, i.e. planning, storage and transportation
management for finished automobile and components; and

Materials procurement and related logistics services — Sales
of raw materials to customers comprising principally trading
companies and provision of related services of transportation
management, storage, warehouse supervising and management.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea)

The investments accounted for using the equity method
mainly carry out provision of logistics services, supply chain
management and agency service for electronics components;
and provision of cold warehouse operating and logistic services.

6. SEER @)
RAEDAEARNKRETZESRM
MRRY  HREEEERETTH
HRERY : REHSEZERY
AR

For the year ended 31 December 2021

BZ2021E12A31ALEE
Logistics
and supply
chain service  Materials
for finished procurement
automobiles andrelated  Reportable
and logistics  segments All other
components services subtotal  segments Total
RERER
SHGMHEE NEFER 2§ fiE
NREE HEWRRE vk A Hit A3 b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTE ARETRT AR®Tn AR®TR ARET:R
Revenue WA 1,381,905 1,646,429 3,028,334 63,941 3,092,275
Inter-segment revenue AEBHRA - (9,211) (9,211) (13,250) (22,461)
Revenue from external customers REMBEEHRA 1,381,905 1,637,218 3,019,123 50,601 3,069,814
Time of revenued recognition AR
Ata pointntime HE-HHE 1361905 1637218 3019128 50691 3069814
Segment results PE%E 127,853 (62,477) 65,376 25,215 90,591
Share of results of investments accounted ~ FREREARAER
for using the equity method REXE 33,755
Unallocated other income FAREMBMA 16,637
Unallocated corporate expenses RARARRR (4,778)
Finance costs BERK (23,545)
Profit before income tax bR TSR A 112,660
Income tax expense FEHAY (33,352)
Profit for the year FERH 79,308
Other information: HipgH
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (36,685) (6,350) (43,035) (759) (43,794)
Additions to non-current assets BMERDEE 11,132 227 11,359 101,139 112,498
Income tax expense FEHAX (32,439) (645) (33,084) (268) (33,352)
Gain on change in fair value of REMELABEEDNA
investment properties - - - 9,511 9,511
Impairment loss of trade, bills and 85 FRREMEKTE
other receivables, net WREEE 38 (10) (46,884) (46,894) 357 (46,537)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. &Gl #)
For the year ended 31 December 2020
HE2020F12 831 ALLEE
Logistics
and supply

chain senvice Materials
forfinished  procurement
automobiles  andrelated  Reportable

and logistics segments All other
components services Subtotal  segments Total
RERER
THHfEE  WERBR S e
WRRE BEWARE 28N H5d S

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARBTRT ARETT ARETRT AR%ETR

Revenue WA 1,346,475 1,502,600 2,849,075 50,962 2,900,037
Inter-segment revenue DEREABA - (8,796) (8,796) (10,423) (19,219
Revenue from external customers RENBEFHKA 1,346,475 1493804 2,840,279 40539 2,880,818
Time of revenued recognition WARER
At a point in time NE— BRI 1,346,475 1,493,804 2,840,279 40,539 2,880,818
Segment results PEEE 129,526 (189,691) (60,165) 147 (48,748)
Share of results of investments accounted B EZ AR E(E

for using the equity method REXE 20,285
Unallocated other income AAREMBA 12,007
Unallocated corporate expenses RARAART (4,736)
Finance costs BEMKK (33,479)
Profit before income tax BEGHAER (64,671)
Income tax expense FTEmRY (27,444)
Loss for the year ERRA (82,115)
Other information: Hiv&H -
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH (28,073) (5,921) (33,994) (869) (34,863
Additions to non-current assets EMERBEE 82,101 285 82,356 10,743 93,099
Income tax expense FERRAX (27,422) - (27,422) (22) (27 444)
Gain on change in fair value of RENELABEZBNE

investment properties = = = 4,700 4,700
Impairment loss of trade, bills and 85 ERREMEKTE

other receivables, net WREEE 8 5 (179,058)  (179,053) (290)  (179,343)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continuea)

Segment result represents the profit/(loss) from each segment
without allocation of certain corporate administrative costs
such as directors’ emoluments, share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity method and corporate finance
costs. To arrive at reportable segment result, the management
additionally provides segment information concerning major
non-cash items such as depreciation and amortisation, gain on
change in fair value of investment properties, impairment loss
of trade, bills and other receivables and income tax expenses
derived from reportable segments. Unallocated corporate income
mainly comprises interest income. This is the measure reported
to the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

All revenue contracts are for period of one year or less, as
permitted by practical expedient under IFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied contacts is not disclosed.

Sales between segments are carried out based on mutually
agreed price. The revenue from external parties reported to the
senior management is measured in a manner consistent with
that in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Total segment assets and liabilities are not disclosed as they are
not regularly provided to and reviewed by the Group’s senior
management.

Geographical information

All the Group’s operations and non-current assets are located in
the PRC, and all the Group's revenue of the external customers
is attributed to the PRC. Therefore, no analyses of geographical
segment is presented for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB mAME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Information about major customer

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing

6. SEER &)

FREFEHR

RIAERFEEAREHERE10%

over 10% of the total revenue of the Group are as follows: NENEPHKRART
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREKTRT
Customer A ZEA 1,252,635 1,221,933
Customer B ZFB 529,148 310,072
Customer C ®FC 368,569 N/A* TNEF
*  The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the * MR A AN R B AR EE
total revenue of the Group. 10% LA L
7. OTHER GAIN AND LOSS - NET 7. HfthimREsiE — 528
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR®TE
Government grant (note) B AL (B EE) 7,966 7,001
Interest income from bank and joint venture RERITREEDEDN
FEBA 16,637 12,007
Gain on lease modification MEEsa W= - 373
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) bE N (&518), W FaE 279 (46)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME - BEREHED
plant and equipment F 18 (396) (601)
Dividends income from equity investments KB EREERNRBMA 577 -
Others HAth 211 364
25,274 19,188
note: Government grant represents subsidies and awards from local MHEE - BUR#HRLE 0 7T U % B8 R AN &=

government authorities for the Group’s contribution to the

development of the local economies.

During the current year, the Group recognised approximately
RMB6,174,000 (2020: approximately RMB6,193,000) in respect
of COVID-19-related value-added tax exemption provided by
the local government in accordance with Ministry of Finance,
General Administration of Taxation, General Administration of
Customs Joint Announcement No. 39 of 2019. According to the
announcement, the value-added tax exemption is effective until 31

December 2021.
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8.

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 8.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

Profit/(loss) before income tax is arrived at after charging:

BB RR M

BRER S BiA0ERN,(518)

BRATS B AT R 7 (8518 ) B H0RR A
MBI

2021 2020

2021 £ 2020 F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARETT

Auditors’ remuneration ZE BN B & 1,772 1,760
Cost of materials purchased B8 B [RE RS 743,286 852,075
Subcontracting charges e H 1,997,812 1,715,801
Employee benefits expenses (Note 9) BERAAXZ (M) 134,643 129,251
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 473 - E MR EITE 15,606 14,752
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRREERE 28,188 20,111
Transportation B 9,045 10,052
Fuel BRE} 9,542 8,172
Business tax BEM 10,430 8,528
Others Eih 5,288 6,338
Total cost of sales and administrative expenses $5& AR & 1T H B 2 4858 2,955,612 2,766,840
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB mAME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 # 220214 12 531 HIFF/ZE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES

9. [REMEN

2021 2020

2021 £ 2020 4F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR TR ARETT

Wages and salaries TERHS 87,422 85,981
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RRE A TSI R 42,658 37,933
Others Eib 4,563 5,337
Total employee benefit expenses EEREMMAZ B 134,643 129,251

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(a) EEKBSTBRAEME

2021 2020

2021 F 20204

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARETT ARETT

Directors’ fee BEEWE 650 650

Other emoluments: HEme -

— Salaries and allowances —¥re &OERL 349 851
— Performance related —RRBEBERNES

incentives and bonus NMAEAT 248 -

— Retirement benefit scheme contributions  — R AK& Rl 5H 24t 5% 193 -

1,440 1,501
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 9. EEMEHIZ#)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (a) EERRETHAEMS(ZE)
(Continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive BEERERTHRABREZE 2021
for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below: F12 A1 BIEFENFMA T -

Performance  Retirement

Salaries related benefit
Directors’ and incentives scheme
Fees allowances and bonus contributions Total

BERABHN RIEN
ESle  HeREW ReRRA AR CEH
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARBTR AREBTR ARETr ARMTR ARETR

The Chief executive and director; RRIBAERES:

Yang Weihong i - 349 248 193 790
Non-executive directors: FHTES

Li Jian £ 50 - - - 50
Peng Bo Zi 50 - - - 50
Zheng Yuying gF% 50 - - - 50
Jo Shibin (note ii s (BaTiin) 50 - - - 50

Independent non-executive directors:  BUHFHITES

Cheng Xinsheng Bt 150 - - - 150
Japhet Sebastian Law #UE 150 - - - 150
Peng Zuowen ZHEX 150 - - - 150

Zhou Zisheng (resigned on 15/9/2021) [EB & (52202169 F 15 H
(Note iv) BHE) (Fitstiv) - = - - -
650 349 248 193 1,440
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) Sl

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive
for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

BSt@mlbsz =)

(a)

ESEREETHRABME(E)

BEFRERTRAEBNREE
2020F 12 A 31 HILFEMH

Salaries

Directors’

and

Fees  allowances

EEHE  FEREA
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR

Ban T
Performance  Retirement
related benefit
incentives scheme
and bonus  contributions Total
BRAEHMN RINER
R REL HE s Chi

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR ARETR

The Chief executive and director; ERTBAEBRES

Yang Weihong B - 851 - - 851
Non-executive directors: FEHTES:
Li Jian £ 50 - - - 50
Peng Bo 27 50 - - - 50
Zheng Yuying LIS 3 50 - - - 50
Yang Xiaoping (resigned on 19/6/2020) 1/ F (s i)

(note i) 23 - - - 23
Jo Shibin (@ppointed on 19/6/2020) #7852 2020%E6 F 19 H

(note iii BEE) (Hitii) 27 - - - 27
Independent non-executive directors: B FEHITES
Cheng Xinsheng BHE 150 - - - 150
Japhet Sebastian Law R 150 - - - 150
Peng Zuowen 23 150 - - - 150
Zhou Zisheng (note iv) EERICEIN) - - S - -

650 851 - - 1,501

(i) For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, there was
no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
current year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any directors or any
of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group as compensation for loss of office.
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) o

(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(Continued)

(a)

(i)  Yang Xiaoping resigned from the position of non-executive

director on 19 June 2020.

(i) Jo Shibin was appointed as a non-executive director on 19

June 2020.

(V)

Zhou Zisheng resigned from the position of independent

non-executive director on 15 September 2021.

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in

(b)

the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 include
one (2020: one) director whose emoluments are reflected
in the analysis presented above. The emoluments payable
to the remaining four (2020: four) individuals, included four
(2020: four) senior management during the year ended 31

December 2021 are as follows:

BSt@mlbsz =)

ESNEETHRAEBME(E)

iy B FR20204F6 A 19 BEE
ESEMITES ©

(i) BEFH2020F 6 A19HE
ZERIFHITES -

(iv) EBEER2021F9 A 15HE:
B IEITES -

HE2021F12A31BLFE
rEBEESFMHOARALTZ
B Heh—Z(2020F : — %)
AEE HWEEBR Lo
5o R EL E20214 12 A 31
HIEFEER T2 T U (2020
F: O%) AL (BFEmMA (2020
F OB AREEAE )N
B -

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTRT ARETT
Employees ==

— salaries and allowances — %% Kok 2,918 3,024

- performance related —RRBBERNES
incentives and bonus NAEAT 104 -
— retirement benefit scheme contributions —RIR@FIFT 8K 100 110
3,122 3,134
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES (Continued) 9. [EStEHIRs#)
(c) The emoluments of the individuals with the highest (c) EEZSMEHEARNTE
emoluments are within the following bands: AT #&RBIA -
Number of individuals AEL
2021 2020
20215 2020 F
Emolument bands B <& A% 7
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ 2% 1,000,000 7T 4 4
(d) The emoluments of the Group’s senior management fell (d) AEESREEEHNSAR L
within the followings bands: N
Number of individuals AH
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
Emolument bands B <& A% 7
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T 4 4
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. REERR
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTT

Interest on borrowings wholly repayable BER—FRBHEENER
within one year EORINN 17,087 24,325
Interest on lease liabilities HEBERNE 6,458 9,154

23,545 33,479
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11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

11a. RMIBLSINRE

(a) Subsidiaries M8 A Al
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 AR BR2021F12HA31H=E
December 2021: ENBRAIMNRE
Proportion of
ordinary
shares
Place of Registered held by
Incorporation capital/ Proportion of non-controlling
Name of and kind of paid up issued ordinary shares interests
Subsidiary legal entity Principal activities ~ ordinary shares held by the Group(%) (%)
BV FERERE
R EE BLERLA
ARER ERER TEEH dmER FEERAEERLA (%)
Indirectly
£t
2020 2021 2020
2020F 2021F 2020%
% % %
Tianjin Fengtian China, limited Transportation of USD8,645,600 52% - - 48%
Logistics Co., liability company finished vehicles
Ltd. (“TFL") and supply chain
management
services
REERYRERART  E AREARE EEEHRHERE 8,645,600% 7T
(TRzgEmR)) EERG
TEDA General Bonded  China, limited Warehouse operations  RMB80,000,000 100% - S =
Warehouse Co., Ltd. liability company and logistic services
FRERBERENS HE - BREARR  EREERMNRE AR
RHBERRT] 80,000,0007T
Tianjin Yuan Da China, limited Logistic services RMB20,000,000 100% - = =
Xian Dai Logistics liability company
Co., Ltd.
RETRBRIN HE - BREARE  MRRE AR
BRLA 20,000,0007¢
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB mAME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@) Subsidiaries (Continued)

11a. RERSBIRE ()

(a) MEBLTE (&)

Proportion of

ordinary
shares
Place of Registered held by
Incorporation capital / Proportion of non-controlling
Name of and kind of paid up issued ordinary shares interests
Subsidiary legal entity Principal activities  ordinary shares held by the Group(%) (%)
L FERERE
W REE ERRLA
GRS -1 Eohi TEEH EmER FEBEELERLA (%)
Directly Indirectly
Hi &
2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 2020F 2021%F 2020%
% % % %
Tianjin TEDA China, limited International RMB5,000,000  51%  51% - S 49%
International liability company transportation
Freight Forwarding agency services
Co., Ltd.
REZERRGERE  PE AREMLA  ERERRERS ARE
BRDF 5,000,0007C
Tianjin TEDA Supply China, limited Technical service RMB10,000,000  100%  100% - S =
Chain Technology liability company
Co., Ltd.
REFEHEERE HE - BREALNE  RKIRS NEE
BRAT 10,000,0007c
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea)

(b)

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2021
is approximately RMB137,196,000 (2020: approximately
RMB134,146,000) of which approximately RMB140,878,000
(2020: approximately RMB137,878,000) is for TFL. The non-
controlling interests in respect of Tianjin TEDA International
Freight Forwarding Co., Ltd. is not material.

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests that are material to the
Group

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
TFL.

11a. RMIBLASINBRE (&)

(b)

ERFERER

B2021%F 12 A 31 H 3=
BREZBRSBEHORARK
137,196,000 7T (2020 F : H9A
R#134,146,0007T) * HA 4
AR # 140,878,000 7t (2020
& ) AR ¥ 137,878,000 7T)
REREERYR - BAKXZE
REHBREEREBERAFH
IR ER TBEK -

HEHEXEFBEAHHER
B RIHE L A BEERHE

TXEHREZERY R
BRI -

Summarised statement of financial position BRI REE
2021 2020
2021 2020 £

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FR AREFTT

Current TRED

Assets BE 444,142 436,092
Liabilities =L (239,171) (243,788)
Net current assets RBEEFE 204,971 192,304
Net non-current assets ERBEEFE 88,525 94,657
Net assets BEE 293,496 286,961
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea)

(b)

11a. RMIBLSINKRE (&)

Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (b) EXRFERERZ)
Summarised financial information on subsidiaries HFEHEEEHEEAHZER
with non-controlling interests that are material to the BRI E L A BERBE
Group (Continued) (%)
Summarised statement of profit or loss and other BEkHEMEZEBARBME
comprehensive income
2021 2020
2021 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®BTR ARETRT
Revenue LON 1,381,905 1,346,475
Profit before income tax BR P45 7% Bl A 127,674 128,745
Income tax expense ISR (32,439) (27,422)
Profit and total comprehensive FERNRZEBALLE
income for the year 95,235 101,323
Total comprehensive income allocated to DB T IEERER R
non-controlling interests ZHEINAERE 45,713 48,635
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests 2 1 FE4E A A 25 A% B, 42,576 31,681
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

11a. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea)

(b)

Material non-controlling interests (Continued)

11a. RERSNIRE (@)
(b) EARFERERSF)

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries HFEHAEFBEALHZR
with non-controlling interests that are material to the BRI E LA BEERBE
Group (Continued) (&)
Summarised statement of cash flows BEHRERBE
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETET

Cash flows from operating activities RETHRESRE
Cash generated from operations 2IBATFIRS 130,091 194,392
Interest received BB 4,251 1,518
Interest paid =ANEESS (4,295) (2,206)
Income tax paid EfFEH (36,114) (26,471)
Net cash generated from RETHMBREFH

operating activities 93,933 167,233
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFAREFH (7,624) (11,447)
Net cash used in financing activities BMETEBMARSFE (114,836) (84,725)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and RERBREEFED

cash equivalents CRA) /HEhnFEEE (28,527) 71,061
Cash and cash equivalents FURe KRS EEY

at beginning of year 312,035 240,974
Cash and cash equivalents FRESRESEZEY

at end of year 283,508 312,035

The information above is the amount before intercompany
eliminations.

ERER A RRIFEEENE
B e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB mAME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

METHOD

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of

financial position are as follows:

11b. IRABRANRNIRE

REHVBRAXRERND BN
T

2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

The Group AEE AR®TR ARETRT
Associates LN 20,751 29,994
Joint ventures A ERT] 206,474 196,187
At 31 December ®12 A31H 227,225 226,181

The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income are as follows:

REFIRENREMEmBARER
BRI ¢

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

Associates il/NE] 1,718 6,663
Joint ventures WS 32,037 13,622
For the year ended 31 December HE12A31BIEFE 33,755 20,285
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11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

METHOD (Continued)

(a)

Investment in associates

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

11b. IRAIBRAARNIRE (2)

(a) REBEQATHNRE

At 1 January

Share of results of associates

Dividends received

w1 A1H8
iy NI
B Uk A% 8

At 31 December

m12 A31H

2021 2020
2021 F 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARET T
29,994 35,493
1,718 6,663
(10,961) (12,162)
20,751 29,994

Set out below are associates of the Group as at 31
December 2021, which, in the opinion of the directors, are
material to the Group. The associates as listed below have
share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which are
held directly by the Group; the country of incorporation or
registration is also their principal place of business.

T X H A& B 2021412 A 31
AEERREAEEERNBER
A o NPT E R AR R AN E 4
HASEEEFANEBRAEK
AME K EENBERTAEEE
EES R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FEABIEEEARNIRE &)

METHOD (Continueq)

(a) Investment in associates (Continued) (a) MEZEQATNKRE(E)
Nature of investment in associates as at 31 December R2021F 12531 HRBEE LR
2021 ANREME

Proportion
of ordinary
Place of shares
business/ directly held
Registered  country of by the Group  Nature of Measurement
Name of company capital incorporation (%) the relationship method
rEE
g% EERE
W/ LER
ARER dMEX  KUMEIR Bhl(%) BEEE GEREE
Directly held:
BERE
Tianjin Port Gangwan RMB150,000,000  China 40%  Carrying out the Equity
International Automobile Group’s automobile
Logistics Co., Ltd. storage and related
(“Gangwan Automobile”) services
REBBEER AEMR AK®150,000,0007c 40% RAKELEARE R
BRRR(HERE]) FHRABRS
Tianjin Tianxin RMB5,000,000  China 30%  Carrying out the Equity
Automobile Inspection Group’s vehicle
Services Co., Ltd. inspection services
(“Tianxin Inspection”)
RERBHB BB AR®5,0000007 30% REAEELLERE #x
BRAR(RE®A]) FR %

The associates of the Group are private companies and
there are no quoted market prices available.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s
interest in the associates.
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11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

METHOD (Continued)

(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

Investment in associates (Continuead)

Summarised financial information for associates

Set out below are the summarised financial information for
the associates of the Group which are accounted for using
the equity method and the share of the profits are material

to the Group.

Summarised statement of financial position

11b. IRAIBRAARNIRE (2)

(a) REBEQATHNRE(E)

=52
=

o

BELABEEHHE

PO E R A EEA
RABMGEENEAEEN B
ERMEE R AWK E RS

Gangwan Automobile

Tianxin Inspection

BEaE RERA

2021 2020 2021 2020
20214 2020 2021 F 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETRT AR¥BTR ARET:R

Current RE
Cash and cash equivalents Re KR EEY 46,002 56,820 1,494 22,126
Other current assets HtREEE 1,002 1,314 1,287 392
Total current assets TEEERE 47,004 58,134 2,781 22,518
Current liabilities mEEE (4,048) (4,312) (819) (3,484)
Total current net assets BRBEETFE 42,956 53,822 1,962 19,034
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,166 2,657 7,044 5,640
Net assets BEEFE 45,122 56,479 9,006 24,674
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB mAME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

METHOD (Continued)

(@) Investment in associates (Continued)

Summarised financial information for associates

(Continued)

Summariesd statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income

=x 2L\,

11b. FRAER}

ANIRBIRE (40)

(a) REBEQATHNRE(E)
BREATMBENBRE)

BEFEMEZEARABRE

Gangwan Automobile

Tianxin Inspection

AR®TRT ARETT

BENE RERA
2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 2020 2021 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000

AR®TRE ARETT

Revenue WA 37,110 57,955 21,829 22,430
Depreciation and amortisation e R H (628) (630) (1,882) (1,771)
Interest income FEWA 1,291 1,004 63 25
Profit before income tax BRETBHATEF 120 16,640 7,948 7,583
Income tax expense PSR (327) (4,247) (1,946) (1,896)
(Loss)/profit and FE(BR)HAK

total comprehensive Z2HE(EE) WA

(loss)/income for the year A (207) 12,393 6,002 5,687
Dividends received from B 1 BUWEL

associates KRR E 4,461 12,162 6,500 —
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11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

METHOD (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Investment in associates (Continuead)

Reconciliation of summarised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information
presented to the carrying amount of its interest in associates

(a)

11b. IRAIBRAARNIRE (2)

REBEQRNRE (&)
R BERBE R HE

FiT 2 51 01 75 B R A 22 B 0 g
N A EmAREE 2 F A AR

Summarised financial information M ERE
Gangwan Automobile Tianxin Inspection
BENE RERR
2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 20204 2021 % 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT AR®BTR ARETR
Opening net assets at 1 January  ®M1A1HBH
FUEEFEAE 56,482 74,494 24,671 18,984
(Loss)/profit and FE(BR)/ 5K

total comprehensive ZHKALRE

income for the year (207) 12,393 6,002 5,687
Dividend 5 d5) (11,153) (30,405) (21,667) -
Closing net assets at »m12 431 B/

31 December FREEFE 45,122 56,482 9,006 24,671
Interest in associates R N R R 18,049 22,593 2,702 7,401
Investment in joint ventures (b) REEQATNKRE

2021 2020

2021 & 2020 &

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR AR¥KTT

At 1 January ®n1A1H 196,187 191,065
Share of profits of joint ventures EiEEE R TR 32,037 13,622
Dividend received B AR B (21,750) (8,500)
At 31 December m12 A31H 206,474 196,187

2021 ANNUAL REPORT &3 247



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FEABIEEEARNIRE &)

METHOD (Continued)
(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b) REEQTWERE (&)

Nature of investment in joint ventures as at 31 R2021F 12531 HREE L

December 2021 AMREME
Place of
business/ % of
country of ownership  Nature of the Measurement
Name of company Registered capital incorporation interest relationship method
EEwY H2f  HERER
ARER afER  HYMER Bt BEEE HERE
Tedahang Cold Chain RMB200,000,000  China 60%  Carrying out the Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. cold warehouse
(“Tedahang’) (note) operating and
logistic services
FET(RE)REMR AR¥ 200,000,000 HE 60% REAEELE Ea
BRRAR(FET]) REZER
(PzE) MR
Tianjin Alps Teda USD6,240,000  China 50%  Carrying out the Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. supplying chain
(“Tianjin Alps”) management
senvices
REREMBLEMRER 6,240,000%71 HE 50% RAZELER s
RE([REMERE]) HERERRG
Dalian Alps Teda USD2,400,000  China 50%  Carrying out the Equity
Logistics Co., Ltd. material
(“Dalian Alps”) procurement
logistics and supply
chain management
services
AEREMBLEAMRER 2,400,000%71 % 50% RAEELE s
RR(TKEMBARE]) MEREMRR
AT R R

The joint ventures of the Group are private companies and
there is no quoted market price available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FiAiEZZENARNRE &)

METHOD (Continued)
(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b) REEQTWRE (&)
note: Bk
The Group holds 60% of the registered capital of Tedahang. REEFEREITO0% TMER o
However, under the articles of association, the major financing A BBRARER  |ETEK
and operational decision of Tedahang should be unanimously BhE A R OR AR B R HA
approved by the Group and other ventures. Therefore, Tedahang WEEH—BULE - AL - TET
is regarded as a joint venture of the Group. WARAAEEHESE AT
Summarised financial information for joint ventures BE NG BEEREE
Set out below are the summarised financial information for NTREAREENE E QAR
joint ventures of the Group which is accounted for using the FA #2005 A BR B B1 75 B R
equity method: Cig
Summarised statement of financial position BERR R E
Tedahang Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
REMT P REF AR
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 2020 2021 % 20204 2021 & 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TT AR®ETT AR¥TR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Current okl
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EED 6,769 3,360 162,137 164,297 28,354 38,166
Other current assets Hit e EE 41,344 69,793 133,873 104,021 70,976 64,108
Total current assets RBEELA 48,113 73,153 296,010 268,318 99,330 102,274
Borrowings & (50000 (5000 - - (3825 (3915
Other current liabilities HEingaE (55,618)  (228,111)  (100,709) (86,965) (46,971) (43,926)
Total current liabilities RBEELR (60,618)  (233,111)  (100,709) (86,965) (50,796) (47,841)

Net current (liabilities)/assets ~ #& (&%) EEFE (12,505) (159,958) 195,301 181,353 48,534 54,433

Non-current FRE

Total non-current assets ERBEELE 261,396 268,945 100,853 90,543 5,579 6,525
Borrowings B (8,952) (31,333) - 218) - -
Other non-current liabilities HidERBAE (156,700) (10,108) (15,888) - - -
Total non-current liabilities FnEaGELEE (165,652)  (41,441)  (15,888) (218) - -
Net non-current assets FRBEETFE 95,744 227504 84,965 90,325 5,579 6,525
Net assets EEFE 83,239 67,546 280,266 271,678 54,113 60,958
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. IRAIE&ENAIRNIIRE (&)

METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b) REEQTWERE (&)
Summarised financial information for joint ventures BERNTHBEERBEEE)
(Continued)

Summarised statement of profit or loss and other BEkHEMEZEBARBME

comprehensive income

Tedahang Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
REF P=-{0) k] RE R
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

2021 2020  2021F 2020  2021%F  2020%F
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTR AREBTT ARETR ARNMTR

Revenue 9N 251,248 186,572 703,767 458,876 213,997 180,823
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH (14,243)  (14,179) (3,576) (5,686) (1,023) (1,164)
Interest income FISWA 63 57 1,234 1,018 - =
Interest expense FIEXH (9,827)  (10,737) - - (112) (105)
Profit before income tax F?Fﬁ EHAER 15,693 649 53,726 30,437 7,013 5,691
Income tax expense NEHES - - (13,638) (8,136) (1,858) (1,527)
Profit and total comprehensive & ERFIK 2 EiEA

income for the year k] 15,693 649 40,088 22,301 5,155 4,164
Dividends received from BEEQRAKRN

joint ventures KE - - 15,750 3,200 6,000 5,300
The information above reflects the amount presented in LT ENRM®EE QAN EREKA
the financial statements of the joint ventures adjusted for 2L YERAEEHEGE
differences in accounting policies between the Group and NRIZEGEBERMZERNEL I -

the joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

11b. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY 11b. FiAiEZZENARNRE &)

METHOD (Continueqd)

(b) Investment in joint ventures (Continued) (b) REEQTWRE (&)
Summarised financial information for joint ventures EELAHBEERBEE)
(Continued)

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information FI25| M BERMERERE
presented to the carrying amount of its interests in the joint ERAINERNREE FH
ventures are as follows: FEIAT -
Summarised financial information MEERBE
Tedahang Tianjin Alps Dalian Alps
RET REMER S REMBHRE
2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

2021%F 2020  2021F 2020  2021F  2020F
RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTL ARBTR AREBTR ARMTR ARETRT

At 1 January M1A1H 67,546 66,897 271,678 255,777 60,958 67,394
Profit for the year FRRA 15,693 649 40,088 22,301 5,155 4,164
Dividend e - - (31,5000 (64000 (12,0000  (10,600)
At 31 December W12A31H 83,239 67,546 280,266 271,678 54,113 60,958
Interest in joint ventures REEDRMER 49,943 40,528 140,133 135,839 27,057 30,479
Fair value adjustments on land TR RDE -

use rights, property, plant Bz R RN

and equipment AhBEEAE (10,659)  (10,659) - = - =
Carrying value FEE 39,284 29,869 140,133 135,839 27,057 30,479

At the end of reporting period, the jointly controlled entities R
do not have any outstanding contingent liabilities. GES

i DPr

TNE

HIR - HRZEHIE R\
2 5 oA

BfE -

iy
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

11c. EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

11c. BEEMPARARLREE

YIlRMER T E

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFTT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Unlisted equity investments (Note a) JEEMERIRE (Hita) 36,837 57,219
36,837 57,219

Note:

(@ Asat 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020, the fair value of
the unlisted equity investment is arrived on the basis of a valuation
carried out by an independent professional valuers.

(b)  These investments are not held for trading, instead, they are held
for long-term strategic purposes. The directors of the Company
have elected to designate these investments in equity instruments
at FVTOCI as they believe the investments are held for long-term.
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12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as below:

BB RR M

12. PRGBSz

ApHERREMERAENRE
mF :

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AREKTRT

Deferred tax RAETIE = -
Current tax: RIHATS 1A -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax AR 1R PSR
— Provision for the year —FNEHE 33,352 27,444
33,352 27,444

Under the prevailing tax law in the PRC, the Enterprise Income
Tax rate of the Company and the subsidiaries is 25%.

No provision for the Hong Kong Profit Tax has been made for the
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as the Group has no
assessable profit arising in Hong Kong.

RBFBRITPEBE - ARA REM
BRAZEEMERMER25%

HZE2021 F K% 202012 A31 H it
FE HRAEEVEREEEL
ERBE A - AUt Ept BN SF
TET R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Continuea) 12.

The tax on the Group’s profit/(loss) before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities

PRriSIBS2 (%)

AEBBRAEHATERN,(BE)S
IR EER A OF B 8 A @ A A0
BFARRFEELE 2BV AR

as follows: ERRWT -
2021 2020
20215 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETIS R RLE R, (E518) 112,660 (54,671)
Tax at the official income tax rate of 25% RETAEBBE25%
(2020: 25%) (2020 : 25%)
FTERBIR 28,165 (13,668)
Tax effect of: INTEENRBEE :
— Associates’ and joint ventures’ —BENRIREERTFER
results reported, net of tax FE(MBRTIIA) (8,439) (5,071)
— Expenses and income not deductible — AR Sk R AR A 2
or taxable for taxation purpose X RIA 8,985 41,893
— Utilisation of tax losses previously not — B SE AT R FE R
recognised T IEE 18 (121) —
— Tax effect of tax losses not recognised — RERRIEEBENB S
- 4,762 4,290
Income tax expenses FTS R 33,352 27,444
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

13. EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE 13. GREH (E18E)
Basic earnings/(loss) per share are calculated by dividing the BREXRF(BE)HIRFAR
profit/(loss) attributable to owners of the Company by the NEHEE ANEERF(EB)BR X
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the ERTEBERMETIEEE -
year.
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT

Earnings/(loss) BR,(F8)
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners RARHEB AEL

of the Company wAL (E1E) 33,682 (129,386)
Number of shares (thousands) BRAEE (TR’
Weighted average number of ordinary shares  FiatE SRR EAR K #E

for calculating basic and diluted AR,/ (BB mEH

earnings/(loss) per share =L L RSk 354,312 354,312
For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, diluted B AN A R A E = 2021 F & 2020
earnings/(loss) per share are the same as the basic earnings/ F12A31BIEFE I EAEME
(loss) per share as the Company did not have any potential B L RAREITES - WA E 2021
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the years ended 31 FR2020F12 A1 BIEFEERK
December 2021 and 2020. BERRN,(BE)BERERZF

/(B8R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - KERRE
Furniture
and office Motor  Construction Land
Buildings Machinery  equipment vehicles in progress use rights Total
AR
EF HE  BAERE RE EEIR  iwERE &zt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETR  ARETR  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

The Group T&E
Cost A
At1 January 2020 R2020%1F1H 261,327 23,268 31,942 57,354 3,329 26,321 403,536
Additions RE 65,174 10 4,453 12,340 11,122 - 93,099
Lease moofication BEEY 23,702 - - - - - 23,702
Disposals RE (187) (1,083 (1,494) (12,830) (10,770) - (26,364)
At 31 December 2020 R2020E12A31 B R
and 1 January 2021 20211 A1H 350,016 22,190 34,901 56,364 3,681 26,321 493,973
Additions AE 1,770 884 4,571 2,394 7,190 - 16,809
Lease termination HEAL (18,520) - - (5,229) - - (23,743)
Transfer/reclassfication 8% /5008 5,765 (826) (1,339) 5,374 (8,980) - -
Disposals RE 1) (3430) 779 4679 - - (10,897)
At 31 December 2021 B2021E123318 339,010 18,818 35,366 54,736 1,891 26,321 476,142
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z3HH7E
At1 January 2020 R2020%1 R 18 108,925 18,944 22,493 45,036 - 7,935 203,333
Charge for the year FRZM 26,731 451 2,383 4,767 - 531 34,863
Disposals RE (178) (980) (1,354) (11,564) - - (14,076)
At 31 December 2020 R2020E12A31 B R
and 1 January 2021 20211 A1R 135,478 18,415 23,522 38,239 - 8,466 224,120
Charge for the year ERZ 35,214 447 2,462 5,140 - 531 43,79
Lease termination BEL&LE (18,520) - - (5,229) - - (23,743
Reclassification B 1,281 (241) (1,209) 213 - - -
Disposals BE (19 (3.086) 219 (4,208 - - (9,525
At 31 December 2021 R2021512A31H 163,390 15,635 22,563 34,161 - 8,997 234,646
Net book values REFE
At 31 December 2021 B2021E123318 185,620 3,283 12,803 20,575 1,891 17,324 241,496
At 31 December 2020 2020412 A31H 214,533 3,775 11,379 18,625 3,681 17,855 269,353
Note: BiEE
During the year ended 31 December 2021, depreciation expense of REBE2021F12A31BLEFE - TE
approximately RMB33,452,000 (2020: approximately RMB25,932,000) M X 4 & AR #33,452,000 (2020
has been charged in ‘Cost of sales’ and approximately RMB10,342,000 F M AR ¥25032,0005T )2 Al
(2020: approximately RMB8,931,000) in ‘Administrative expenses’. ERA IR - 89 A R%¥10,342,000 7T

(20204 : #) A R#8,931,0007C) T2
ElEsi: Gk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continueq)

The Group as lessee

BB RR M

14. 3R ~ MERRME @)

REBEREEA

Right-of-use assets (included in the property, plant and

EHREEGIAYE  BERRE)

equipment)
Furniture
and office Motor Land
Buildings  Machinery  equipment vehicles  use rights Total
FAR
BT HE BLAERE HE THERE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARt ARETT ARETR
As at 31 December 2021 ®2021512A31H
Carrying amount REE 69,063 - - 2,111 17,324 88,498
As at 31 December 2020 R2020612 531 R
Carrying amount REE 95,048 - - 2,782 17,855 115,685
As at 1 January 2020 7#20205151R
Carrying amount EmE 25,260 - - 1,321 18,386 44,967
For the year ended BZ2021F12A31R
31 December 2021 tEE
Depreciation charge HERX 25,985 - - 1,672 531 28,188
Addition to right-of-use assets ~ REFFEEE - - - 1,001 - 1,001
For the year ended BZ2020512R31 A
31 December 2020 l:3:3
Depreciation charge HERY 17,618 - - 1,962 531 20,111
Addition to right-of-use assets ~ AEFREEE 63,704 - - 3,423 - 67,127
Lease modification HEEBH 23,702 - - - - 23,702

During the current year, the Group leases properties for self-
own use and a motor vehicle for its operations. Lease contracts
are entered into for fixed term of one to three years (2020: one
to three years), but may have termination option to terminate the
leasing agreement of motor vehicle after one year. Lease terms
are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group
applies the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable.

RARFEER  AEEHEWEER
AEEEAERNEE HEAYD
A—E=FBEE BRI - EH
BRIEEAR—FERKIEAERE
sk o HE RV BRI E 7 i
B BREBE SRR &GS - ®
BEHEE R MG A B E A E
WRER  AEBEAGONESE
WETE A K ARG NITHRM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB mAME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #.2 2021 12 431 A1 F/E

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REM

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 £
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AR®ET T
At the beginning of the year RE LR 307,700 303,000
Addition (Note 37(b)) ANE (MIFE37(b)) 95,689 -

Net gain arising from change in fair value BEARBEEIHES
2 WaFER 9,511 4,700
Balance at the end of the year GRS =S 412,900 307,700

The direct operating expense from investment properties is
amounting to approximately RMB271,000 (2020: approximately
RMB367,000) and the rental income generated from
investment properties is approximately RMB25,388,000 (2020:

approximately RMB13,982,000).

Fair value

All investment properties of the Group are warehouse, freight

yard and commercial premises located in the PRC.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2021 and 2020 has been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected to the

Group.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties was
determined based on the income capitalisation approach, which
involves estimating the rental incomes of the property and
capitalising them all on appropriate rate to produce a capital

value.
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BEREMENEEEERIOAA
R # 271,000 7T(2020%F : #9 A R
#367,0007T) BREWMEESE
K2 WAL B AR 25,388,000
7L(20204F : #) A R ¥ 13,982,000
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, their current use
equates to the highest and best use of the properties.

At each financial year end, the management of the Group will
(i) verify all major inputs to the independent valuation report; (ii)
assess property valuations movements when compared to the
prior year valuation report; and (iii) holds discussion with the
independent valuer.

Changes in level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date
by the management of the Group. There were no transfers into or
out of level 3 during the year.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfer out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
investment properties were classified as level 3 under the fair
value hierarchy (2020: level 3). There was no transfer into or out
level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s investment properties
with fair values of approximately RMB184,000,000 (2020:
approximately RMB180,300,000) have been pledged to secure
the banking facilities granted to the Group.

15. IREMMH*¥E %)

DRBEGE)
BEZENINAEER - &
MENEEREEREAEEMN
%&o

H 4

REVBFREFER  AREEE
BRONZEBLGERSHAELIE
BAER (i) FHE R EFREGER
THBNMRGEZS ¢ K (i) 215
MG ERMETTE R

AEEEEENERSHAONE=
RANBEZES ANFEILEEA
FEHE=HHER -

AREZBRASNEHER ZIENR
HIRARFER(CE BHERRAREE
BRzBAREL -

HZE 2021 F KX 2020F 12 A 31 H
LEFE BEMERBAAEES
¥ AEIH(2020F « FE3R) - F
RN EEE A ki1 - 2R3/ -

R2021F12A31H XE B A
A EBEHAARE184,000,0007T
(20204 : #9 A K % 180,300,000
TR B ED R - UERA
EEEGHNENRRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OB mAME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #.2 2021 12 431 A1 F/E

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information

15. &

=tuESE))

AREEE)

AREBER 2021 F KX 2020 F 12 A 31

about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 REBRREDNERAABEEZRE
are as follows: BHEVFIBT
Fair value Fair Valuation technique(s) Relationship of
of investment value and significant unobservable
properties hierarchy  unobservable inputs inputs to fair value
MEBE - HERGREREE BLEERAZBE
RENKXDAEBE R BEERAYE AREENBE
2021 2020
20215 2020 F
RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTRE ARBTRT
Investment 412,900 307,700 Level 3 Market unit rent, using the direct Assuming that the yield
properties market comparables and taking stand, the increase
in PRC into account of location and other in the market unit
individual factors, of range from rent would
RMBO.18 sg. m. to result in an increase
RMB8.8 sg. m. per day in market value.
(2020: RMB0.19 sg. m. to
RMB1.8 sq. m. per day).
iRtz ) EREA mREUHE  KEERTSAIE BRUR RS FIE
REME BB RIFEE R AmpEnHesES
HttfERIRE - §EEENT mEdR -
BYRRARK0.18LE
BYRRAREB8T
(2020% : BEMAENT
BIAKRARK019TLE
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FFIRARE18T) -

Market yield, taking into account
of yield generated from comparable
properties and adjustment to reflect
the certainty of term income secured
and to be received of 6.75% - 9%
(2020: 8.75%).

MEREE - 5t RABLEYER
FE A e R 1 R R DA R
FRERAS R A YRR B A O RETE 1 -
B R6.75% - 9%
(20205 : 8.75%)

BB R QA

Assuming that the market
value stand, the increase in
the reversionary yield would
result in a decrease in fair
value.

BRmEARTE
BlES A E i
AABERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 15. REW%E &)
Fair value (Continued) AREEE)
Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorise within Level PBERAARBESRAZIE=HAZ
3 of the fair value hierarchy: AABEFEHE
Total
st
RMB’000
AR T
Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 7202041 A1 BMEREIE 303,000
Fair value changes RABEEE 4,700
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 M2020%F12 A31H
and 1 January 2021 %2021 %1 A1 BHNEEE 307,700
Addition NE 95,689
Fair value changes AREEE 9,511
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021 7202112831 HWEREE 412,900

The Group believes that any possible changes in the input values
would not cause significant change in fair value of investment

properties.

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

AEEMERE BABBMGER
BezENEBHIreEHIREME

RREBELRERE

16. EalTH

& o

By Category RE R
2021 2020
2021 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETT
Financial assets cHEE
Financial assets measured at amortised cost: R KA EN S FEE
— Trade, bills and other receivables, — B ZRWKFUE - BKRER
excluding prepayment to suppliers K H Ath fE 5 IR
(TBiEEA
HIEmERIE) 275,031 240,233
— Amount due from joint venture — BN A E B EKIE 167,770 167,818
— Pledged bank deposits —BEEREITERX 123,289 129,560
— Cash and cash equivalents -ReMBEEEY 357,757 448,504
Total st 923,847 986,115
Equity Instruments at fair value through BREMEEBRARAA
other comprehensive Income BEINNENERTA 36,837 57,219
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 16. EMTH#)
By Category (Continueq) RERI (&)
2021 2020
2021 & 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Financial liabilities tRas
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost: (&SR A EN SR EE -
- Borrowings — & 251,490 349,500
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 73,538 142,954
— Trade and other payables — B REMERNFKIE 589,851 573,578
Total st 914,879 1,066,032
17. INVENTORIES 17. &8
2021 2020
2021 5 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Chilled and frozen meat products KEER R A W - 18,099
Others HAth 9 15
9 18,114
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value MR2021FE K 202012 A31H » 17
as at 31 December 2021 and 2020. B AN ERFEZBIEETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

18. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

18. BAMUGKIAE « BIRIERH

fit UL RR I
2021 2020
20214 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T AR®ET T
Trade receivables 2 Z W EIE 459,272 418,638
Less: allowance for impairment B RERE (200,570) (201,594)
258,702 217,044
Bills receivables (note b) FEW IR (MisED) 641 880
259,343 217,924
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments  Efb JEIWFIE ~ 574 K&
AT IR 15,936 23,180
Amount due from joint venture (note d) G E e ERIA(ME) 179,878 199,168
Less: allowance for impairment B R B (6,151) (4,124)
449,006 436,148
Prepayment to suppliers (note e) M e TR F IR (M e) 319,370 387,089
Less: allowance for impairment B R ERE (91,706) (46,172)
227,664 340,917
676,670 777,065
Less: Non-current portion B IEmBNER S
— Amount due from joint venture — A EEFIA
(note d) (M5Ed) (147,737) —
528,933 777,065
Notes: BT
(@  The balance of the Group’s trade, bills and other receivables are @ AEENESKEMERFIESH
denominated in Renminbi. HAARESE -
(o) The bills are non-interest bearing bank acceptance bills with a b) ZERBDTGERITALES
maximum maturity period of 180 days (2020: 180 days). E| B B & & /180 H (20204 -
180H) °
(c)  The Group allows an average credit period ranging from 30 to 180 © AEEGETHEESFEFPHNTHEEE
days (2020: 30 to 180 days) to its trade customers. B > F30ZF 180 H (20204 : 30
£180H) e
(d) Included in the amount due from joint venture was approximately @ FERAEECENFIERBIEAMER
RMB6,205,000 (2020: approximately RMB28,097,000) TER B BRI 89 A R ¥6,205,000 7T
related to prepayment for the supplies, and approximately (20204F : KIARHE28,097,0007T) -
RMB138,449,000 was unsecured, charged with interest at 6.5% #9 A R #5138,449,000 7T K3 - 1%
per annum and recoverable within five years (2020: approximately B5% M FFIXGH B - AIRAFANK
RMB144,849,000 was unsecured, charged with interest at [B1(20204F : #) AR 144,849,0007T
6.5% and repayable on demand). The remaining balances were AR - FRES% MR RETE  RE
unsecured, interest-free and recoverable on demand. RIER) - AR mER - &
BIRIRZRILE -
(e) Asat 31 December 2021, included in the prepayment to suppliers € F2021F12A31H & A M|

was approximately RMB14,110,000 (2020: nil) related to
prepayment for property, plant and equipment.

HEFBBNREFNHARE
14,110,000 7TC(20204F : T ) B ¥
¥ BELRENBENZEER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

18. TRADE, BILLS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 18. BAMENTRIA « [EINEZERHE

fth[EUQFRIA (&)
The following is an aging analysis of trade and bills receivables RIEMRE SR FIBRERE
(before allowance of impairment) based on invoice date at the BOREREN)ERERZA B
end of reporting period: IR A RE ST T -
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R ARETT

0 - 90 days 0Z90H 259,011 218,047
91 - 180 days 91 £180H 2,602 9,194
181- 365 days 1812365 H 1,130 12,421
Over 365 days 365 HEA E 197,170 179,856
459,913 419,518
Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the REREAITEFR » AEBE 2
potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by HBECEFPNEEERIEERF
customer. HEEREE o
Details of assessment on expected credit loss are set out in Note FEHEEEEN T MFBEH N T
4.1b. 41b e

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 19. HERIREFEINR 2 SRR
BANK DEPOSITS T&ER

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARET T

Cash at bank and on hand IRTT M FEERE 357,757 448,504
Pledged bank deposits (note ¢) BEMIRITFR(MEEC) 123,289 129,560
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19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

19. HERAESEMRESIHIR

BANK DEPOSITS (Continuea) IEFRE)

(a) The Group’s bank balances and cash denominated in @ AEELNEBHASEERBYEE
currencies other than the functional currencies of the AN ENRITARK
relevant group entities were as follows: WEWT -

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARS®TRT ARETT
Currency: g
— US Dollars —E7T 2,476 2,382
— Japanese Yen —Hx 3 3
(b) Bank balances carry interest at market rate, the effective (b) MITHEREMHINXGFE -

interest rates of the bank balances during the year are as
follows:

REZRITHEBKNERFE N
T

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETR

Effective interest rate (per annum) ERFE(FL)

0.3%-1.5% 0.3%-1.2%

Pledged bank deposits represents pledge to banks to (c)
secure bills payables of approximately RMB350,700,000

(2020: approximately RMB322,750,000) issued by the

Group.

As at 31 December 2021, the pledged bank deposits carry
fixed interest rate of ranged from 1.15% to 1.38% (2020:
fixed interest rate of 1.2%) per annum. The pledged bank
deposits will be released upon the settlement of relevant
bills payables.

Renminbi is not a freely convertible currency and the (d)
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
exchange restriction imposed by the PRC government.

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily

bank deposits rate.

EEMRITEREMRITIE
HZ2EA UERAEEER
BHCENEBOARE
350,700,000 75 (2020 4 : 49
AR 322,750,000 7C) °

M2021F12 4310 EEif
WITERIR1.15% & 1.38%
(20204 : BIEFE1.2%) 2
EEFFRTE - CEHIEIT
FRERBERERENREE
EERRBR IR o

ARBIABERLE  BFE
PE H & £ A8 T BB
EEHRR - RITRSRIEE
BR1TIF A Rt B o) B A
EREA B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

20. SHARE CAPITAL 20. AR7K
2021 2020
2021 F 2020
Domestic Domestic
Shares  H-shares Total shares H-shares Total
RER HR @t WE R H A% Bt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETRT AREBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR

At the beginning and RETNREFL
the end of the year 256,069 98,243 354,312 256,069 98,243 354,312
21. OTHER RESERVES 21. HfthfsEfs
Statutory Other
Share reserves reserves
premium (Note a) (Note b) Total
EEAESE Hih e
gyt (FizEa) (FEEDb) st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®Tr AR®Trx AR%¥Tx
At 1 January 2020 R2020%F1 A 1H 55,244 96,313 (38,808) 112,749
Transfer to statutory reserves %5 AT & - 3,822 - 3,822
Other comprehensive loss  FEH & HEER
for the year - - (3,191) (3,191)
At 31 December 2020 and 720204 12 A 31 H
1 January 2021 K 2021F1H1H 55,244 100,135 (41,999) 113,380
Transfer to B SRR
statutory reserves - 5,226 - 5,226
Other comprehensive loss  FEH b2 EE B
for the year - - (20,382) (20,382)
At 31 December 2021 M®2021F12H831H 55,244 105,361 (62,381) 98,224
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21.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Statutory reserves
Reserve fund and Enterprise expansion find

According to the relevant PRC rules and their articles of
association, appropriations from net profit should be made
to the Reserve Fund and the Enterprise Expansion Fund. The
percentages to be appropriated to the Reserve Fund and
Enterprise Expansion Fund are determined by the respective board
of directors. Upon approval, the Reserve Fund can be used to
offset accumulated losses or be converted into capital.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are domestic
limited liability companies established under the PRC Company
Law. According to the relevant PRC rules and their articles of
association, statutory surplus reserve should be appropriated
from net profit of management account under China Accounting
Standard before distribution. The amount of appropriation should
be 10% of profit after taxation, calculated in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, applicable to enterprises in
the PRC, of the Company and its subsidiaries. The appropriation
may cease to apply if the balance of the statutory surplus reserve
has reached 50% of the entity’s registered capital. Statutory
surplus reserve can be used to make up prior year losses, to
expand operation or to increase share capital. The Company or
its subsidiaries may capitalise the statutory surplus reserve by way
of bonus issues provided that the amount of the statutory surplus
reserve remaining after such appropriation shall not be less than
25% of the registered capital of the Company or its subsidiaries.

Other reserves

(i) Merger reserves represent the difference between the
paid up capital of the subsidiaries and the nominal value of
Company’s shares issued in exchange for the equity interest
in the subsidiaries upon the reorganisation of the Group prior
to listing.

(i) The FVTOCI reserve represents cumulative gains and losses
arising on the revaluation of equity instruments at FVTOCI
that have been recognised in other comprehensive income,
net of amounts reclassified to retained earnings when
those equity instruments at FVTOCI are disposed of or are
determined to be impaired.

21.

BB RR M

Hithfsh s (&)

B3 -

(a)

(b)

EEAEE
REEREFXRRES

REBEHERRER R EENEZA
8 ARSI ERES X
RET - BBERESZLEERR
EEMWENTHHEREFEET
KR - RES A RERE R
BRI BBENR o

RARREETHEBEARIREHE
REVERNL BANBBRATR © BRI
FREAERRESHERMA -
ETEBBRAESENIATABIRE
FESHTANRENERRE TR
MBI BAEREANRPEH
EMFESFRE RROFTED
RNARREHBA R IBRE &R T
10% B - AT BRHATESHE
MO ENEREMEANS50% -
BT I BB R AT BB AES -
FEEBHBAES AT AERETFES
B EFREBSIG MR - RNAF]
REM B AT A IABITAR AR
EEATRBABSERL « R
HEAEBBRAESERBRRET
RN AR B EM B AR EME
ANH)25% ©

Hitbf e

) AMREEENBARESMR
RERRBNR EHATETE
BRI =PNGI S
MmEITAD EERAZEEE °

(i) BEAREESARGEEK
BZEREERRE 2B
TEEATETNBESD
MIEEMREERE A REE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

22. RETAINED EARNINGS 22. {REBRI
RMB’000
ARET T
Balance at 1 January 2020 20201 A1 BRI & 499,060
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEEHEEER (129,386)
Transfer to other reserves I A (3,822)
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 7K 20204 12 A 31 H
K 202141 A81H 365,852
Total comprehensive income for the year FEEZEWAERE 33,682
Transfer to other reserves RS H M (5,226)
At 31 December 2021 R2021 12831 H 394,308
23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. BARHIhENFRIA
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARETET

Trade payables B 5 FEN IR 203,288 220,122
Bills payables (note a) BN EE(MTa) 350,700 322,750
553,988 542,872
Other tax payables Hfth fEASH 18 2,130 1,841
Other payables and accruals o e 3RI8 R FE AT RRIR 35,863 30,706
591,981 575,419
Notes: Mt -

(@  The bills are non-interest bearing and have a maximum maturity
period of 12 months. The credit period granted by the suppliers to
the Group ranged from 30 to 90 days. Management of the Group
monitors the repayment of all payables and ensures compliance
with credit time frame.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continuea)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)  The aging analysis of the trade payables and bills payables based
on invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

23. BARHMENFRIA 2)
i ()

b BZENFERENERERRSEH
RERHZBHHREONTAT

2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
0 - 90 days 0Z90H 254,936 443,185
91 - 180 days 91 180 H 298,963 59,216
181 - 365 days 1812365 H 47 40,321
Over 365 days 365 HLA 42 150
553,988 542,872
24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 24, aafE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLLEE
2021 2020
2021 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥TR AR®ET T

Materials procurement and MERE KB R EB

related logistics business 106,937 127,773

Note:

Contract liabilities include receipts in advance from customer for
the sales of goods and procurement services.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue recognised
from performance obligation during current year that was
included in the contract liabilities balance at the beginning of the
year was approximately RMB120,014,000 (2020: approximately
RMB217,151,000).

WiE: AREEERENEMHERRE
RIS RZ P IRM A IR o

REZE2021F12A31H IEF
& FEAGHBEFOEHHAR
FEMRBHEBPERNMES
4 A R 120,014,000 75(2020
F HARKE217,151,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

25. BORROWINGS 25. fB8FR
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR AR%®TE
Current TRE
Short term bank borrowings RHESRITRE K
— Secured — K 251,490 349,500
Carrying amounts repayable (note d) AEEERmAE(NED)
— within 1 year —— %R 251,490 349,500
Notes: FEE

(@ The effective annual interest rates of the borrowings at the
reporting date were as follows:

@ REBSERERNERENEN

™
2021 2020
2021 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TT ARETTT

Effective rate il YAlE

3.50%-6.00% 4.79% —5.66%

(b)  The carrying amounts of the borrowings approximate their fair
values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 either due to their short-
term maturity or because they bear interest at prevailing market
rates throughout their maturity period.
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

BORROWINGS (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(c)  The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings are denominated
in the following currencies:

25. f&FR (&)
BisE : (&)

(€ AKRBEERNREER TIIESE

g :
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREETTT

RMB AR

251,490 349,500

(d)  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates.

(e) As at 31 December 2021, the borrowings with carrying amount
of RMB251,490,000 (2020: RMB349,500,000) are secured by
the Group’s investment properties and pledge bank deposits and
guaranteed by TEDA Holding (2020: Group’s investment properties
guaranteed by TEDA Holding and TEDA Holding’s asset).

DEFERRED INCOME

(o) ZFIEMFRETLREFSEERHE
=,

() HM2021F12A31H  FHESEA
A R 251,490,000 7T (2020 4 :
A R 349,500,000 7T ) B9 18 FX A
REBMRE YR ERRITIFR
AR I R FE R HE R (2020
F o UAREBMNREMERTER
f8 IR R B EEIR) ©

26. IRIEUIA

2021 2020

2021 F 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETT

Government grants received BB

4,402 4,613

The government grants from TEDA Administrative Commission
were received in respect of its acquisition of land use rights and
the project of inspection and storage centre. The government
grants are recognised as deferred income and are released
to income over the periods necessary to match them with the
related costs. During the year, of approximately RMB211,000
was recognised under other gain and loss - net.

HREHERTEZTESWINK
T 78 Bh & FA A U B8 Lt (50 A e BB
WA OIEER o BT B & R A
EIEU A+ I 7 B2 AE A AK AN A T D
MU ESHERRAERA - XFEE -
HB ANRB211,000 TR ERAH
fib s I 5 18 — F 58 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES 27. HE&E

As at 31 December 2020, the Group leased certain of its
buildings under finance lease. The lease term is 3 years. Interest
rate underlying the lease liabilities is 7.25%. At the end of the
lease term of the finance lease contract, the Group will have the
right to purchase these, buildings at a nominal purchase price of
RMB100. No arrangement has been entered into for contingent
rental payments.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group acquired building
and motor vehicle by means of lease agreement with a total
capital value at the inception date of the lease of approximately
RMB1,001,000 and RMB67,127,000 respectively. The lease
term is ranged from 2 to 3 years (2020: 2 to 5 years). Interest
rate underlying the lease liabilities is ranged from 4.83% to 5.04%
(2020: 3.83% t0 5.14%).

As at 31 December 2020, lease liabilities of aggregate carrying
amount of approximately RMB140,121,000 was denominated
in RMB related to leased properties for own use and under
finance lease arrangement with net book value of approximately
RMB44,334,000.
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B 20214 K 2020612 A31 8 -
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B B4 A AR 1,001,000 7T &
AR ¥67,127,000T - FHEH A
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EABEMNF X AE483%FE5.04%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

27. LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued) 27. HE&E#)
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group'’s lease liabilities 72021 % %2020 12 A31H + &
were repayable as follows: SEHESBEMNEFBANT :

Present value of
Minimum lease payment minimum lease payment

REHENSR REHENRRE
2021 2020 2021 2020
2021 % 2020 & 20214 2020 £

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTRE ARETT ARBTRT AR®TR

Amounts payable under MEMEET
lease liabilities: JEFTFUR -
Within one year —FR 24,201 68,302 21,047 60,808
Over one year but —FLEEREA
within two years 22,662 33,229 20,554 29,919
Over two vears but MENEERFR
within five years 33,105 55,501 31,937 52,227
79,968 157,032 73,538 142,954
Less: Future finance charges B BRIBEZ N (6,430) (14,078) - -
73,538 142,954 73,538 142,954
Less: Amount due within BWOmBBEET
one year shown IR —F A
under current liabilities M EE (21,047) (60,808)
Amount due after one year shown — JERBABET
under non-current liabilities FTRE) — S AR
El )=l o 52,491 82,146

2021 ANNUAL REPORT %3 273



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

28. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 28. RIETHIASE
The balances of the Group’s deferred tax liabilities arising from rE KREMENAABEARE
fair value adjustments on investment properties from cost model AR EEAABERAME
to fair value model was as follows: ARIRETIBEEREAT
2021 2020
2021 2020 £

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRT ARETRT

At 1 January and December ®w1AK12A1H 56,997 56,997

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax R|EBAR ~XEBBEREANT
losses of approximately RMB83,411,000 (2020: approximately HEBEEBEDH AR ARKESS,411,0007T
RMB71,581,000) which expired after 5 years available for offset (20204 : #) A K %71,581,000
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised 7o) REFREIE - ATAREER
due to the unpredictability of future profit streams. i ) o BB R AR 3R s AT B9 B] T

A - Y EREREENIREE

29. DIVIDENDS 29. I8
The Board of Director (“Board”) does not recommend the EE2g([EFg ) BERTREAZRE
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 202112 A1 HILFE 2 RERK
2021 (2020: nil). B.(20204F : #&) -
30. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 30. EESMH
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR AR%TE
Pledged bank deposits BERIRITEN 123,289 129,560
Buildings g _ 34 711
Investment properties KEME 184,000 180,300

307,289 344,571
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 31. RETIMRISGIHE
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
P e ARSTR AR%®TE
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETSRIATE R, (E518) 112,660 (54,671)
Adjustments for: MUATIEBELRAZ
Interest income FEUA 7 (16,637) (12,007)
Finance costs BB KA 10 23,545 33,479
Depreciation of property, plant ES =N
and equipment REINE 14 15,606 14,752
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FAEEERE 14 28,188 20,111
Gain on lease modification HE Bk 7 - (373)
Gain on change in fair value of WEMEAREBEE
investment properties 15 (9,511) (4,700)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEYE - BRE
plant and equipment MEEEFE 7 396 601
Impairment loss of trade, bills and BRI RIE - ERERE
other receivables, net K2 B A JIE W R IR R (E
B8 F R 410 ii 46,537 179,343
Deferred income amortisation TR A 2 (211) (210)
Dividends income from equity RERERENREWHA
investments 7 (577) -
Share of profit of investments KAERAARNEN
accounted for using the KE =M
equity method 11(b) (33,755) (20,285)
Operating cash flow before changes & 3E & & & F AT 218
in working capital: REME - 166,241 156,040
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERAD,/(3Em) 18,105 (17,014)
(Increase)/decrease in trade, bills B RWHIE - ERERE
and other receivables K2 B At JE W Rk IR
(), H (41,831) 678,122
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 & £ fth & 218
2 16,562 74,054
Decrease in contract liabilities AHBaERD (20,836) (116,044)
Cash generated from operations KEEBMFES 138,241 775,158
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

32. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flow were, or future cash flows will be classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from financing
activities.

32. MEERNEEZEEHIR

TREALAXREERETHEENE
BEEDFT ERASkFEREE
Ho-mMEIDELINRESERS
MEGHEBRRASREBLNALE
BafReERERIERIRELD
FRRERENEE -

Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
HEaE EE3N et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%®TR AR%®Tx
(note 27) (note 25)
(FFE27) (PftzE25)
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1H 102,441 957,528 1,059,969
Accrued interest FEEHFIE 9,154 24,325 33,479
Less: Interest paid B BERFE (2,206) (24,325) (26,531)
Non-cash movements RS E 90,456 - 90,456
Proceeds from financing REBMEBRSRADN
cash inflows FriS I8 - 589,500 589,500
Financing cash outflows BMERES R (56,891)  (1,197,528)  (1,254,419)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 A31H X
and 1 January 2021 20211 A1H 142,954 349,500 492,454
Accrued interest FEETFI B 6,458 17,087 23,545
Less: Interest paid B BERHE (6,458) (17,087) (23,545)
New lease entered (Note 14) BRI HFHEE(MFE14) 1,001 - 1,001
Proceeds from financing REBMERSRAN
cash inflows FT{§3k08 - 251,490 251,490
Financing cash outflows BEREME (70,417) (349,500) (419,917)
At 31 December 2021 A 2021%F12H831H 73,538 251,490 325,028
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33.

34.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

COMMITMENTS 33. R

The future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non- RIFEKEYERBHT A BEL
cancellable operating leases in respect of investment properties EHEMRREEEEWARTER
are as follows: T

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR%®TRT

Within one year —F R 14,985 13,789
In the second year F= 12,822 4,138
In the third year E=F 10,039 4,138
In the fourth year FNF 7,194 2,159
In the fifth year EREF 6,474 2,159
After five years AFLAE 79,776 1,439
131,290 27,822
FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES 34. HIRIEREE
At 31 December 2021, the Group has outstanding guarantee MR2021F12A318 ' A&EEAEF
of approximately RMB341,048,000 (2020: approximately ET(REEEBONERN G E
RMB318,667,000) provided to Tedahang, a joint venture with NEDREL AR 341,048,000 7T
60% interest owned by the Group, for its bank borrowing facilities (20204 : ¥ AR™ 318,667,000
of RMB350,000,000 (2020: RMB350,000,000). The outstanding TO)RARBITIER - BRERITER
borrowings drawn down by Tedahang as at 31 December # 1= A R ¥ 350,000,000 7T (2020
2021 was approximately RMB8,952,000 (2020: approximately F: AR #350,000,000) ° 2= i#
RMB31,333,000). 1THR2021F 12 A31 B E R EUE A

FEEBMEZL A ARES,952,000
JC(20204%F : #) AR ¥ 31,333,000

TT) °

The directors of the Company consider that the fair value of this RAGIEERR  ZANBITMBE
outstanding financial guarantee is insignificant at initial recognition REAABERTLHEABLTE
and the possibility of default is remote. Accordingly, no value has A BXREFRHEEM - Bt - ©
been recognised at the inception of the guarantee contracts. At EREAREETEBERAEE R
the end of the reporting period, the managment has performed REMERRE  BEECETRE
impairment assessment, and concluded that the loss allowances AL WiEH AR SRERESH
for financial guarantee contracts was insignificant. No loss HEEREBHMTIEE WEREER
allowance was recognised in the profit or loss. HERER TR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

(b)

Transactions/balances with other state owned
enterprises in the PRC

The Group operates in an economic environment currently
predominated by enterprises directly or indirectly owned or
controlled by the PRC government (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “state-controlled entities”). The directors of
the Company consider those state-controlled entities are
independent third parties so far as the Group’s business
transactions with them are concerned.

During the year, the Group’s significant transactions with
these state controlled entities include purchases of raw
materials for trading purposes and fuel for transportation
vehicles used in the logistics business. As at year end,
majority of the Group’s cash and bank balances and
borrowings are with state controlled banks.

Key management compensation

The details of remuneration of key management personnel
are set out in Note 9.

35. EARERRA

(a)

(b)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continuea)

(c) For the transactions constitute connected transactions under
GEM Listing Rules, please refer to “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” under “Directors’
Report”.

The followings are the details of continuing connected
transaction of the Group during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020

35. EARERRS (£)

(c) BRABAGEM EmRAIET
RERXHINRS  F2HE
SemE A NBERS M
BREERD |

N E H E 2021 F & 2020 F
12831 BIEFEMSERE
RGFHBHINAT

2021 2020
2021 & 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTRT ARETx
Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. REZEHMRBR AR
will provide logistics services 1 [A) & R 38 R AR =X
and supply chain solutions for gHEHAERAE
automobiles and car components to TR K& AL E
the Toyota Tsusho Corporation (note 1) $##E R RS (M55 1) 13,739 12,966
Sales of frozen meat and provision ZRiE{T(RE) R EMR
of the related storage, logistics ERARIMARF]
and logistics supporting services SHE R RA M R iRt
by Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics HEER - IRk
Co., Ltd. to the Company (note 2) e BN AR (FI5E2) 80,612 58,053
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

35. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 35
(c) (Continued)

Notes:

1. Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd (KZZ@AWRERA
Al), a sino-foreign equity joint venture incorporated in the
PRC on 19 July 1996, which is owned as to 52% by the
Company, 36.2% by Toyota Tsusho Corporation, 7.3% by
Kamigumi Company Limited (B Ak = &4t F48) and 4.5%
by Toyota Transportation Corporation (H 7N & M@ EkE
1), and Tianjin Fengtian Logistics Co., Ltd. is a subsidiary of
the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

2. Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics Co., Ltd. (FREIT(RIE)%
¥IinB 2 al, a company established in Dongjiang Bonded
Free Port, Tianjin, PRC with limited liability and owned as to
60% by the Company and 40% by Chia Tai Logistics Limited
(EA®RAMR AT, and Tedahang Cold Chain Logistics
Co., Ltd. is a Connected Subsidiary of the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules.

(d) In addition to the transactions and balance disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statement, the
Group entered in to related party transaction.

. BARERRZ (&)

(c)

(d)

(%)

BAE

REZHMBRERAAT  —
RN 1996 F7 A 19 BEHE
MM INE BB E
AAQR - ZHAFGKAE
e BARGKA gt EARA
NEHE AR DRI
B52% -~ 36.2% * 7.3% &
45% K m o BRIBEGEM L
RA - REEZHMRBRA
AIBARARINME AR -

RETRB)REVDRER
RAE —HKRHPBERERE
REERRIMNBRETR
A AARRBRIEAYRE
R B0 B A 60% K 40%
o RIZGEM EmRA
RETRB)REDRER
REAR/ARANEENE R
o

BRHBHRESBEBENRS R

%o

RN AEEFTARBESTR

2021 2020

2021 F 2020 4F

Name of related party Nature of transaction RMB’000 RMB’000

BELAE REME AR® T AR T

Tedahang Interest income 10,071 6,095
TIETT FEHA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 36. BN aKiAREZNESR
FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

R12A31H
2021 2020
2021 % 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETET

ASSETS BE

Non-current assets kRBEE

Property, plant and equipment Y - BWEREE 5,872 2,991

Investment properties wEMZE 228,900 127,400

Amount due from joint venture UG E S F IR 147,737 =

Investments in subsidiaries R B RRIMIRE 185,241 181,241

Investments in jointly controlled entities REREHIEEIRE 170,941 170,941

Investments in associates R & AR E 13,500 13,500

Equity instruments at fair value through FREMEEBAZRAR

other comprehensive income BEARZERTH 36,837 57,219

789,028 553,292

Current assets REEE

Inventories FE - 18,184

Trade and other receivables B 5 N E At W IE 332,353 622,920

Amounts due from subsidiaries (note a) FEW M B A B IR (P sk a) 33,459 20,649

Pledged bank deposits BERIRITER 123,289 129,560

Cash and cash equivalents BeKREEED 4,672 107,463
493,773 898,776

Total assets HEE 1,282,801 1,452,068
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OB mAME

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF

36. BRI SIEFIARZNER

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (&)
As at 31 December
Mm12H31H
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETIT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EENEE
Equity R
Share capital fi& 7% 354,312 354,312
Other reserves (note c) Hth it (Fiakc) 76,424 96,806
Retained earnings (note c) REBAEF (M5Ec) 127,424 94,475
Total equity BES 558,160 545,593
LIABILITIES a8E
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R E MR 478,001 479,943
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note b) e B A R IE (MsEb) 19,650 31,759
Current income tax liabilities EHFGHAaE 256 256
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 35,046
Borrowings B 211,000 334,500
708,934 881,504
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIBAE 15,661 15,661
Lease liabilities HEBE 46 9,310
15,707 24,971
Total liabilities #BaE 724,641 906,475
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 36. BN aKiAREZNESR

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (#%)
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2021 2020
2021 & 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®STRT ARETx
Total equity and liabilities HESNEE 1,282,801 1,452,068
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(AE) BEFE (215,161) 17,272
Total assets less current liabilities HEERABERE 573,867 570,564
These financial statements were approved and authorised for MBBRRECHEETENR2022F 3
issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2022 and were A22 Bt ERFHETIE - WHMNUT
signed on its behalf by: ATREEE :
Yang Weihong Zheng Yuying
BEA ERF 88
Director Director
3 BE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

36. INFORMATION ABOUT THE STATEMENT OF 36. B aiAREZNER

FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

(@ Amounts due from subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest free and recoverable on demand.

(b)  Amounts due to subsidiaries are non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest free and repayable on demand.

(c) Reserves of the Company:

(%)
pES

ﬁﬂ/

(@) EUMBARIFEBIESILE
REER - T B RRERAW
8] o

b ENHBARFEBIEZMNE -
REEE - B RARERE

&

©  ARRHE :

Share Other Statutory Retained
premium reserves reserves earnings Total
R EE HitkE  EEARSE REEF At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®TR AR®TR ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1H 55,244 1,806 42,947 200,160 300,157
Loss and total comprehensive FEBELZAEBREE

loss for the year - (3,191) - (105685  (108,876)
At 31 December 2020 and R2020F 12 A31 B R

1 January 2021 20211818 55,244 (1,385) 42,947 94,475 191,281
Profit and total comprehensive FERMLEARANEE

income for the year - (20,382) - 32,949 12,567
At 31 December 2021 M2021F128318 55,244 (21,767) 42,947 127,424 203,848

For details of the statutory reserves and other reserves, please
refer to the Note 21 to the consolidated financial statements.

37. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 37.

(@ During the year, the Group entered into new lease
agreements for motor vehicles for one to three years. On the
lease commencement, the Group recognised approximately
RMB1,001,000 of right-of-use assets and approximately
RMB1,001,000 of lease liabilities.

(o) During the year, the Group obtained the property
ownership of the investment property of approximately
RMB92,823,000 which was ruled to settle the partial debts
owed to the Company in accordance with the ruling from
Court.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

38. EVENT AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

No significant subsequent event took place after the year ended
31 December 2021.

39.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2021, the Group were involved in litigation
or arbitration of material importance and litigation or claim of
material importance was pending or threatened against the
Company and its subsidiaries. Details are as follows:

(@)

In the case of contractual disputes between the Company
(as the plaintiff), Leimeng (Tianjin) Enterprise Company
Limited (“Leimeng (Tianjin)”, the mobile phone materials
provider of the Company), Tianjin Tongguang Group Digital
Communication Co., Ltd. (“Tongguang”, the customer of
mobile phone materials of the Company and the guarantor)
(collectively the “Defendants”), the Company required
the Defendants to return the payment and interest to the
Company. On 31 October 2019, the Third Intermediate
People’s Court of Tianjin ruled in favour of the Company.
As Leimeng (Tianjin) has mortgaged the property which
is located at UG 1/F and G 1-7/F, Yaxin Mansion, 35
Nanjing Road, Hexi District, Tianjin City (the “Mortgaged
Property”) to the Company, the Company has applied to
the court for compulsory auction of the Mortgaged Property
in accordance with the ruling. On 22 February 2021, the
Company has applied to the court for repayment-in-kind
as there is no interested party to purchase the Mortgaged
Property. On 26 March 2021, the Mortgaged Property
valued at approximately RMB92,823,000 was ruled to offset
the partial debts owed to the Company in accordance with
the ruling from Tianjin Third Intermediate People’s Court
(2019) Jin 03 Zhi No. 340 (2). The Company has obtained
the property ownership certificate of the Mortgaged
Property, and become the owner of the Mortgaged
Property, and executed cash collection of RMB1,247,648.
On 2 July 2021, the Company continued to freeze the bank
accounts of Leimeng (Tianjin) and Tongguang, and no
traces of other assets are found.

38.

39.

REHMESIA

HEC021F12A31HIEFEET
BB KR ETE -

HieTh
M2021F12A31H KEBH K
MEAFRSKME - MR T &Rl
BRI SR IT M E RFAARE -
0l

(@ HEARR(EASRE)EREFER
(RR)EXZER2A(EHA

(RE)D(BAXRRAE 2 F i
MIEHEER)  REBESE
FTBEARABN(AER
Al BARARIZFHRDHE
FRERE)SBIHSEDH
ERMUDRMLET - KRAFIEK
WERERAAAZNNERK
FE o« REMBE=ZFRRZARZE
Bt M20194 108318 # %
RAREESH - AREBR(RZE)
B A 5 RO R 78 [ R
35MEEAEMT1E R £
1-TEFRE(EREEDER
BARNTE - ARERBEE AR
FEl R R HERREE -
20212 A22H AN EE
MEEFBEREEE &2
A1) AR B 5B A& - 2021
F3H26H  REXKEM=F
P&l EZ (2019) = 03 #1340 5%
= UEBEEEBOAR
# 92,823,000 ;T BRNMEEFTR
RABEDER - ARBREE
KHREECEEEREE - K
REREEZEREA - RRH
THEBRARYA,247,648
JC e 20217 A28 AR
AN TER(RE)NBER
RIMIRTTERFE - R B RHE A
MITERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SO IRR T
For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 31 HIFF/ZE

39. LITIGATION (continueq)

(b)

In the case of contractual disputes that Guofu (Shanghai)
Asset Management Co., Ltd. (as the plaintiff) suing
Guoben (Xiamen) Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd., the
Company and Guoben Holdings Co., Ltd., which was heard
on 4 February 2021, the Company received the judgment
from the Shanghai Financial Court on 24 September 2021
(the “Judgment”). For details of the Judgment, please refer
to the announcements issued by the Company on 24
September 2021 and 1 November 2021. The Company has
lodged an appeal against the Judgment to the Shanghai
Financial Court on 8 October 2021. On 13 January 2022,
the Shanghai Financial Court transferred the appeal case
to the Shanghai High People’s Court, which is expected
to hold a trial at the end of April 2022. The Directors of the
Company have sought legal opinion from a PRC lawyer
on the appeal against the Judgement. The PRC lawyer
advised that the Judgment is under appeal process, so
the Judgment currently does not carry any legal force.
The PRC lawyer also considered that the likelihood of the
Judgment being overturned would be high according to
the relevant PRC laws. Based on the opinion of the PRC
lawyer, the directors considered that the likelihood of being
claimed would be low. The Company considered that it was
unnecessary to have provision for any significant liability as
at the year end and to have any relevant material adjustment
for prior periods.

The Company (as the plaintiff) filed a case in the Tianjin
Binhai New Area Court on 18 February 2022, suing
Tedahang, a subsidiary of the Company (as the defendant),
for repayment of the Company’s guaranteed loan of
about RMB 170 million, and applied for seizure of the real
estate under the name of Tedahang to provide property
preservation for the Company. Tianjin Binhai New Area
Court issued a civil judgment on preservation on 22
February 2022, agreeing to the Company’s application for
seizure, and the case was heard on 18 March 2022. As of
the date of this report, the court has not yet issued a ruling.

39.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BB RR M

For the year ended 31 December 2021 #Z 20214 12 531 HIFF/Z

40. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

41.

The Company and its PRC subsidiaries participate in defined
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”)
organised by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities whereby the Company and its PRC subsidiaries are
required to make contributions at the rate of 14% to 16% of
the eligible employees’ salaries to the Schemes. The Group has
accrued for the required contributions which are remitted to the
respective local government authorities when the contributions
become due. The local government authorities are responsible for
the pension obligations payable to the retired employees covered
under the Schemes.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of
pension benefits beyond the contributions described above.

AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 March 2022.

40.

41.

RiMiEnl 513l

EANYNIDSE ey = UNCIE =zl
B & i AR R A 8 AL A ) E R R R
RAREMETE(ETE]) - RIEZE
g ARERTEKBRRALS
REEFEM14%E16% M Z &t
SR NEEDHREABHF
W BRE B AR ST BT E
B hBAERBARRATE RN
BARBERKE -

Br B gsRsh - AR B EHE AT
RN BANERER

RigHsEe kL

BEEeON20220E3 A22 AlER
BT S HUBE®RE -
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
EEY XK

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA thE A SR
Properties held for investment BFIEREWE
Category of
the lease Group’s
Location Usage term interest
iy B JZE=S HEAER  KEFGER
1.  No.35, 7th Avenue, TEDA Warehouse Long 100%
No.35, 7th Avenue, BE ~H
Technological and Economic Development Area,
Tianjin City
B E®E Lt K#355%
RO TH A 3[R 6 AET355%
2. No.345, Jiyun Fifth Road, Tanggu District Freight yard Long 100%
No.345, Jiyun Fifth Road, Tanggu District, Hi5 ~H
Tianjin City
BB EERE345%
REMIAR T ERE3455
3. Yaxin Mansion Commercial Premises Long 100%
UG 1/F and G1-7/F, Yaxin Mansion, [EES R
35 Nanjing Road, Hexi District, Tianjin City
DfEXRE
RO TR 75 [ R R B8 355
DEXNEM T1E R L
1-7/E
4. No.39, Bohai Road, TEDA Warehouse and Long 100%
No.39, Bohai Road, storage yard ~H
Technological and Economic Development Area, BlE - 5
Tianjin City
B &) =R 395

RO T A 3 [ 209 B 95R
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